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Forward-looking
statements

These materials include forward-looking
statements. The forward-looking
statements are based on assumptions and
information known by Telstra as at the
date of these materials, are provided as a
general guide only and are not guarantees
or predictions of future performance.
Telstra believes the expectations reflected
in the forward-looking statements are
reasonable as at the date of these
materials, but acknowledges they involve
known and unknown risks, uncertainties
and other factors, many of which are
beyond the control of Telstra, which may
cause Telstra’s actual results,
performance and achievements to differ
materially from those expressed in, or
implied by, the forward-looking
statements. These factors include: general
economic conditions in Australia;
competition in the markets in which
Telstra operates; the continuing growth in
the markets in which Telstra operates; the
implications of legal and regulatory risks
in the businesses of Telstra; technological
changes taking place in the
telecommunications industry; future
changes to Telstra’s products and
services; the risk of cyber and data
security issues; the geopolitical
environment (including impacts of
sanctions and trade controls and broader
supply chain impacts); exchange rates;
the extent, nature and location of physical
impacts of climate change and their
impacts on our assets, service continuity,
supply chain reliability and responsible
sourcing; responsible Al scaling; energy
resilience and electricity grid
decarbonisation; and changes to forecast
supply chain emissions including but not
limited to failure of third parties to achieve
contractual environmental targets or
milestones that have direct or indirect
impact on our environmental modelling.

A number of these risks, uncertainties and
other factors are described in the “Chair &
CEO’s message”, “Our material risks” and
“Outlook” sections of Telstra’s Operating
and Financial Review (OFR). The OFR is
set out in Telstra’s financial results for the
year ended 30 June 2025 which is attached
and was lodged with the ASX on 14 August
2025, and are available on Telstra’s
Investor Centre website www.telstra.com.
au/aboutus/investors.

In addition, there are particular risks and
uncertainties in connection with the
implementation of Telstra’s Connected
Future 30 strategy. Those risks include
strategic execution risks associated with
the scale and interdependences of our
transformation programs, financial

performance risks emerging from
economic conditions, broader geopolitical
challenges, the response of customers to
changes in products and the way Telstra
interacts with customers, the risks of
disruption from changes in Telstra’s ways
of working, and Telstra’s ability to execute
and manage the elements of the strategy
in a sequenced, controlled and effective
manner and realise the planned benefits,
cost savings and growth opportunities.

Due to the inherent uncertainty and
limitations in measuring or quantifying
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions under
the calculation methodologies used in the
preparation of such data, all GHG
emissions data or references to GHG
emissions volumes (including ratios or
percentages) in these materials are
estimates. The accuracy of Telstra’s GHG
emissions data and other metrics may be
impacted by various factors, including
inconsistent data availability, a lack of
common definitions and standards for
reporting climate-related information,
quality of historical emissions data,
reliance on assumptions and changes in
market practice. These factors may impact
Telstra’s ability to meet commitments and
targets or cause Telstra’s results to differ
materially from those expressed or implied
in these materials. There may also be
differences in the manner that third
parties calculate or report GHG emissions
data compared to Telstra, which means
that third-party data may not be
comparable to our data. In FY23 we
acquired Digicel Pacific. The disclosures in
these materials in relation to the matters
noted above do not include Digicel Pacific
unless otherwise stated.

Telstra does not provide financial
guidance beyond the current financial
year. Telstra’s financial targets and growth
ambitions across our portfolio (including
the targets to FY30 in connection with the
Connected Future 30 strategy) are not
guidance and there are greater risks and
uncertainties in connection with these
targets and ambitions. The targets to FY30
provided in these materials are provided to
illustrate some of the outcomes
management is currently focused on
delivering in connection with the
Connected Future 30 strategy. Each target
is subject to a range of assumptions and
contingencies including the factors
referred to above.

Readers should not place undue reliance

on the forward-looking statements. To the
maximum extent permitted by law, Telstra
gives no representation, warranty, or other

assurance in connection with, and
disclaims all responsibility for, the
currency, accuracy, reliability, and
completeness of any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.
Telstra assumes no obligation to update
any forward-looking statements, and to
the maximum extent permitted by law,
disclaims any obligation or undertaking to
release any updates or revisions to the
information contained in these materials
to reflect any change in expectations and
assumptions.

Group performance results

Telstra uses non-IFRS financial
information (being “Underlying EBITDA”,
“Underlying EBITDAaL”, “Underlying
NPAT” “Underlying EPS”, “Underlying
ROIC”, “Underlying income”, “EBITDAaL”,
“FCFaL before strategic investment”,
“Cash EBIT”, “Cash earnings” and “Cash
EPS”) as measures to better reflect what
Telstra considers to be its underlying
performance. This non-IFRS financial
information is consistent with how
management reviews financial
performance with the Board and the
investment community. We include these
measures in these materials to help
readers better compare our underlying
financial performance with that of
previous periods. Underlying EBITDA and
FCFaL before strategic investment also
show how the business performed on the
same basis as the guidance we provided to
the market.

Underlying earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation (Underlying
EBITDA) is used to assess our operational
profitability. EBITDA after leases
(EBITDAaL) and Underlying EBITDAaL are
used to assess our operational profitability
after leases. Underlying net profit after tax
(Underlying NPAT) is used to assess our
operational financial performance and
reflects underlying EBITDA less interest,
tax, depreciation and amortisation.
Underlying earnings per share (Underlying
EPS) is used to assess our operational
financial performance on a per share basis.
Underlying return on invested capital
(Underlying ROIC) is used to assess our
efficiency at allocating capital and reflects
underlying net operating profit after tax
(Underlying NOPAT) as a percentage of
total capital. Underlying income is used to
assess our operational income
performance. Free cashflow after lease
payments (FCFaL) before strategic
investment is used to assess our
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underlying cash generation and reflects
operating cash flows, less investing
cashflows, less payments for lease
liabilities and less strategic investment.
Cash earnings before interest and tax
(Cash EBIT), Cash earnings and Cash EPS
are also used to assess our underlying
cash generation. Cash EBIT reflects
Underlying EBITDAaL less business-as-
usual capex and spectrum amortisation.
Cash earnings reflects Cash EBIT less
finance costs, tax and minorities. Cash
EPS reflects Cash earnings on a per share
basis.

All non-IFRS underlying measures,
EBITDAaL, FCFaL before strategic
investment, Cash EBIT, Cash earnings and
Cash EPS exclude material one-offs such
as mergers and acquisitions, disposals,
impairments, spectrum, restructuring
costs and such other items as determined
by the Board and management. An
explanation of each adjustment and a
reconciliation to our reported IFRS
financial information for Underlying
EBITDA and FCFaL before strategic
investment is set out in the “Guidance

versus reported results” schedule.

The adjustments set out in the schedule
have been reviewed by our auditor for
consistency with the basis set out in the
guidance we provided to the market.

No offer, invitation or advice

These materials are not intended to (nor
do they) constitute an offer or invitation
by or on behalf of Telstra, its subsidiaries,
or any other person to subscribe for,
purchase or otherwise deal in any equity,
debt instrument or other securities, nor is
it intended to be used for the purpose of
or in connection with offers or invitations
to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise
deal in any equity, debt instruments or
other securities.

Information in these materials, including
forward-looking statements and guidance,
should not be considered as investment,
tax, legal or other advice. You should make
your own assessment and seek
independent professional advice in
connection with any investment decision.

Unaudited information

All forward-looking figures and proforma
statements in these materials are
unaudited and based on A-IFRS unless
otherwise indicated. Certain figures may
be subject to rounding differences. All
market share information in these
materials is based on management
estimates having regard to internally
available information unless otherwise
indicated.

Other information

All amounts are in Australian Dollars
unless otherwise stated.

The ‘Telstra InfraCo’ trade mark is a
registered trade mark of Telstra
Corporation Limited. All other trade marks
of the Telstra Group are the property of
Telstra Limited. nbn co and other nbn
logos and brands are trade marks of nbn
co limited and used under licence. Other
trade marks are the property of their
respective owners.
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APPENDIX 4E (ASX LISTING RULE 4.3A)

FINAL REPORT
30 June 2025
Telstra Group Limited ABN 56 650 620 303

Information below relates to the consolidated entity (referred to as we, us, our, Telstra or the Telstra Group) consisting of Telstra Group
Limited (the Company or the Telstra Entity) and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the year ended 30 June 2025. Financial
comparisons are of results for the year ended 30 June 2025 compared with the results for the year ended 30 June 2024.

1. Results for announcement to the market

Telstra Group Year ended 30 June

$m $m $m %
Revenue (excluding finance income) from ordinary activities 23,125 22,928 197 0.9
Other income 485 554 (69) (12.5)
Totalincome 23,610 23,482 128 0.5
Finance income 103 12 9) (8.0)
Profit for the year 2,343 1,788 555 31.0
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of Telstra Entity 2,172 1,622 550 33.9
Profit from ordinary activities after tax attributable to equity holders of Telstra Entity 2,172 1,622 550 33.9

2. Dividend information

Telstra Entity Amount | Franked
per share | amount
per share
cents cents
Total interim dividend per share for the year 9.5 9.5
Total final dividend per share for the year 9.5 9.5
Total dividend per share for the year 19.0 19.0
Final dividend dates
Record date 28 August 2025
Payment date 25 September 2025

The above information is based on the 2025 Financial Report, including the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, which
have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (Deloitte). Refer to note 4.2 to the financial statements and the Directors’ Report for
other dividend-related disclosures.

3. Net Tangible Assets per security information

Telstra Group Year ended 30 June

Net tangible assets per security 18.7 21.6

Net tangible assets are defined as the net assets of the Telstra Group less intangible assets and non-controlling interests. The net assets
include both right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities.

The number of the Telstra Entity fully paid ordinary shares on issue as at 30 June 2025 was 11,385,028,987 (2024: 11,554,427,353). As part
of our capital management program, we announced the return of up to $750 million to shareholders via an on-market share buy-back which
was conducted during the financial year 2025. The shares bought back during the year were subsequently cancelled. Refer to note 4.3 to
the financial statements for further details.

The decrease in net tangible assets per security from 30 June 2024 was mainly driven by the impact of the share buy-back as part of our
capital management program.

4. Dividend Reinvestment Plan

The Board has determined that the Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP) will continue to operate for the final dividend for the financial year
2025. The election date for participation in the DRP is 29 August 2025.

Additional Appendix 4E disclosure requirements and ‘Guidance versus Reported Results’ reconciliation can be found in the 2025
Financial Report and Directors’ Report (including the Operating and Financial Review (OFR) and the Remuneration Report) lodged with
this document.

Telstra Group Limited and controlled entities | A1
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FY25 financial performance

NPAT and

H 1
Underlying NPAT Earnings per share

$2°3B 18.9cents

Underlying Return

EBITDA and on Invested Capital

Underlying EBITDA' (ROIC)?
on a guidance basis? Underlying EPS*

$8°6 B 8'5% 1 9.1 cents

Cash EPS®
Over $2.1B

returned Total. FY25 22 4
to shareholders dividends® ° cents

via dividents 1 9
cents

per share
fully franked On-market share

A-/A2 credit buy-back
rating from

Standard & Poor’s $750 IVI
and Moody’s
completed
$1b announced

1. Underlying Earnings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) and Underlying Net Profit After Tax (NPAT) exclude guidance adjustments.

2.Guidance adjustments include material one-offs, such as mergers and acquisitions, disposals, impairments, spectrum, restructuring costs and such other items as determined by the
Board and management.

3.Underlying ROIC defined as Net Operating Profit After Tax (NOPAT) as a percentage of total capital, excluding guidance adjustments (as defined above) less tax.

4.Underlying EPS is profit for TLS shareholders attributable to each share, excluding guidance adjustments.

5.Cash EPS is defined as cash earnings (underlying EBITDA after lease amortisation, less BAU capex, spectrum amortisation, finance costs, tax and minorities) per share.

6. Total dividend includes fully franked interim dividend of 9.5 cents and final dividend of 9.5 cents.

Telstra 2025 full-year results | B1




FY25 highlights

Improving
customer experience

©

Launched
CustomerlQ

to deepen understanding

Qc.h le(\ile?“(;rsoup of drivers of customer
pisode sentiment

+47

exceeding our
T25 target of +40

Being the place you
want to work

Equipped our people
Y through Future Ready,

Data & Al Academy

and new Al platform,
Career Connect

Maintained our

commitment

flexible working
Accelerating Al for a
more connected future

Commenced a new
seven-year joint venture
and Al Silicon Valley hub
with Accenture

Expanded our strategic
partnership with Microsoft

>

to power Australia’s Al future

Operating and financial review

Australia’s
best networks

First Intercity Fibre Network route opened
Sydney to Canberra Coastal route G%O

Achieved our
ambition for around ‘:/J

95% population
coverage for

Launched satellite to mobile
text messaging product,

Telstra Satellite
Messaging

Responsible business,
real impact for Australians

s Reduced our combined 440/
scope 1+2 emissions by (o)

and scope 3 emissions by 43%

both from an FY19 baseline
(excluding Digicel Pacific)

Exceeded our goal of

Z ) 0
@ 90 A’ network waste
recycling in FY25

Helping Australians stay
safe in a digital world

i)

Blocked

18M scam calls
8M scam SMS

and tens of millions
scam emails on average
every month

Expanded
Scam Indicator

with Commbank to
cover landlines

=
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Chair and

CEO's message

Thank you for your continued support and investment
in Telstra during the 2025 financial year.

We have reached a significant milestone with the
completion of our T25 strategy. Over the past three years,
we have been disciplined about achieving the ambitious
goals we set ourselves. We finished strongly, delivering
elevated customer experiences, stronger financial
performance, improved reputation as measured by
RepTrak, and achieving more than 70 per cent of our

T25 targets.

Energised by what we’ve achieved and inspired by what’s
ahead, we’re moving into the next phase of our journey
with a new five-year strategy — Connected Future 30.
This new strategy will see us double down on connectivity
and radically innovate in the core of our business. With
the overarching ambition to be the number one choice for
connectivity in Australia, we will push the boundaries of
our network leadership and make it simple for customers
to get the connectivity they need in a changing
environment.

Operating and financial review

Continuing growth

FY25 was a strong year for Telstra as we
continued to deliver for customers and
shareholders. Our reported results saw
growth across EBITDA, Net Profit After
Tax, Earnings Per Share and ROIC. We
also delivered our fourth consecutive
year of underlying growth, excluding
significant one-off items and other
adjustments.

This performance reflected momentum
across our business, strong cost control
and disciplined capital management.

On the back of earnings growth, the
Board resolved to pay a fully franked final
dividend of 9.5 cents per share, bringing
total dividends for the year to 19 cents,
and representing a 5.6 per cent increase
on the prior year.

In June this year we completed our
$750 million on market buy-back, and
today we have announced an additional
on-market share buy-back of up to

$1 billion. This has been enabled by
growth in earnings, and the strength

of our balance sheet.

Our capital position and liquidity
remained strong, and net debt remained
well within our comfort zone

Investing in a connected future

Connectivity has never been more
important and we know demand will
only continue to grow. At the same time,
customer needs are becoming more
complex. We recognise there are
significant opportunities ahead in our
core business. The work we have done in
FY25 puts us in a good position to deliver
on the connectivity demands of the
future while unlocking greater value for
our business.

Throughout FY25, we continued to invest
in delivering Australia’s best mobile
network and connecting people
internationally. Over the seven years to
the end of FY25, Telstra has invested
$12.4 billion in mobiles nationally, with
$4.7 billion of this invested in regional
areas. We have committed an additional
$800 million over four years within our
business-as-usual capex to extend our
network leadership and deliver
Australia’s most advanced, resilient and
reliable 5G experience.

In FY25, we continued to progress our
Intercity Fibre Network build with more
than 4,400 kilometres of fibre in the
ground. We are also increasing the
capacity of our subsea cable network to
meet customers’ increasing bandwidth
consumption, growing Al usage and data
centre demands.

Telstra 2025 full-year results | B3
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As demand for connectivity grows,
leadership in Al will be critical. In FY25,
we continued to invest in Al to drive
productivity and growth, and we’ll
accelerate this work through our new
joint venture with Accenture.

Five years after announcing our plans to
switch off our 3G network, we completed
this process in October 2024 - 18 years
after it was first switched on. This was an
important milestone, enabling us to
redeploy valuable mobile spectrum to
further improve 5G services, with flow on
benefits to 4G services. In preparing for
the closure, we upgraded more than
11,000 4G mobile sites and rolled out
improved 5G to hundreds of regional
communities. Since completing this
transition, we have seen improvements to
network speed, capacity, and reliability
across our network.

Like any significant technology change,
closing our 3G network and transitioning
to new technology has been a complex
process. While the transition from 3G has
delivered a better experience for most of
our customers, we know this hasn’t been
the case for some customers. To support
our customers through this change we
took steps including providing over
19,000 free mobile devices. We
established a 3G Helpline to support
customers, and calls to that helpline have
steadily decreased month-on-month.
We've now updated that service to be a
Regional and 3G helpline, to provide
support for a wider variety of connectivity
issues facing our regional customers.

We have also been working with
customers one-on-one at their homes,
businesses or our Telstra Stores. We
remain committed to addressing 3G
coverage issues identified by our
customers and our efforts to address
these concerns are ongoing.

We recognise that cost of living pressures
continue to be a real challenge for many
people and that over the past twelve
months we have made decisions to
increase the prices of some of our
products and services. While these
increases help support ongoing
investment in improvements to our
networks, including the reliability and
security of our services, they are not
decisions we make lightly. We continue to
encourage customers to reach out to us if
they would like to understand the
different support options we can provide.
This year we also expanded our Top Up
Program, helping more than 19,000
Australians in need and supporting more
than 700,000 customers on low incomes
through our Access for Everyone
products and concessions.

Building a better, faster customer
experience

We’re always looking for new ways to
improve the customer experience,
including through smarter use of
technology. In FY25, we were proud to
exceed our Episode NPS (eNPS) target
for T25, lifting it 15 points from our FY21
baseline.

Our goal was to halve Telecommunications
Industry Ombudsman (TIO) referral
complaints by FY25: we reduced them by
more than 70 per cent since FY21.

Today, our post-paid mobile customers
can choose plans with no lock-in periods
and no excess data charges, operating on
a network for which demand for data has
tripled in the last five years, and which
now offers satellite messaging when
beyond the range of our network.

Technology played a key role in these
outcomes. At the end of T25, we have
migrated around 98 per cent of our
customers to our new digital stack. While
this migration has created some
disruption, it is having a positive impact
on important aspects of our customer
experience. For example, customers
activating a new service on our new
platform have an NPS up to 50 per cent
higher than customers using our legacy
technology.

We expanded our use of Al to enhance
customer support, streamline operations
and empower our teams. AskTelstra, our
in-house generative Al solution to help
frontline teams navigate our vast
knowledge bases and support customers
effectively, has had around 1.2 million
interactions.

We’re also improving the way we
summarise customer interactions, detect
scam email and texts, and support other
critical functions across the business
through technology like Al.

Supporting our people

Having customer-centric, accountable,
and collaborative teams is essential to
delivering our strategy and delivering
positive outcomes for our customers and
shareholders. Since launching our Big
Three last year, our behaviours and habits
have continued to play a fundamental
part in how our people show up for
customers and each other, and how we
operate as a business.

Throughout the year, the shape and size
of our workforce continued to change. We
recognise this kind of change can be
disruptive, even distressing. While we will
need to continue to evolve, our

Operating and financial review

commitment is to always be transparent,
consult with our people and act with care
once we are clear on specific changes we
propose making.

Creating a safe and supportive workplace
remains our key focus. We continue to
prioritise the safety and wellbeing of our
people, ensuring they have the
environment they need to do their best
work.

We continue to invest in the skills of our
people to enhance their career choices
and personal development. This year we
launched Career Connect, enabling
deeper development conversations and
integrated performance planning across
our organisation. As Al continues to
transform the way we work, we’re
equipping our people for the future
through our Data & Al Academy and by
providing access to the latest generative
Al tools, including the rollout of 21,000
Microsoft 365 Copilot licenses.

Tragically, in July 2025 a Telstra team
member lost his life when a bird struck a
chartered helicopter in which he was
travelling as a passenger. We offer our
sincere condolences to his family, friends
and colleagues, and acknowledge the
enormous contribution he made to Telstra
over many years. The incident is currently
under investigation and we expect to
include further information in our FY26
reports.

Creating impact through
responsible business

One of our core behaviours is making a
difference: doing the right thing for our
customers, communities, the planet,
ourselves and each other. This year, we
acted quickly to support Australians
impacted by ex-Tropical Cyclone Alfred
and other extreme weather events,
deploying disaster recovery experts,
temporary infrastructure, and a disaster
assistance package to help keep
customers connected. We also upgraded
more than 1,000 payphones in disaster-
prone areas, including close to 100 in
remote Indigenous communities, to
provide free Wi-Fi and backup power.

We remain committed to supporting
customers in vulnerable circumstances,
whether they are facing financial
hardship, seeking safety from domestic,
family and sexual violence, or in urgent
need of connectivity in times of crisis. We
helped on average more than 1 million
customers in vulnerable circumstances
stay connected each year from FY22 to
FY25.

Telstra 2025 full-year results | B4
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Following a variation to our seventh
power purchase agreement for a new
solar farm in Glenellen, New South
Wales, we have now supported renewable
energy projects worth more than $1.6
billion. Improving our resilience in the
face of climate change and more
frequent and severe natural disasters is
also important, which is why we continue
to roll out our targeted program of
lifecycle battery replacements, replacing
more than 2,100 batteries across over
600 sites in FY25. We are making good
progress on our emissions reduction
targets, with combined absolute scope
1+2 emissions now 44 per cent lower and
absolute scope 3 emissions 43 per cent
lower than they were in our FY19 baseline
(excluding Digicel Pacific). You can read
more in the 2025 Sustainability Report
(available from 25 August at telstra.com/
sustainability/report).

As cyber threats continue to grow, we
expanded our Scam Indicator initiative
with the Commonwealth Bank to include
landlines and expanded the offering with
Fraud Indicator which helps detect
identity theft. We also launched Scam
Protect and Device Security Essentials to
help customers stay safe. We’re
committed to working across
government, regulators and industry to
reduce the impact of scams and fraud.
You can find more information in the
Strategy and Performance section of this
report.

Improving how people feel about us
doesn’t happen overnight, but our efforts
are making a difference. In FY25, our
RepTrak score rose to 64.8 marking a 3.5
point increase since FY21. It’s a signal
that customers are noticing the changes
we’re making to serve them better, listen
more, and build trust at every interaction.

Looking forward

This report marks a significant milestone:
the end of one strategy and the beginning
of another. One of the enduring strengths
throughout Telstra’s history has been our
ability to adapt and lead. With
technology transforming once again, and
unrelenting demand for more data and
more connectivity — these strengths will
continue to serve us well.

As we begin delivering our new five-year
Connected Future 30 strategy and
achieving our ambition to be the number
one choice for connectivity in Australia,
our goal is to deliver resilient and
consistent growth in shareholder value
and returns. Meeting this goal will require
taking a disciplined approach to capital
management, underpinned by our strong
balance sheet and settings consistent
with an A-band credit rating. We will use

Operating and financial review

an updated set of financial metrics to
measure our progress under our new
strategy, ensuring transparency and
accountability, while our remuneration
framework will also reflect these
changes.

Board and Leadership

We continued to focus on ensuring the
Board has the right skills and experience
to oversee our strategy. We thank Niek
Jan van Damme who retired from the
Board at the conclusion of the 2024
Annual General Meeting in October. In
December 2024, we welcomed David
Lamont to the Board as a Non-Executive
Director. David brings an extensive set of
skills and experience from more than 30
years in a range of roles with highly
respected organisations, including BHP,
CSL and Orica.

In FY25, the Board implemented a revised
committee structure, disbanding the
Audit & Risk Committee and establishing
two distinct committees: the Audit
Committee and the Risk & Sustainability
Committee. With strong depth and
diversity of skills and perspectives, we’re
confident the Board is well-placed to
guide us toward our long-term goals and
create lasting value for shareholders.

After 14 years of dedicated service,
Brendon Riley will retire as CEO of Telstra
InfraCo at the end of September 2025.
We extend our sincere thanks to Brendon
for the leadership and significant
contributions he has brought to Telstra.

Thank you

Our achievements over the past three
years of T25 have built strong momentum
and we’re excited to carry that forward as
we enter a new phase, with a clear
strategy and bold ambition for what
comes next. We are committed to
delivering our new Connected Future 30
strategy, leading with innovation and
ensuring that connectivity remains a
strong and inclusive foundation for
progress.

We’d like to thank our shareholders for
your continued support and investment,
the Board for your leadership and
guidance over the last 12 months, our
people for your commitment and care,
and our millions of customers for your
ongoing support this year.

sy e TP

Craig Dunn Vicki Brady
Chair CEO
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Strategy and
performance

As we complete our T25 strategy and embark on our
new strategy, Connected Future 30, we are a simpler,
more agile, more customer-focused digitised business.
We are confident in delivering the measures that
matter most to our customers and shareholders
through doubling down on connectivity and radically
innovating in the core of our business.

The four pillars of our T25 strategy:

Provide an Provide Create Be the place
exceptional leading sustained you want to
customer network and growth and work

experience technology value for our
you can solutions shareholders
count on that deliver

your future
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T25 scorecard
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Customer
experience

Market leading CX
with

/" eNPS >40 by FY25
® sNPS uplift of +25

by FY25

Getting it right for

customers
>90% ‘Once and
Done’ by FY25
(C&SB)

® 90% rating in
support and
engagement by
FY25 (TE)

Reduce our
complaints

+/ One-third by FY23,

50% by FY25
(C&SB)

v/ >95% of billing
disputes will be

resolved in 1 cycle

by FY25 (TE)

Grow Telstra Plus
members (#) and
engagement (%)

5.4m and 70% by

FY23
+/ 6m and 80% by
FY25

" Grow digitally

active users by 2m

to 8.5m FY25
(C&SB)

Improve availability of

infra. assets for
customers, by FY25
/' 250 new towers

©® 20,000km of fibre

deployed’

2

Network &
Technology

nly
Growth
and value

New ways
of working

Network leadership; Underlying EBITDA
by FY25: /' $7.5-8.0b by FY23
/' ~95% pop. coverage /" Mid-single digit

for 5G CAGR FY21to
® >80% of traffic FY25
on 5G

Underlying ROIC

Vv ~8% by FY23

/" Grow beyond to
FY25

3G closed in FY24

Win majority of key

surveys for best

fixed/mobile network

including

/" Coverage, and

/" Overall customers
speeds for mobile

/" Underlying EPS:
High-teens CAGR
FY21to FY25

' Maximise fully-

FY23-FY25 franked dividend

©® Double metro cell and sgek to grow
sites by FY25 to over time
densify the Maintain cost
network’

discipline

" $350m net fixed
cost out from
FY23 to FY25
while investing for
growth?
Maintain leading
operating cost
metrics for full-
service telco

Expand regional

coverage

/' 100,000km? new
coverage by FY25

Maximise value from
infra.
v Amplitel

EBITDAaL CAGR —

low-to-mid single
digit

+/ InfraCo Fixed
EBITDAaL CAGR
—low-single digit

Remain at 90th
percentile
employee
engagement
(equivalent to high-
performance norm)

+/ Improve agile

maturity of teams,
with 70% scoring
above 4 by FY25

+/ Halve our time to

market for products
and services from
FY22 to FY25

+/ 50% increase in

representation of
Data & Analytics
workforce by FY25

+/ Direct software

engineering
workforce
delivering ~2x

the percentage

of strategic
development work
by FY25

Operating and financial review

a

Digital
leadership

(&
Responsible
business

All key service
transactions with
customers are
capable of being
conducted digitally
by FY25

" 100% of key

business processes
enhanced/
improved using

Al by FY25

Reach top 20% in
Digital Capability
Index by FY25

100% API-first
architecture for
customer
management,
product
development,
and external
monetisation

Move ~90% of
applications to
the public cloud
by FY25'

® Enable renewable
energy generation
equivalent to 100%
of our consumption
by 2025

® Reduce our
absolute scope 1+2
emissions by 70%
by 2030 (from
FY19)

® Reduce our
absolute scope 3
emissions
by 50% by 2030
(from FY19)

" Increase digitally
active customers
by 2m, including
building digital
skills for 500k
Australians,
by FY25

/" Help keep Tm
customers in
vulnerable
circumstances
connected each
year from FY22-25

4-7pt uplift in
RepTrak reputation
score by FY25

Legend @ On track for delivery

/ Completed

Progress made but below target®

Completed after due date

Note: Commitments are baselined to FY21, except where stated otherwise and see Forward looking statements in relation to financial ambitions.

1.

. Not on track

0 Target removed

Fibre deployed target removed in August 2023 due to our focus on the highest priority routes. Double metro cell sites target removed in August 2023 due to technology

review. Public cloud target removed in August 2024 due to shift to a hybrid cloud strategy.
2. Net fixed cost target reduced from $500m in May 2024.
3.

Progress made but below target: this status is used when the end of FY25 outlook is that we will fail to met the target but with at least 50% progress made compared to the
FY21 baseline.
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Building a better customer
experience

Throughout FY25, we have remained
focused on improving the experience for
our customers. We are seeing the results in
rising customer satisfaction, with our
Group Episode NPS improving 1 point in
the last twelve months and exceeding our
T25 target.

In customer experience, 86 per cent of
service interactions across consumer and
small business are now capable of being
performed digitally. Our frontline team
members also have access to generative
Al tools including One Sentence Summary
and AskTelstra. These technologies help
our teams resolve customer queries more
quickly leading to better interactions. We
also have 6.1 million customers
participating in our Telstra Plus loyalty
program.

Keeping our customers safe from
cybercrime is a top priority. As cyber
threats evolve, so do we — continuously
strengthening our network and defences.
In August 2024, we expanded our Scam
Indicator technology in partnership with
the Commonwealth Bank to cover
landlines as well as mobiles. This
represents a 25 per cent increase in
potential coverage to help protect more
Australians, particularly those most
vulnerable to scams. We also launched
Scam Protect, a new initiative that
empowers customers to make more
informed decisions about which calls to
answer; Device Security Essentials, a free
Telstra App for consumer and small
business customers to help safeguard
their mobile devices from online threats;
and Fraud Indicator to help joint
Commonwealth Bank and Telstra
customers detect identity theft.

As part of our Cleaner Pipes initiative,

we are applying Al and machine learning to
help identify and block millions of
malicious scam texts, calls, emails, and
websites before they reach customers.
Over the past 12 months, we helped to
block 18 million scam calls, 8 million scam
SMS, and tens of millions of scam emails
on average every month. Customers
reported nearly 250,000 messages through
our 7226 scam reporting service in FY25.

Maintaining our network leadership
and planning for the future

The investments we’ve made into
expanding and strengthening our mobile
network in FY25 have reinforced our
position as Australia’s best mobile
network, and we’re continuing to build on
that momentum. We have Australia’s
largest 5G network. With around 66 per
cent of our total network traffic now over
5G, we have achieved our ambition of
around 95 per cent population coverage
for 5G.

In FY25, we committed an additional
$800 million over four years within our
business-as-usual capex to extend our
network leadership and deliver Australia’s
most advanced, resilient and reliable 5G
experience. This includes a landmark
partnership with Ericsson to deliver
advanced 5G performance, unlock faster
speeds and more sophisticated
connectivity for customers.

Closing our 3G network was a critical
step in the modernisation of our mobile
network and improving the mobile
experience of our customers. By
repurposing spectrum used for 3G,
we've also been able to expand capacity
and improve speeds at over 4,300 existing
5G mobile sites and activate new 5G at
another 631 sites. The total volume of
customer data usage flowing through
these sites is now more than 50 per cent
higher, which would not have been
possible without the closure of 3G.

That means more emails sent, photos
uploaded, apps used, webpages browsed
and videos streamed. Despite ongoing
growth in demand for data on our mobile
network, our expansion of 5G and use of
additional spectrum has helped increase
the average speeds our mobile customers
enjoy by around 11 per cent since 3G's
closure.

We continue to be one of Australia’s
biggest investors in digital infrastructure.
The Sydney to Canberra coastal route of
our Intercity Fibre Network became ready
for service in June 2025. Outside of
Australia, we continue to invest in
increasing the capacity of our subsea
cable network to meet customers’
increasing bandwidth consumption,
growing Al usage and data centre
demands. This will better position us to
ensure the stability of the world’s digital
connectivity and support the future
growth of local economies.

We’re working with a range of providers to
explore how emerging satellite solutions
can benefit our customers, particularly
those in Australia’s most remote parts. In
June 2025, we launched Australia’s first
satellite to mobile product in
collaboration with SpaceX’s Starlink to
bring satellite-to-mobile (also known as
direct-to-handset) text messaging
capability to customers.

Unlocking value and sustained
growth for our shareholders

Our reported financial performance
for the year included growth in EBITDA
of 14 per cent and Net Profit After Tax
of 31 per cent. Reported Earnings Per
Share increased 34 per cent, while
reporting ROIC increased 1.7 points to
8.5 per cent.

Operating and financial review

Underlying growth more accurately
reflects our financial performance
compared to the prior period. Excluding
significant one-off items and other
adjustments, underlying financial
performance for FY25 showed EBITDA up
4.6 per cent, Net Profit After Tax up 1.8
per cent, Cash Earnings Per Share up 12
per cent, and ROIC up 0.2 points to 8.5
per cent.

FY25 was our fourth consecutive year of
underlying growth, reflecting momentum
across our business, strong cost control
and disciplined capital management.

Our mobile business continued to perform
well, with EBITDA growth of $235 million,
driven by higher Average Revenue Per User
(ARPU) and customers continuing to
choose our network and the value it
provides. Mobile services revenue grew by
3.5 per cent. Fixed C&SB EBITDA grew by
$109 million, reflecting ARPU growth and
disciplined cost management. Fixed
Enterprise EBITDA grew by $103 million,
supported by decisive actions taken to
reset this business and reduce costs.

Telstra International EBITDA declined by
$96 million, with reductions across
Wholesale and Enterprise, and Digicel
Pacific. We have conducted a strategic
review of this business and are now taking
action, including to reduce costs, double
down on connectivity, and exit the majority
of our NAS products. Our Wholesale and
Enterprise International results for the
year include restructuring costs associated
with this.

Our infrastructure businesses continued to
grow, reflecting strong customer demand.
The performance of InfraCo Fixed
continued to benefit from customer
demand for dark fibre and ducts, while
Amplitel continued to benefit from strong
demand for towers and new signings.

During the year we delivered a significant
reduction in operating expenses, with core
fixed costs decreasing by 4.7 per cent or
$306 million. Since FY22 we have achieved
a cumulative reduction in our core fixed
costs of $428 million.

Becoming the place where
everyone wants to work

We continue to build a culture where
people feel valued, supported and inspired
to do their best work. Our employee
engagement score is 79, which puts us
above the top 25 per cent of companies
globally. This year we ranked #6 on
LinkedIn’s Top Companies list, which
recognises 25 workplaces across Australia
investing in talent and helping their people
build long-term careers. We have
continued the important work around our
Big Three behaviours and habits to
become a more customer-centric,
accountable and collaborative team.
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Investing in the success of our people is
essential to the success of our business.
Our people are building their Al skills and
confidence through our Data & Al
Academy and developing essential,
future-focused capabilities through our
multi-award-winning Future Ready
program. We’ve also given our teams
access to the latest in generative Al
technology, including rolling out 21,000
Copilot for Microsoft 365 licenses, which
is the largest deployment in Australia.

We’re committed to creating a safe,
inclusive, and flexible workplace where
everyone can thrive. That means
fostering a culture of respect, supporting
diversity, and continually strengthening
our approach to health, safety and
wellbeing. This includes more than 98 per
cent of our employees completing our
Business Essentials refresher conduct
training course during the year.

Extending digital leadership

As we move into an increasingly digitised
era, connectivity has never been more
critical. This year, we continued to build
the secure, reliable connectivity required
to meet the growing demand. In August
2024, we announced an expansion of our
strategic partnership with Microsoft,
marking a significant milestone in the
evolution of Al innovation in Australia. By
combining our leading ultra-fast Intercity
Fibre Network with Microsoft’s leading
technology, we are helping accelerate
digital transformation and developing
Australia’s Al ecosystem.

Our strategic partnership with Microsoft
and joint venture with Quantium have
been instrumental to our Al journey so
far. In April 2025, we took the next step
by commencing a seven-year joint
venture with Accenture to accelerate this
evolution. Combining Telstra’s domain
experience with world-leading
technologies and investment, this joint
venture is helping us build a best-in-class
data and Al ecosystem that will extend
our network leadership, enhance
customer experiences and help our teams
work smarter and faster. It will also help
us supercharge skills across our

workforce through access to Accenture’s
leading learning and development
programs. As part of the joint venture, in
May 2025, we launched an Al Silicon
Valley Hub, a first-of-its-kind innovation
facility to incubate and accelerate our top
Al priorities. The hub provides direct
access to cutting edge technology, top
engineering talent and collaboration
spaces with ecosystem partners.

We are continuing to deliver the benefits
of next-generation connectivity to our
business customers. In November 2024,
together with Ericsson, we launched
Telstra Dedicated Networks — Industrial
(TDN-I), a managed wireless solution
designed to deliver private network
capabilities to critical infrastructure
industries. TDN-I is already helping one
of Australia’s largest oil and gas
companies fast-track digitisation by
providing highly reliable connectivity for
its robotic services and advanced data
capture and processing of Al models at
the edge.

Doing business responsibly

We are making good progress toward
our 2030 sustainability targets.

We reduced our combined absolute
scope 1+2 emissions by 44 per cent from
an FY19 baseline (excluding Digicel
Pacific). We also reduced our absolute
scope 3 emissions by 43 per cent from
an FY19 baseline (excluding Digicel
Pacific) and expanded our renewable
energy investments across seven sites
across Victoria, Queensland, and New
South Wales, all either operational or
under construction.

We exceeded our goal of 90 per cent
network waste recycling in FY25 and
reused or recycled more than 750,000
mobile phones, modems and other
devices.

Our progress was recognised globally
in 2025, being named one of TIME
Magazine’s World’s Most Sustainable
Companies and the Financial Times’
Asia-Pacific Climate Leaders.

Operating and financial review

We’re committed to supporting our
customers when they need us most. In
October 2024, we extended our Top Up
program, adding $3.7 million in prepaid
phone credit for those in need. This,
combined with initiatives like Access for
Everyone and Telstra Safe Connections,
has helped us reach our T25 target of
helping 1 million customers in vulnerable
circumstances stay connected again in
FY25.

We’re committed to helping communities
thrive by supporting the people,
programs and passions that bring them
together. In January 2025, we awarded
over $200,000 to 26 regional community
groups across Australia as part of
Telstra’s Connected Communities Grant.
In 2024, through our Telstra Footy
Country Grants program with the AFL, we
contributed over $2 million to local clubs,
with nearly 600 clubs benefitting. This
funding initiative is part of a four-year
partnership with the AFL, which will see
$8 million injected into community
football.

Telstra Foundation aims to empower

1 million children and young people to
thrive in safe, inclusive digital spaces
and to shape their own futures. In FY25,
we committed $6 million through the
Foundation to our partners and programs
to drive direct impact for underserved,
vulnerable or disadvantaged children and
young people in Australia. Telstra
shareholders and Telstra Plus customers
also donated over $800,000 to Telstra
Foundation youth mental health and
wellbeing partners. In addition to grants
and donations we lead initiatives such as
the Technology & Wellbeing Roundtable
(which we Co Chair with ReachOut) and
Code Club Australia with teachers and
librarians across Australia. We also
support children and young people to
have their say in shaping their digital
world and we foster this via youth
co-design and participation, our Youth
Advisory Council program and our
Australian Youth Digital Index initiative.

Thanks to these efforts, Australians’
perception of us continues to strengthen.
In FY25, our RepTrak reputation score
rose to 64.8.
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Our material risks

Telstra’s ability to deliver value over the long-term for our
customers, shareholders and communities depends on the
effective management of risk. We operate in a dynamic and highly
interconnected environment shaped by geopolitical tension, rapid
technological advancement, competition, increasing frequency
and severity of climate events, increasing regulation and rising

stakeholder expectations.

We manage risk through an enterprise-
wide framework aligned to ISO
31000:2018, supported by our Board-
approved Risk Management Policy
and overseen by the Chief Risk Office.
Our governance model is based on the
Three Lines of Defence, with roles
clearly defined across risk owners,
internal risk teams, and independent
assurance functions. Risk considerations
are embedded in major decisions,

and our approach prioritises early

risk identification, escalation, clear
accountability and governance over
mitigation actions.

We categorise and manage risk through
several key lenses:

e Critical and Material Risks: These are
the most significant risks that could
materially impact our strategy, financial
trajectory, operations or reputation.
Critical Risks represent the highest
potential impact areas and are actively
monitored at the executive and Board
level. Material Risks are also of high
importance, though typically less
volatile in profile.

General Risk Factors: These are
broader environmental and operational
risks that are not specific to a single
domain, but influence our performance
over time. They include risks such as
climate events, energy reliability, and
global macroeconomic changes.

Emerging and Escalating Risks:
These are risks that are either newly
developing or increasing in prominence.
They are assessed regularly by

our Board and Management risk
committees and help shape our
forward-looking resilience and

scenario planning.

Our risks are managed through defined
governance structures, with
accountabilities tied to assigned Group
Executives and their leadership teams.
Our control environment is tested and
monitored through regular assurance,

supported by our governance, risk and
compliance platform (RICOM). Where
relevant, risks are cross-referenced to
obligations under regulatory regimes,
including the security of critical
infrastructure as well as Environment,
Sustainability and Governance (ESG)
disclosure requirements.

Risk in the Context of Our
Corporate Strategy

Effective risk management is
fundamental to Telstra’s ability to deliver
on our strategic ambition. Our approach
to managing risk provides the guardrails
that enable successful strategic
execution: anticipating and responding
to uncertainty, informing better decision-
making, and preserving and creating
long-term value. This also includes us
understanding the boundaries of the
risks we do want to take in pursuit of

our strategic priorities.

As we commence our new corporate
strategy - Connected Future 30, we face
a highly competitive and increasingly
complex environment. Successfully
executing our strategy requires navigating
both strategic and execution risks, given
the scale and interdependencies of our
transformation programs. In parallel,
financial performance risks emerge from
economic conditions, access to capital,
and broader geopolitical challenges that
may affect our ability to deliver returns
and sustain long-term growth.

Our strategy responds to these risks
and will shape our long-term ability
to create and capture value in a fast-
changing landscape. The strategy
focuses on delivering the connectivity
needed to meet the ever-increasing
customer expectations and doing this
in a simpler, technology-enabled way.
Achieving it will depend on disciplined
delivery across every aspect of our
business including digital transformation,
customer experience, Al enablement,
and capability uplift.

Operating and financial review

Strategic Execution Risk

The risk we face is that we may not fully
execute the strategy or achieve the
strategic objectives of Connected Future
30. This could result from misaligned
prioritisation, insufficient delivery
capability, delayed transformation,

or failure to manage program
interdependencies effectively. The

size and complexity of our investment
programs, including Al enablement,
digitisation, Intercity Fibre Network,
and an investment to build Australia’s
most advanced 5G network, compound
this challenge.

Our risk management approach includes:

¢ Embedding stronger strategic planning
and prioritisation processes, with
executive-level forums to assess trade-
offs and support long-range investment
decisions.

Ensuring appropriate capital allocation
and oversight of critical investment
programs, with regular review against
risk appetite and strategic intent.

Strengthening cross-functional
accountability and delivery ownership
to maintain alignment and momentum
across the organisation.

Uplifting enterprise execution
capabilities, including agile delivery
methods, data-enabled decision-
making, and workforce planning aligned
to strategic ambition.

Monitoring performance and
interdependencies across major
initiatives through an integrated
delivery governance model.

Promoting a positive risk culture by
encouraging clarity of accountability,
ownership and proactive management
of risks across all levels of the
organisation.
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Network and
technology resilience

Among our competitive advantages are
the security, resilience, reliability and
quality of our network. Society’s reliance
on and expectations of technology
continue to grow rapidly and the
sustained resilience of our network and
technology remains a core customer
expectation, enabling people to work,
learn and engage government services
and healthcare. The careful management
of risks related to our network and
technology is crucial to deliver for

our customers and maintain our
differentiation.

Our risk management approach
includes:

¢ Delivering a multi-year Integrated
Resilience Program to uplift maturity
across high-priority domains, including
completion of the “Resilient 8”
foundation and targeted new mitigation
workstreams aligned to risk appetite.

Investing in backup power systems and
lifecycle upgrades for high-risk sites,
focused on locations where power
supply failure could cause major service
disruption.

Enhancing network observability and
predictive response through deployment
of Al-powered platforms that enable
faster degradation detection and root
cause analysis.

Executing structured risk reviews and
remediation at mobile towers and
transmission hubs, prioritised by
criticality.

Strengthening our compliance and
escalation readiness for Emergency Call
Services (ECS) and Triple Zero, with
updated testing protocols, performance
reporting and escalation drills.

Building resilience into network design
via increased diversity, failover capability
and routing flexibility, particularly for
areas exposed to supply chain disruption
or weather-related events.

Committing an additional $800m over
four years within our business-as-usual
capex to deliver Australia’s most
advanced, resilient and reliable 5G
experience. This includes expanding our
strategic partnership with Ericsson to
improve coverage, capacity and failover
preparedness across rural and urban
footprints.

Continuing the rollout of our Intercity
Fibre Network, a foundational
infrastructure investment that expands
capacity, strengthens diversity and
builds the long-haul backbone of our
future network.

&

Safety and Wellbeing
of our People

The effective management of safety
and wellbeing is a fundamental priority
due to the associated risks they present
our people, our assets, the environment
and the communities in which we
operate. We are adapting to new and
emerging issues, such as the right to
disconnect, psychosocial risks and the
changing nature of our work, including
evolutions such as Al. We focus on
attracting and retaining the right skills
to support our strategy and continue

to benchmark externally to remunerate
our people appropriately.

Our risk management approach
includes:

» A coordinated, enterprise-wide Safety
Uplift Program that brings together
leadership, assurance, process and
cultural initiatives.

¢ Targeted uplift of our safety governance
and philosophy, with executive-led
workshops reinforcing expectations and
accountability across the business.

e Improvements to our journey
management and vehicle safety
protocols, particularly where grey fleet
use and remote area travel present
heightened risk.

e Enhanced training and awareness for
leaders and frontline teams in
identifying and managing psychosocial
risk, supported by dedicated mental
health communications.

¢ Strengthening of incident reporting and
field engagement practices, giving us
deeper insight into early risk indicators
and enabling timely mitigation.

e Embedding inclusion and belonging in
our people practices, recognising their
contribution to mental health,
psychological safety, and overall
wellbeing.

These initiatives are supported by
assurance reviews, independent audits
and a focus on the effective closure of
findings. Our safety controls are tested
regularly as part of our broader Health,
Safety, Wellbeing and Environment
assurance plan.

Operating and financial review

&

Cyber and Physical Security
of Critical Assets

The threat environment for both cyber
and physical security continues to
increase in scale, complexity and
consequence. Failure to effectively
manage these risks presents a material
threat to Telstra’s infrastructure, services,
people and brand, enabling potential
crime, espionage, sabotage or disruption
at unprecedented pace and reach. As a
provider of critical infrastructure, we
continue to operate in a heightened threat
posture, driven by escalating geopolitical
tensions, the evolving tactics of state-
based actors and cyber criminals, and
increased exposure across our physical
footprint and digital platforms.

Our risk management approach
includes:

o Uplift of our Security Operations Centre
(SOC) with enhanced detection tools,
real-time dashboards and continuous
threat monitoring, aligned to critical
infrastructure expectations.

Comprehensive employee awareness
and phishing simulation programs,
complemented by mandatory training
modules and targeted refresher
campaigns.

Improved governance and assurance
processes for high-risk vendors,
including risk reviews during vendor
onboarding, access controls and system
integration testing.

Expansion of independent cyber
maturity assessments, red team testing,
simulation exercises and breach
readiness scenarios to strengthen
detection and response.

Physical site remediation programs that
align with Security of Critical
Infrastructure Act, including access
management system upgrades, annual
inspection cycles and uplifted
monitoring systems.
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Customer and
Employee Privacy

Protecting the privacy and identity

of our customers and employees is

a benchmark of trust. Expectations
from the community, regulators and
stakeholders remain at an all-time

high, and privacy continues to be the
subject of sustained media scrutiny and
regulatory attention. We recognise that
the way we handle personal information
is critical to maintaining confidence in
Telstra and the services we provide.

Our risk management approach
includes:

¢ Enhancement of our Customer Data
Access Processes, including improved
controls on authorisation, monitoring,
and audit for high-risk data sets.

» Targeted remediation of legacy systems
and high-risk applications, with control
upgrades and improved logging to
reduce data handling vulnerabilities.

« Strengthened identity verification
safeguards for customers in vulnerable
contexts, including uplifted quality
assurance models for manual and
system-based authentication.

¢ Alignment with updated IT and Network
Resilience standards, and preparatory
work to meet expected changes in
national privacy laws.

* Ongoing investment in training, tooling
and data governance practices to
mature our privacy capability and ensure
readiness for new risk scenarios.

¢ Strengthening data quality and
governance foundations to ensure only
trusted data inputs for newer
technologies (including generative and
agentic Al) that rely on accurate, well-
managed data to function responsibly
and effectively.

Please refer to the 2025 Bigger Picture
Sustainability Report for more detail on
how Telstra manages privacy (available
from 25 August 2025 at telstra.com/
sustainability/report).

i

Compliance with
Laws and Regulation

Telstra needs to comply with a broad
range of complex laws and regulations
that help ensure that we do the right
thing by all our stakeholders, especially
our customers. Failure to comply with
these obligations can lead to adverse
impacts to our customers, employees and
communities, as well as to our reputation.

Our risk management approach
includes:

¢ Execution of our Compliance Maturity
Program, delivering uplift across more
than 50 obligation areas and supported
by structured assurance planning.

¢ Continued tracking of breach detection
speed, internal detection rates and
external reporting thresholds, to provide
insights into our control performance.

¢ Redevelopment of obligation
documentation and process maps in
selected domains, particularly those
impacted by law reform or systems
decommissioning.

* Ongoing stakeholder engagement
with the government, regulators
and consumer bodies to provide
transparency and inform uplift
prioritisation.

¢ Managing regulatory change in a
structured and centralised way to
maximise readiness ahead of regulatory
enforcement.

Operating and financial review

Bs

Other
risk factors

In addition to the critical risks outlined
above, we manage a number of other
risks and external factors that may
influence Telstra’s strategy and
performance. They are monitored and
managed as part of our broader risk
framework and include the following:

¢ Climate adaptation and extreme
weather events: including physical
risk to infrastructure and disruption
to services.

Energy resilience: including access
to reliable power, cost pressures and
grid dependency.

Geopolitical and economic
conditions: affecting supply chains,
regulation, market sentiment and
investment outlook.

Supply chain reliability and
responsible sourcing: particularly in
relation to key vendors and offshore
operations.

Technological disruption and
acceleration: including competitive
pressure from hyperscalers, new
connectivity models and customer
expectations.

Failure to meet ESG / sustainability
expectations: including reputational
and regulatory risk if we fall short of
commitments.

Responsible Al scaling: ensuring our
use of Al aligns with ethical and
community expectations, while
enabling practical innovation, from
improving operational efficiency to
reducing manual complexity, and
exploring its role in helping us better
identify and mitigate risks, without
compromising trust.

Public policy: major policy shifts and
regulatory decisions that could impact
our access to spectrum, infrastructure
investment decisions and delivery of
Connected Future 30.

These risk factors may not exist in
isolation, and in many cases are closely
linked to the material risks we have
described. Together, they present a
dynamic and evolving landscape that
requires constant attention, flexibility,
and forward planning.
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We finished T25 strongly, putting us in
the best possible position to commence
our new strategy. Through Connected
Future 30, we will double down on
connectivity and radically innovate in the
core of our business.

Our ambition is to be the number one
choice for connectivity in Australia, and
to continue delivering on our purpose to
build a connected future so that everyone
can thrive. To achieve this we will focus
on adapting and leading to shape the
future of connectivity, pushing the
boundaries of our network leadership,
and making it simple for customers to get
the connectivity they need in a changing
environment. We will reinvent commercial
models so we can continue to invest for
our customers, our people and our
communities.

Our goal is to grow shareholder value,
and we are focused on growing cash
earnings to FY30, growing underlying
Return on Invested Capital to 10 per cent
by FY30 and disciplined portfolio and
capital management. We will place
greater focus on positive operating
leverage — that is underlying income
growing faster than costs. This expands
our focus on costs, from fixed costs to all
costs across the organisation including
business-as-usual capex. We will step up
our efforts to build a more efficient,
resilient and sustainable organisation.

Putting customers first is at the heart of
our business and we will remain focused
on anticipating and delivering on their
connectivity needs. We will continue to
harness Al tools to create more
personalised, responsive customer
experiences and enable our people to
solve customer needs faster, smarter and
with greater care.

Customer needs are becoming more
complex, and the connectivity we provide
needs to be more sophisticated and
flexible. Our goal is to operate Australia’s
leading network and reinvent how we
capture value from it. Our competitive
strength comes from the unparalleled
connectivity we provide across Australia.
The foundations for this are our fibre
backbone and our industry-leading 5G
network, which are complemented by
partnerships with leading global satellite
providers. Extending our network
leadership is a core focus of our future
strategy, and realising more value from
our network investments is key to our
success.

We are in the early stages of a super
cycle of investment in digital
infrastructure, driven by unrelenting
demand for more data and connectivity.
This connectivity is critical to our national
prosperity, so we will advocate for a
shared national vision for enabling
Australia’s digital future as well as
policies that encourage continued
investment.

We will continue to extend our network
leadership and build Australia’s most
advanced, resilient and reliable 5G
mobile network. We will also keep
exploring new ways to connect remote
parts of the country that are beyond the
reach of our mobile network through
innovations like our satellite to mobile
product.

We will build on our investment in our
infrastructure to improve connectivity
across Australia. Our next Intercity Fibre
Network route, the Melbourne to
Canberra coastal route, will be ready for
service later in 2025 and we are very
confident in what this network will deliver
for customers, shareholders and
Australia. It will enable at scale delivery
of dark fibre solutions and options for
wavelength services for a wide range of
customers, including hyperscalers and
the Al industry. The foundation fibre will
also have the ability to serve regional
cities and towns along the route, enabling
productivity and economic development
opportunities in regional Australia.

Global demand for data capacity is
growing too, with Al adoption predicted
to triple demand by 2030. We will
continue to expand the capacity of our
subsea cable network, helping ensure
faster, more reliable digital connectivity
for our customers and supporting the
growth of local economies around the
world.

To deliver the next generation of
connectivity, we need to be leaders in Al.
In FY26 and beyond, our joint venture
with Accenture will see us tap into the
global best to complement our own
capabilities and help us reach our
customer experience and network
leadership ambitions faster. We remain
committed to responsible Al and consider
and adhere to the Al Ethics Framework
developed by the Australian Government,
as well the GSMA Responsible Al
Maturity Roadmap and policies
developed by UNESCO’s Business
Council for Ethics of Al.

Operating and financial review

As technology evolves, we know the way
we work in the future will be radically
different. We will continue to equip our
people with the right skills and
capabilities. Our culture is key to our
success, as it shapes how we show up for
our customers and for each other. With a
clear purpose, strategy and the right
behaviours and habits in place, we’ll
continue to drive a more customer-
focused, accountable, inclusive and
collaborative way of working.

Like many Australian businesses, we’re
operating in a complex environment
shaped by a range of challenges, from
uncertain geopolitical and economic
conditions, to shifting market dynamics.
These and other key risks are outlined in
the Our material risks section of this
report.

We will stay committed to supporting our
customers and communities by
contributing positively to society and the
environment. We will make further
progress on ensuring our digital
infrastructure is resilient and able to
adapt to the impacts of climate change.
We will reduce our absolute scope 1, 2,
and 3 emissions in line with our 2030
targets. We recognise the importance of
being there for customers when they
need us most. We will respond with a
range of initiatives, services and products
to help ensure everyone stays connected,
whether they’re impacted by natural
disasters, domestic, family and sexual
violence, or financial hardship. With the
growing threat of cybercrimes, scams and
fraud, we will continue to work
relentlessly with government, regulators
and other industries to help protect our
customers.

As we embark on our new five-year
strategy in FY26, we’re aware of the risks
and challenges ahead. We’re confident
that the experience and capabilities
we’ve built through T22 and T25 will
enable us to deliver Connected Future 30
with discipline and focus.

Telstra 2025 full-year results | C8



. Full year

' results and
i operations
. review




For personal use only

Full year results and

operations review

Financial results

Operating and financial review

FY25 was a strong year for us as

FY25 FY24 han . .
Change |\ e continued to deliver for
Summary reported results $m $m o | customers and shareholders. We
successfully completed our T25
Revenue (excluding finance income) 23125 22,928 09 | strategy;delivered on our
commitments to lift customer
Total income (excluding finance income) 23,610 23,482 0.5 experience, build our reputation
and drive sustainable growth;
Operating expenses 14,986 15,938 (6.0) and announced our Connected
Future 30 strategy.
Share of net loss from equity
accounted entities an (6) 63) We delivered our fourth consecutive
year of underlying growth, reflecting
EBITDA 8.607 7.528 143 momentum across our business, strong
’ ’ ) cost control and disciplined capital
management.
Depreciation and amortisation 4,691 4,479 4.7 . .
Our reported growth this year is stronger
than underlying growth because of
EBIT 3,916 3,049 28.4 significant one-off net costs totalling
$715 million in the prior year. These costs,
Net finance costs 639 584 9.4 discussed last year, were mostly related to
impairments and restructuring associated
Income tax expense 934 677 38.0 W|th the reset of our Telstra Enterprise
business.
Profit for the period 2,343 1788 31.0 In FY25, r'eported.ﬁnancial performance
on the prior year included:
Profit attributable to equity holders * EBITDA up 14.3 per cent to $8.6 billion
. 2,172 1,622 339
of Telstra Entity « Profit for the year up 31.0 per cent to
$2.3 billion
Earnings per share (cents) 18.9 141 34.0 « Earnings per share (EPS) — basic up
34.0 per cent to 18.9 cents
Free cashflow 3,956 2,059 921 « ROICS up 1.7 percentage points (pp)
to 8.5 per cent.
FY25 FY25 FY25 FY24
Reported Guidance Underlying Underlying
results adjustments results results
Underlying versus
reported results’ $m $m $m $m
EBITDA? 8,607 14 8,621 8,243
Free cashflow after lease payments
(FCFaL)?before strategic investment* 3,956 (523) 3,433 3,247

w N

[

. This table details adjustments made to the reported results for the current year to reflect the underlying performance of the business on the basis on which we provided

guidance to the market. Guidance adjustments include material one-offs, such as mergers and acquisitions, disposals, impairments, spectrum, restructuring costs and
such other items as determined by the Board and management. A detailed reconciliation of our reported results to underlying results can be found in the “Guidance
versus reported results” schedule. This schedule has been reviewed by our auditors.

. Underlying EBITDA, profit and EPS exclude guidance adjustments.

. Free cashflow after lease payments (FCFaL) defined as ‘operating cash flows’ less ‘investing cash flows’ less ‘payments for lease liabilities’, and excludes spectrum and
guidance adjustments. FY25 FCFaL includes around $300m cash outflow related to FY24 restructuring costs.

. Strategic investment capex is measured on an accrued basis and relates to the Intercity Fibre Network and Viasat projects.

. Return On Invested Capital (ROIC) calculated as Net Operating Profit After Tax (NOPAT) as a percentage of total capital.
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Our underlying growth more accurately
reflects our financial performance
compared to the prior period. Excluding
significant one-off items and other
adjustments, underlying financial
performance showed:

e Underlying EBITDA® up 4.6 per cent to
$8.6 billion

¢ Underlying profit® up 1.8 per cent to
$2.3 billion

¢ Underlying EPS® up 3.2 per cent to 19.1
cents

e Cash EPS’ up 12.0 per cent to 22.4 cents

« Underlying ROIC® up 0.2pp to 8.5 per
cent.

On the back of earnings growth, the Board
resolved to pay a fully franked final
dividend of 9.5 cents per share, bringing
total dividends for the year to 19 cents,
and representing a 5.6 per cent increase
on the prior year.

In June this year, we completed our $750
million on market buy-back, and today we
have announced an additional on-market
share buy-back of up to $1 billion. This has
been enabled by growth in earnings, and
the strength of our balance sheet. The
buy-backs support earnings and dividend
per share growth over time, and along with
increased total dividends, demonstrate
the Board and management’s confidence
in our financial strength and outlook.

We grew underlying EBITDA across our
Mobiles, Fixed C&SB, Fixed Enterprise,
InfraCo Fixed and Amplitel businesses.

It’s been a dynamic year in the mobile
industry with 3G closure, new satellite
technology, pricing changes and the
migration of a significant volume of
customers to our new digital information
technology system. In this context our
mobile business has continued to
perform well, with EBITDA growth of
$235 million. Mobiles growth was driven
by higher ARPU and customers
continuing to choose our network and the
value it provides. Mobile services revenue
grew by 3.5 per cent.

Operating and financial review

Underlying results versus guidance®

Underlying EBITDA®
Business-as-usual capex™

Strategic investment"

before strategic investment"

Free cashflow after lease payments (FCFaL)™

FY25 FY25 Guidance
$b $b
8.6 8.5t08.7
3.4 3.2t0 3.4
0.3 0.3t0 0.5
3.4 3.0t0 3.4

Fixed C&SB EBITDA grew by $109 million,
reflecting ARPU growth and disciplined
cost management.

Fixed Enterprise business EBITDA grew
by $103 million, supported by decisive
actions taken to reset this business and
reduce costs. We remain committed to
this reset, with further changes
announced in July this year to remove
complexity and cost.

Our International EBITDA declined by $96
million, with reductions across Wholesale
and Enterprise, and Digicel Pacific. As
mentioned briefly when we announced
our Connected Future 30 strategy, we
have completed a strategic review of this
business and are now taking action,
including to reduce costs, double down
on connectivity, and exit the majority of
our International NAS products. The
Wholesale and Enterprise International
results include restructuring costs
associated with this.

Our infrastructure businesses continued to
grow, reflecting strong customer demand.

Across the business, we delivered
strongly on costs through simplifying our
operations, reducing some roles and
improving our productivity, partly offset
by cost inflation. Core fixed costs
decreased by 4.7 per cent or $306 million
in the year. Cumulatively we reduced our
core fixed costs by $428 million since
FY22.

6. Underlying EBITDA, profit and EPS exclude guidance adjustments.
7. Cash EPS defined as cash earnings (underlying EBITDA after lease amortisation, less BAU capex, spectrum amortisation, finance costs, tax and minorities) per share.
8. Underlying ROIC calculated as NOPAT as a percentage of total capital, excluding guidance adjustments (refer to footnote 1) less tax.

9. Underlying results - refer to footnote 1.

As we close out our T25 strategy, we
reflect on the strong momentum and
foundation we’ve built, which comes
from continuing to improve and deliver
for customers. We set a high bar across
our four T25 pillars, to lift customer
experience, extend our network
leadership, deliver sustainable growth
and value, and be the place our people
want to work. We also successfully
delivering on our T25 financial growth
targets across underlying EBITDA, EPS,
ROIC and cost-out.

Significant progress on T25 in the year
included:

¢ We improved Episode NPS by 1 point to
+47 and exceeded our T25 target of +40

¢ We expanded our mobile coverage to 3
million square km with 99.7 per cent
Australian population coverage

e We achieved 95 per cent of 5G
population coverage, with 66 per cent of
our mobile traffic on 5G in June 2025

¢ We continued extending our Intercity
Fibre Network across Australia, with
Sydney to Canberra route ready for
service and more than 4,400km of fibre
in the ground as at June 2025.

10. BAU capex is measured on an accrued basis and excludes spectrum, guidance adjustments, strategic investment, externally funded capex and capitalised leases.
11. Strategic investment capex is measured on an accrued basis and relates to the Intercity Fibre Network and Viasat projects.
12. Free cashflow after lease payments (FCFaL) before strategic investment - refer to footnotes 3 and 4.
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Dividend

On 14 August 2025, the Directors of
Telstra Group Limited resolved to pay

a fully franked final dividend of 9.5 cents
per share in line with the interim dividend
for the first half of the financial year.

The total dividend for FY25 is 19 cents
per share representing a 5.6 per cent
increase on the prior year. The total
dividend represents a 101 per cent payout
ratio on EPS. Shares will trade excluding
entitlement to the final dividend from

27 August 2025 with payment to be
made on 25 September 2025.

Other information

We use non-IFRS financial information
(being “Underlying EBITDA”, “Underlying
EBITDAaL”, “Underlying NPAT”
“Underlying EPS”, “Underlying ROIC?”,
“Underlying income”, “EBITDAaL”, “FCFaL
before strategic investment”, “Cash
EBIT”, “Cash earnings” and “Cash EPS”)
as measures to better reflect what we
consider to be our underlying
performance. This non-IFRS financial
information is consistent with how
management reviews financial
performance with the Board and the
investment community. We include these
measures in these materials to help
readers better compare our underlying
financial performance with that of
previous periods. Underlying EBITDA and
FCFaL before strategic investment also
show how the business performed on the
same basis as the guidance we provided
to the market.

Underlying earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation
(Underlying EBITDA) is used to assess
our operational profitability. EBITDA after
leases (EBITDAaL) and Underlying
EBITDAaL are used to assess our
operational profitability after leases.
Underlying net profit after tax
(Underlying NPAT) is used to assess our
operational financial performance and
reflects underlying EBITDA less interest,
tax, depreciation and amortisation.
Underlying earnings per share
(Underlying EPS) is used to assess our
operational financial performance on a
per share basis.

Underlying return on invested capital
(Underlying ROIC) is used to assess our
efficiency at allocating capital and
reflects underlying net operating profit
after tax (Underlying NOPAT) as a
percentage of total capital. Underlying
income is used to assess our operational
income performance.

Free cashflow after lease payments
(FCFal) before strategic investment is
used to assess our underlying cash
generation and reflects operating cash
flows, less investing cashflows, less
payments for lease liabilities and less

Operating and financial review

strategic investment. Cash earnings before interest and tax (Cash EBIT), Cash
earnings and Cash EPS are also used to assess our underlying cash generation.

Cash EBIT reflects Underlying EBITDAaL less business-as-usual capex and spectrum
amortisation. Cash earnings reflects Cash EBIT less finance costs, tax and minorities.
Cash EPS reflects Cash earnings on per share basis.

All non-IFRS underlying measures, EBITDAaL, FCFaL before strategic investment,
Cash EBIT, Cash earnings and Cash EPS exclude material one-offs such as mergers
and acquisitions (M&A), disposals, impairments, spectrum, restructuring costs and
such other items as determined by the Board and management. An explanation of
each adjustment and a reconciliation to our reported IFRS financial information for
Underlying EBITDA and FCFaL before strategic investment is set out in the “Guidance
versus reported results” schedule. The adjustments set out in the schedule have been
reviewed by our auditor for consistency with the basis set out in the guidance we
provided to the market.

The following commentary is provided for statutory and management financial
results. Comments are versus the prior year unless otherwise stated. Consistent with
information presented for internal management reporting purposes, the result of each
segment is measured based on its EBITDA contribution, and the result of each product
is measured based on its underlying EBITDA contribution.

Segment performance

We report segment information on the same basis as our internal management
reporting structure as at the reporting date. Segment comparatives reflect any
organisational changes that have occurred since the end of the prior financial year to
present a like-for-like view. Refer to Note 2.1.1in the Financial Report for further detail.

Segment total income breakdown (including internal income)

2% 2%
16%

2% 42% 2%

10% FY25 10%

41%

17%

1% 1%

@ Telstra Consumer @ Telstra Business @ Telstra Enterprise Australia

@ Telstra International Networks, IT and Product Telstra InfraCo All Other

FY25 FY24"™ Change
Total income $m $m %
Telstra Consumer™ 10,862 10,722 1.3
Telstra Business™ 2,867 2,856 0.4
Telstra Enterprise Australia™ 4,485 4,612 (2.8)
Telstra International™ 2,587 2,578 0.3
Networks, IT and Product™ 434 466 (6.9)
Telstra InfraCo™ 4159 4132 0.7
All Other™ 640 653 (2.0)
Total management reported income 26,034 26,019 041
Transactions between segments (2,424) (2,537) 4.5
Total income (excluding finance income) 23,610 23,482 0.5

13.Refer to Note 2.1.2 in the Financial Report for further detail.
14.Includes internal income.
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Total income (excluding finance income)
increased by 0.5 per cent to $23,610
million including growth across Mobile,
Amplitel and International. Income
growth was partly offset by declines
across Fixed — C&SB, Fixed — Enterprise,
Fixed — Active Wholesale and InfraCo
Fixed.

Total management reported income
includes internal income between
segments eliminated from total income.
Internal income decreased by 4.5 per
cent to $2,424 million (FY24 $2,537
million) including intercompany
agreements post our corporate
restructure related to internal charges for
infrastructure, power, international
capacity and other services. Internal
income comprised $3 million in Telstra
Consumer (FY24 $4 million), $1 million in
Telstra Business (FY24 $1 million), $31
million in Telstra Enterprise Australia
(FY24 $45 million), $215 million in Telstra
International (FY24 $223 million), $407
million in Networks, IT and Product (FY24
$439 million), $1,523 million in Telstra
InfraCo (FY24 $1,552 million) and $244
million in ‘All Other’ (FY24 $273 million).

Telstra Consumer

Telstra Consumer provides
telecommunication and technology
products and services to consumer
customers in Australia using mobile
and fixed network technologies. It also
operates contact centres, retail stores,
a retail distribution network, digital
channels, distribution systems and the
Telstra Plus customer loyalty program
in Australia.

Income increased by 1.3 per cent to
$10,862 million including 2.7 per cent
growth in Mobile income partly offset by
1.4 per cent decline in Fixed - C&SB
income. Refer to product performance
section for more details.

Telstra Business

Telstra Business provides
telecommunication and technology
products and services to small and
medium businesses in Australia. It also
operates Telstra Business Technology
Centres and digital channel partner
network servicing small and medium
business customers.

Income increased by 0.4 per cent to
$2,867 million including 2.3 per cent
growth in Mobile income, partly offset by
0.7 per cent decline in Fixed - C&SB
income from small business customers
and 10.0 per cent decline in Fixed -
Enterprise income from medium business
customers across Data and Connectivity
(DAC) and Network Applications and
Services (NAS). Refer to product
performance section for more details.

Telstra Enterprise Australia

Telstra Enterprise Australia provides
telecommunication services, advanced
technology solutions and network
capacity and management to
government, enterprise and large
business customers in Australia. It
provides advanced technology solutions
through DAC and NAS products such as
unified communications, cloud, security,
industry solutions, and integrated and
monitoring services.

Income decreased by 2.8 per cent to
$4,485 million including 3.1 per cent
decline in Mobile income and 1.8 per cent
decline in Fixed - Enterprise income
across DAC and NAS. Refer to product
performance section for more details.

Telstra International

Telstra International provides a full suite
of telecommunication services, including
satellite, advanced technology solutions,
network capacity and management,
cloud, security, industry solutions,
integrated and monitoring services to
government and enterprise and business
customers outside of Australia. It
provides wholesale services outside of
Australia, including voice and data, and
manages Telstra’s networks outside of
Australia, including international subsea
cables, in conjunction with Networks, IT
and Product and Telstra InfraCo
segments. It provides telecommunication,
media and technology products and
services to consumer, business and
government customers in the South
Pacific through Digicel Pacific Limited
and its controlled entities (Digicel
Pacific).

International income increased by 0.3 per
cent to $2,587 million in Australian
dollars (AUD) including 4.4 per cent
growth in International Wholesale and
Enterprise external income to $1,712
million, partly offset by 3.6 per cent
decline in International Wholesale and
Enterprise internal income to $215 million
and 7.7 per cent decline in Digicel Pacific
income to $660 million. On a constant
currency basis, Digicel Pacific revenue
decreased by 3 per cent. Refer to product
performance section for more details.

Networks, IT and Product

Networks, IT and Product consists of two
operating segments: Global Networks
and Technology (GN&T), and Product and
Technology (P&T). GN&T supports the
other segments and their respective
revenue generating activities by
maintaining high level of reliability and
security of our global network platforms
and cloud infrastructure. It maintains our
networks and is accountable for our
network intelligence and automation. P&T

Operating and financial review

works with other functions to create and
deliver products and solutions for
customers across all segments. It has
accountability for product strategy,
innovation, development, and life cycle
where products are incubated and
brought to scale. It is also accountable
for Telstra’s IT and Data & Al functions
and our digital platforms underpinning
our customer digital experience.

Income decreased by 6.9 per cent to
$434 million including 7.3 per cent
reduction in internal income to $407
million.

Telstra InfraCo

Telstra InfraCo operates in Australia and
provides telecommunication products
and services delivered over Telstra
networks to other carriers, carriage
service providers and internet service
providers. It provides other Telstra
functions and wholesale customers with
access to network infrastructure within
Telstra InfraCo’s asset accountabilities.
It operates the fixed passive network
infrastructure including data centres,
exchanges, poles, ducts, pits and pipes,
and fibre network. It designs and
constructs fibre, exchanges and other
infrastructure. It provides nbn co with
long-term access to certain components
of our infrastructure under the
Infrastructure Services Agreement, and
operates the passive and physical mobile
tower assets owned or operated by the
Amplitel business.

Income increased by 0.7 per cent to
$4,159 million due to growth in recurring
nbn Definitive Agreements (nbn DAs)
receipts in line with CPI, growth in
Amplitel income, and growth in wholesale
mobility income. Revenue declined from
Fixed — Active Wholesale legacy
products, and Telstra InfraCo legacy
asset disposals, commercial and
recoverable works and internal access
charges. Refer to product performance
section for more details.

All Other

Certain items of income and expense
relating to multiple functions are
recorded by our corporate areas and
included in the ‘All Other’ category. This
category also includes Telstra Health.

Income decreased by 2.0 per cent to
$640 million including $29 million
decrease in internal income and lower
Telstra Energy income. Telstra Health
income increased by $52 million to $372
million.
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Product performance

Product income breakdown (including
internal income)

29 5%

10%

10% 42%
1%
13%
17%
{7
29 5%
10% 41%

14%

17%

@ Mobile
@ Fixed - CasB
@ Fixed - Enterprise
Fixed — Active Wholesale
@ international
@ InfraCo — Fixed
Amplitel

Other
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FY25 FY24 Change
Product income $m $m %
Mobile 11,015 10,722 2.7
Fixed — C&SB 4,299 4,355 (1.3)
Fixed — Enterprise 3,445 3,637 (2.6)
Fixed — Active Wholesale 349 366 (4.6)
International 2,587 2,578 0.3
InfraCo Fixed 2,710 2,746 (1.3)
Amplitel 470 453 3.8
Other 1,159 1,262 (8.2)
Total management reported income 26,034 26,019 041
Eliminations (2,424) (2,537) 4.5
Total income (excluding finance income) 23,610 23,482 0.5

FY25 FY24 Change
Product underlying EBITDA $m $m %
Mobile 5,261 5,026 4.7
Fixed — C&SB 363 254 42.9
Fixed — Enterprise 239 136 75.7
Fixed — Active Wholesale 82 94 (12.8)
International 678 774 (12.4)
InfraCo — Fixed 1,813 1,759 3.1
Amplitel 382 369 3.5
Other 197) (169) (16.6)
Underlying EBITDA™ 8,621 8,243 4.6
Guidance adjustments 14) (715) n/m
Total EBITDA 8,607 7,528 14.3

15. Underlying EBITDA, profit and EPS exclude guidance adjustments.
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Mobile

Mobile income increased by 2.7 per cent
to $11,015 million including 3.5 per cent
services revenue growth. Growth in
services revenue was achieved across
postpaid handheld, prepaid handheld,
Internet of Things (loT) and wholesale.
Retail mobile Services in Operation
(SI0s) increased by 762,000 (including
342,000 in the second half) to 24.9
million, including 8.9 million postpaid
handheld retail SIOs. Hardware revenue
held at $2,359 million including sales of
mobile handsets, accessories and
wearables.

Postpaid handheld services revenue
increased by 2.8 per cent to $5,793
million with a 2.5 per cent Average
Revenue Per User (ARPU) increase to
$54.15, including consumer and business
price rises, and a 56,000 decrease in SIOs
(including 104,000 decrease in the
second half). Postpaid handheld SIOs in
the current year were impacted in
aggregate by 162,000 by re-classification
of 66,000 services to loT and mobile
broadband, deactivation of 64,000 Pay As
You Go (PAYG) services no longer in use,
and disconnection of 32,000 services
from closure of the 3G network.
Excluding these impacts, Postpaid SIOs
increased in the current year by 106,000.

Prepaid handheld revenue increased by
7.7 per cent to $1,285 million with an 8.4
per cent ARPU increase driven by price
rises, partly offset by a 76,000 decrease
in unique users (including 68,000 in the
second half). The number of prepaid
handheld unique users in the current year
was impacted by disconnection of 17,000
services from closure of the 3G network.

Mobile broadband revenue decreased by
8.2 per cent to $595 million due to 6.1 per
cent decline in SIOs and 3.4 per cent
decline in ARPU to $18.12.

loT revenue increased by 1.4 per cent to
$293 million with SIOs increasing by 1.2
million (including 698,000 in the second
half) to 9.8 million.

Wholesale revenue increased by 18.6 per
cent to $522 million driven by 217,000
increase in unique users (including
138,000 in the second half) and 5 per
cent Wholesale ARPU growth. Wholesale
unique users include postpaid SIOs and
prepaid unique users. Wholesale unique
users increased to 2.6 million from the
continued popularity of Mobile Virtual
Network Operator’s (MVNO) plans on the
Telstra Wholesale mobile network.

Mobile EBITDA increased by 4.7 per cent
to $5,261 million due to high margin
services revenue growth.

Fixed — Consumer and Small Business
(C&SB)

Fixed — C&SB income decreased by 1.3
per cent to $4,299 million. Core
connectivity revenue increased by 1.2 per
cent to $3,706 million including revenue
from services for which we are a reseller
(including nbn) and revenue from
services on the Telstra network. C&SB
bundles and standalone data ARPU
increased by 5.7 per cent to $87.08 driven
by price rises, and SlOs declined by
118,000 (including 62,000 in the second
half) to 3.2 million. C&SB standalone
voice SlOs declined by 42,000 (including
20,000 in the second half). 5G fixed
wireless SIOs grew by 36,000 (including
16,000 in the second half) to 121,000.

Consumer content and services revenue
decreased by 17.6 per cent to $444
million including a 9.2 per cent decline in
Foxtel from Telstra SIOs. Business
applications and services revenue
decreased by 2.6 per cent to $149 million.

Fixed — C&SB EBITDA increased by 42.9
per cent to $363 million due to cost-out,
C&SB bundles and standalone data
ARPU growth, and growing contribution
from fixed wireless, partly offset by SIO
declines across C&SB bundles,
standalone data and standalone voice.

Fixed — Enterprise

Fixed — Enterprise income declined by 2.6
per cent to $3,445 million due mostly to
DAC declines. DAC income declined by
9.2 per cent to $679 million driven by
ARPU compression from competition,
renewals and technology change. DAC
SIOs reduced by 5.6 per cent or 8,000
(including 3,000 in the second half)
mostly in legacy.

NAS income decreased by 0.8 per cent to
$2,766 million due to declines across
calling applications and equipment sales,
partly offset by growth in managed
services, professional services and cloud.
NAS income includes $118 million in the
current year related to Versent Pty Ltd
and its controlled entities (Versent)
(FY24 $81 million). NAS calling
applications revenue decreased by 5.6
per cent to $389 million due to ongoing
market shift from traditional voice to
integrated video and digital solutions.
NAS equipment sales revenue decreased
by 25.5 per cent to $272 million due to
strategic focus on higher margin
products. NAS managed services and
maintenance revenue increased by 4.2
per cent to $821 million including
Versent. NAS professional services
revenue increased by 6.8 per cent to $537
million including Versent. NAS cloud
applications revenue increased by 4.6 per

Operating and financial review

cent to $385 million due to growth in
demand for partner cloud products
including Amazon Web Services and
Microsoft Azure.

Fixed — Enterprise EBITDA increased by
75.7 per cent to $239 million due to NAS
EBITDA growth partly offset by DAC
EBITDA decline. DAC EBITDA declined by
$9 million to $86 million due to revenue
reduction partly offset by lower costs.
NAS EBITDA increased by $112 million to
$153 million due to cost-out, revenue
growth in managed services, professional
services and cloud, partly offset by
decline in calling applications revenue.

Fixed — Active Wholesale

Fixed — Active Wholesale income
declined by 4.6 per cent to $349 million
largely due to legacy product decline.
DAC revenue decreased by 1.2 per cent to
$256 million reflecting growth in
wavelength services, offset by decline in
wideband ethernet access and managed
lease line product revenue. Legacy calling
and fixed revenue declined by 13.1 per
cent to $93 million due to decline in
legacy copper access and wholesale nbn
resale.

Fixed — Active Wholesale EBITDA
decreased by 12.8 per cent to $82 million
due to continued legacy copper access
revenue decline, partly offset by cost-out.

International

International income increased by 0.3 per
cent to $2,587 million including increase
in International Wholesale and Enterprise
income, partly offset by decline in Digicel
Pacific income. Digicel Pacific income
decreased by 7.7 per cent to $660 million
including devaluation of Papua New
Guinean Kina. On a constant currency
basis, Digicel Pacific revenue decreased
by 3 per cent due to reduction in Papua
New Guinea (PNG) ARPU, partly offset by
overall SIO growth of 3 per cent.

International Wholesale and Enterprise
income increased by 3.4 per cent to
$1,927 million, including 4.4 per cent or
$72 million increase in external income to
$1,712 million. The increase included a
$43 million non-cash gain from Tianjin
data centre lease and positive foreign
exchange impacts. On a constant
currency basis and excluding non-cash
gain from Tianjin data centre lease,
International Wholesale and Enterprise
external income increased by 0.6 per cent
due to growth in DAC income, partly
offset by ongoing legacy voice decline,
commencing the exit of NAS products
and portfolio refocus. International
internal income decreased by 3.6 per cent
to $215 million.
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International EBITDA decreased by 12.4
per cent to $678 million including 8.7 per
cent or $31 million decline in Digicel
Pacific EBITDA, and 15.6 per cent or $65
million decline in International Wholesale
and Enterprise EBITDA (excluding non-
cash gain from Tianjin data centre lease
and impairment of London Hosting
Centre assets). In constant currency and
normalised for earnout adjustments,
Digicel Pacific EBITDA decreased by 3.5
per cent due to revenue decline partly
offset by reduced costs. In constant
currency, International Wholesale and
Enterprise EBITDA decreased by 10.9 per
cent due to increased restructuring costs
associated with commencing the exit of
NAS products, portfolio refocus, and
timing benefits in the prior year that did
not repeat this year.

InfraCo Fixed

InfraCo Fixed income decreased by 1.3
per cent to $2,710 million. Recurring nbn
DAs income increased by 5.4 per cent to
$1,102 million reflecting CPI linked price
increases. Recurring nbn DAs income
includes infrastructure services across
ducts, racks and fibre provided to nbn co.

Legacy asset disposals revenue
decreased by 29.6 per cent to $112 million
due to reduction in property divestments
and lower copper sales. Copper income
reported net of costs in the current year
and gross of costs in the prior year.

Commercial and recoverable works
revenue decreased by 6.3 per cent to
$224 million. Internal infrastructure
access revenue decreased by 3.5 per cent
to $1,117 million, and other external
revenue increased by 6.9 per cent to $155
million including growth in dark fibre,
ground station and non-nbn duct access
revenue, partly offset by decline in Telstra
Exchange Building Access revenue.

InfraCo Fixed EBITDA increased by 3.1 per
cent to $1,813 million reflecting growth in
recurring nbn DAs and cost-out. InfraCo
Fixed EBITDA after leases (EBITDAaL)
increased by 2.9 per cent to $1,735
million. Excluding legacy network
disposals and commercial and
recoverable works, InfraCo Fixed
EBITDAaL increased by 5.1 per cent.

Amplitel

Amplitel income grew by 3.8 per cent to
$470 million. Amplitel external revenue
increased 4.2 per cent to $100 million
including contracted growth, new tower
builds and continued demand, partly
offset by gains from customer contracts
of $7 million in the prior year. Amplitel
internal revenue grew by 3.6 per cent to
$370 million.

Amplitel EBITDA increased by 3.5 per
cent to $382 million with contracted
growth, new tower builds and continued
demand, partly offset by gains from
customer contracts in the prior year.

Operating and financial review

Amplitel EBITDAaL increased by 4.9 per
cent to $301 million. Excluding gains from
customer contracts in the prior year,
Amplitel EBITDAaL increased by 7.5 per
cent.

Other

Other income decreased by 8.2 per cent
to $1,159 million including internal and
external income. ‘Other’ internal income
decreased by $85 million to $696 million.
‘Other’ external income decreased by $18
million to $463 million including $34
million reduction in gains related to tower
access agreements and lower Telstra
Energy income. Telstra Health income
increased by $52 million to $372 million.

Other EBITDA loss increased by $28
million to $197 million including ongoing
costs not allocated to product. The
increase in the loss was due to $34
million reduction in gains related to tower
access agreements and lower
contribution from Telstra Energy, partly
offset by decreased costs associated with
corporate adjustments.

Eliminations

Eliminations for internal income
decreased to $2,424 million comprising
$1,117 million in InfraCo Fixed, $370
million in Amplitel, $215 million in
International, $26 million in Fixed —
Enterprise NAS and $696 million in Other.
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Expense performance

Operating and financial review

FY25 FY24 Change
Operating expenses $m $m $m %
nbn payments 1,954 1,975 1) .1
Non-nbn 5,825 5,960 (135) (2.3)
Sales costs 7,779 7,935 (156) (2.0)
Core'® 6,235 6,541 (306) “4.7)
Other"” 9N 666 245 36.8
Fixed costs 7146 7,207 61 (0.8)
Underlying 14,925 15,142 (217) 1.4)
Guidance adjustments' 61 796 (735) n/m
Total 14,986 15,938 (952) (6.0)
Underlying operating expenses $m"’
15,142
-21 I 245 14,295
-306
FY24 Sales costs— Sales costs — Fixed costs — Fixed costs — FY25
nbn payments non-nbn core other

Underlying operating expenses decreased
by $217 million or 1.4 per cent due to
lower core fixed and sales costs, partly
offset by higher other fixed costs.

Total operating expenses decreased by
$952 million to $14,986 million due to
decrease in underlying operating
expenses and guidance adjustments.
Guidance adjustments in the prior year
totalled $796 million and included $438
million for impairments, $247 million for
restructuring costs and $111 million for
M&A. Guidance adjustments in the
current year totalled $61 million and
included $50 million for impairment of
London Hosting Centre assets and $9
million related to M&A.

Sales costs, which are direct costs
associated with revenue and customer
growth, decreased by 2.0 per cent to

16.Fixed costs - core includes commissions.

$7,779 million. Payments to nbn reduced
by $21 million due to decline in C&SB nbn
SlOs. Non-nbn sales costs decreased by
$135 million due to lower NAS equipment
sales and consumer content and services
costs, partly offset by increased NAS
cloud applications and managed security
resale costs.

Core fixed costs decreased by 4.7 per
cent or $306 million including reduction
in full time equivalents (FTE) related to
productivity, the organisational changes
and action on cost announced in May
2024 and reduction in commissions,
partly offset by cost inflation (labour and
non-labour) and increased business-as-
usual redundancies. Productivity
included process simplification and
improvement across back of house and
support functions. Commissions
decreased by 12.2 per cent or $60 million

including insourcing of Telstra branded
retail stores and acquisition of Boost Tel
Pty Limited and its controlled entities
(Boost Mobile). Business-as-usual
redundancy expenses increased by $37
million mostly in core fixed costs
including due to commencing the exit of
International NAS products and TE reset.
Core fixed costs decreased by $428
million from FY23 to FY25, exceeding our
T25 $350 million target.

Other fixed costs increased by $245
million due to inclusion of prior year
acquisitions, including $144 million for
both Versent and Telstra Business
Technology Centres, $56 million increase
in Telstra Health costs, changes in bond
rate affecting employee liabilities, foreign
exchange impact and other corporate
adjustments.

17. Fixed costs - other includes Telstra Health, corporate adjustments and acquisitions in prior years including Digicel Pacific, Versent and Telstra Business Technology

Centres.
18.Guidance adjustments - refer to footnote 1.
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Operating expenses on a statutory reported basis

Operating and financial review

Our progress on achieving our T25 productivity target is reported through the above operating expenses table. The detail below
provides commentary on operating expenses as disclosed in our statutory accounts.

FY25 FY24 Change
Operating expenses on a statutory reported basis $m $m %
Labour 3,990 4,291 (7.0)
Goods and services purchased 8,212 8,441 @.7)
Net impairment losses on financial assets 118 92 28.3
Other expenses 2,666 3,114 14.4)
Total 14,986 15,938 (6.0)

Labour Other expenses Depreciation and amortisation

Total labour expenses decreased by 7.0
per cent or $301 million to $3,990 million
due to reduced direct and indirect FTE
and $210 million decrease in redundancy
expenses, partly offset by increased
wages as agreed in our Enterprise
Agreements. Total direct FTE decreased
by 9.5 per cent or 3,208 (including 1,323
in the second half) to 30,553.
Redundancy expenses decreased mostly
due to the prior year including $247
million for restructuring costs associated
with the organisational changes and
action on cost announced in May 2024
(including reset of our Enterprise
business). Business-as-usual redundancy
expenses increased by $37 million
including due to commencing the exit of
International NAS products and TE reset.

Goods and services purchased

Total goods and services purchased
decreased by 2.7 per cent or $229 million
to $8,212 million. Commissions decreased
by 12.2 per cent or $60 million including
to insourcing of Telstra branded retail
stores and acquisition of Boost Mobile.
Cost of goods sold, which includes
mobile handsets and accessories,
tablets, mobile broadband hardware, loT
hardware, modems, and other fixed
hardware, decreased by 6.6 per cent or
$189 million due to lower NAS equipment
sales, and consumer content and services
costs. Network payments and other
goods and services purchased increased
by 0.4 per cent or $20 million due to
increased sales of NAS cloud applications
and managed security resale, partly
offset by decline in nbn and other
network payments.

Total other expenses decreased by

14.4 per cent or $448 million to $2,666
million. Impairment losses (excluding
net losses on financial assets) decreased
by $380 million mostly due to the prior
year including $438 million for
impairments related to Telstra Enterprise
strategic review, office building leases
and Retail Energy business, partly offset
by $50 million in the current year for
impairment of London Hosting Centre
assets. Excluding impairments, other
expenses decreased by $68 million
including due to cost reduction
initiatives, partly offset by inclusion of
prior year acquisitions, including Versent
and Telstra Business Technology Centres,
and increased Telstra Health costs.

Foreign currency impacts

For the purposes of reporting our
consolidated results, the translation
of foreign operations denominated in
foreign currency to AUD increased
our sales revenue by $27 million.
This foreign exchange impact was
partly offset by an increase in expenses
by $22 million across labour, goods
and services purchased, and other
expenses resulting in a favourable
EBITDA contribution of $5 million.

Depreciation and amortisation increased
by 4.7 per cent or $212 million to $4,691
million. Amortisation of intangible assets
increased by $246 million to $1,677
million including amortisation related to
increased capex on shorter life IT assets
and FY24 spectrum purchases.
Depreciation of property plant and
equipment decreased by $15 million to
$2,414 million. Depreciation of right-of-
use assets decreased by $19 million to
$600 million due to property exits
including from office buildings. This year
included a $59 million increase in
depreciation of property plant and
equipment and a $30 million decrease in
amortisation of intangible assets
associated with assessment of useful
lives.

Net finance costs

Net finance costs increased by 9.4 per
cent or $55 million to $639 million.
Interest on borrowings increased by $55
million to $711 million due to higher
average gross debt. Our average gross
borrowing rate held at 5.0 per cent. Other
net financing cost items (as set out in
note 4.4.3 in the Financial Report)
decreased by $9 million to $31 million,
including $19 million increase in net gain
on financial instruments included in
measurements. Finance income
decreased by $9 million to $103 million.

Income tax

Income tax increased by 38 per cent to
$934 million due to higher taxable profits
and an effective tax rate of 28.5 per cent.
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Cash flows

Operating and financial review

Summary statement of cash flows

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

— Other investing cash flows
Free cashflow

Net cash used in financing activities

— Capital expenditure (before investments)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

FY25 FY24 Change
$m $m %
7,324 7,049 3.9
(3,368) (4,990) 32.5
(3,874) (5,064) 23.5
506 74 n/m
3,956 2,059 921
(3,997) (1,942) n/m
41) 17 n/m
1,046 932 12.2
7 (©))] n/m

1,012 1,046 3.3)

Free cashflow provided by operating and
investing activities was $3,956 million
representing an increase of $1,897 million
due to increase in net cash provided by
operating activities and decrease in net
cash used in investing activities. The
decrease in net investing activities was
driven by a reduction in spend on
spectrum licences, reduction in M&A
investment, increase in proceeds from
the sale of equity accounted investments
and repayment of loans by associated
entity.

M&A investment this year included Boost
Mobile and Versent in the prior year.
Refer to Note 6.5.1(a) in the Financial
Report for further detail on Boost Mobile.
Disposals of equity accounted
investments this year included Titanium
Ventures Fund Il (Ventures II), and our
share sale and purchase agreement with
DAZN Group Limited (DAZN) to
exchange our 35 per cent interest in NXE
Australia Pty Limited (Foxtel) and its
controlled entities (NXE Group) fora 3
per cent equity interest in DAZN. Refer to
Note 6.5.1(a) in the Financial Report for
further detail on Ventures Il and Note
6.5.1(b) in the Financial Report for further
detail on NXE Group.

Net cash provided by operating activities
increased by $275 million to $7,324

million including $309 million increase in
cash generated from operations offset by

$34 million increase in income taxes paid.

The increase in net cash provided by
operating activities included higher
reported EBITDA.

Net cash used in investing activities
decreased by $1,622 million to $3,368
million. Capital expenditure (before
investments) decreased by $1,190 million
to $3,874 million including due to lower
payments for intangible assets mostly
associated with spend on spectrum
licences in the prior year. Payments for
shares in controlled entities (net of cash
acquired) decreased by $264 million due
to the acquisition of Boost Mobile this
year, offset by the acquisition of Versent
and payment of Digicel Pacific earnout in
the prior year. Proceeds from the sale of
equity accounted investments increased
by $134 million due to the disposal of our
investments in Ventures II. Net cash from
repayment of loans by associated entity
increased by $117 million mostly due to
Foxtel repaying its outstanding loans
prior to NXE Group disposal. Payments
and proceeds for other financial assets
held as investments increased by $113
million and $131 million respectively,
mostly due to term deposits.

19. Free cashflow after lease payments (FCFaL) before strategic investment - refer to footnotes 3 and 4.

Accrued business-as-usual capital
expenditure on a guidance basis was
$3,388 million or 14.9 per cent of sales
revenue. This excluded $325 million of
strategic investment for the Intercity
Fibre Network and Viasat infrastructure
projects.

Net cash used in financing activities
increased by $2,055 million to $3,997
million. This included a decrease in
proceeds from borrowings of $3,399
million, partly offset by a decrease in
repayments of borrowings of $2,388
million. Additionally, the on-market share
buy-back, completed in June 2025,
contributed $751 million (including
transaction costs) to the net cash used in
financing activities. Finance costs paid
increased by $145 million due to higher
average gross debt. Dividends paid to
equity holders of the Telstra Entity
increased by $115 million to $2,137
million.

FCFaL before strategic investment’ was
$3,433 million. FCFaL before strategic
investment excludes net proceeds from
M&A ($143 million including Ventures II
disposal and loan repayment from Foxtel,
partly offset by Boost Mobile acquisition),
spectrum payments ($57 million) and
strategic investment ($325 million), and
includes lease payments ($762 million).
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Debt position

FY25 FY25
Cash inflows $m Cash outflows $m
Euro bond 1,147 US bond 1,308
AUD bond 448 JPY private placement 62
Total debt issuance 1,595 Total debt repayments 1,370
Commercial paper (net) 680 Revolving bank facilities (net) 427
Drawings (bilateral bank loans) 150 Non-recourse borrowing facilities (net) 7
Other borrowings (net) 4 Lease liability payments 632
Total 2,429 Total 2,436

Our gross debt position was $17,457 million comprising borrowings of $14,896 million, lease liabilities of $3,099 million, partly
offset by $538 million in net derivative assets. Gross debt increased by 3.9 per cent or $659 million reflecting cash inflows of
$2,429 million (including debt issuance of $1,595 million), cash outflows $2,436 million (including debt repayments of $1,370
million), and non-cash increase in debt of $666 million mostly related to lease liabilities. Refer to Note 4.4 in the Financial Report
for further detail.

Net debt increased by 4.4 per cent or $693 million to $16,445 million reflecting the increase in gross debt and $34 million decrease
in cash holdings.

Debt servicing® was 1.9 times and within our comfort zone.

Financial settings FY25 Comfort zone

Debt servicing® 1.9x 1.75x to 2.25x

or personal use only

20. Debt servicing calculated as net debt/EBITDA.
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Financial position

Operating and financial review

Current assets
Non-current assets
Total assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets

Total equity

Return on invested capital (%)

Summary statement of financial position

Return on invested capital (%) — underlying®

FY24 FY23 Change
$m $m %
6,495 6,107 6.4
38,473 39,443 (2.5)
44,968 45,550 1.3)
11,521 11,526 (0.0)
17,131 16,672 2.8
28,652 28,198 1.6
16,316 17,352 (6.0)
16,316 17,352 (6.0)
8.5 6.8 1.7pp

8.5 8.3 0.2pp

Our balance sheet is in a strong position
with net assets of $16,316 million. Current
assets increased by 6.4 per cent to
$6,495 million. Assets classified as held
for sale increased by $390 million (and
corresponding liabilities classified as held
for sale increased by $61 million) mostly
due to the classification of Telstra Purple
Pty Ltd excluding its subsidiaries Alliance
Automation Pty Ltd, Aqura Technologies
Pty Ltd and Telstra Broadcast Services
Pty Limited (Versent disposal group).
Refer to Note 6.4 in the Financial Report
for further detail. Current tax receivables
increased by $211 million due to higher
pay as you go tax instalments. Current
trade and other receivables and contract
assets decreased by $151 million
including $215 million decrease in trade
receivables from contracts with
customers, $6 million decrease in finance
lease receivables and $32 million
decrease in other receivables, partly
offset by $29 million increase in accrued
revenue and $73 million increase in
contract assets. Cash and cash
equivalents decreased by $34 million.

Non-current assets decreased by 2.5 per
cent to $38,473 million. Investments

accounted for using the equity method
decreased by $414 million due to the
disposal of Ventures Il and our 35 per
cent interest in NXE Group, partly offset
by $50 million of new investment in
Titanium Ventures Fund Ill. Other
investments increased by $348 million
including our equity interest in DAZN.
Trade and other receivables and contract
assets decreased by $185 million
including $139 million decrease in
amounts owed by joint ventures and
associates including due to the NXE
Group disposal, $24 million decrease in
finance lease receivables and $11 million
decrease in contract assets. Non-current
derivative financial assets increased by
$270 million due to fair value gains.

Property, plant and equipment decreased
by $216 million due to depreciation
expenses exceeding additions,
impairments and other movements.
Intangible assets decreased by $646
million due to amortisation expense
exceeding additions (mostly software
assets), reclassification to assets held for
sale, and decrease in net foreign currency
exchange differences including the
impacts from the amendment of currency

denomination for the purchase price
allocation relating to the Digicel Pacific
acquisition in July 2022 (refer to Note
3.1.4 in the Financial Report for further
detail), partly offset by increase related
to the Boost Mobile acquisition.

Current liabilities decreased by 0.04 per
cent to $11,521 million. Trade and other
payables decreased by $414 million
mostly due to $359 million reduction in
trade payables and $67 million reduction
in contingent consideration. Current
borrowings increased by $597 million
mostly due to Euro bond maturing in the
next 12 months, increase in bilateral bank
loans and commercial paper, partly offset
by maturity of US bond and Japanese Yen
private placement, and repayment of
revolving bank facilities. Current other
provisions reduced by $219 million due
mostly to decrease in redundancy
provision.

Non-current liabilities increased by 2.8
per cent to $17,131 million. Non-current
borrowings increased by $439 million
mostly due to issuance of Euro and AUD
bonds, partly offset by Euro bond
maturing in the next 12 months.

21. Underlying ROIC calculated as NOPAT as a percentage of total capital, excluding guidance adjustments (refer to footnote 1) less tax.
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Guidance versus
reported results

This schedule details adjustments made to the reported results for the current and comparative periods to reflect the performance
of the business on the basis on which we provided guidance to the market, which excludes material one-offs, such as mergers and
acquisitions, disposals, impairments, spectrum, restructuring costs and such other items as determined by the Board and
management. For acquisitions, Underlying EBITDA includes earnout adjustments in the second and subsequent years following
acquisition in accordance with our policy. Free cashflow after lease payments (FCFaL) defined as ‘operating cash flows’ less
‘investing cash flows’ less ‘payments for lease liabilities’ and excludes spectrum and guidance adjustments. FY25 FCFaL guidance
includes around $300m cash outflow related to FY24 restructuring costs.

The following adjustments provide a detailed reconciliation from reported to guidance results for each guidance measure:

Underlying EBITDA Free Cashflow
FY24 FY25 FY24 FY25

$m $m $m $m

Reported EBITDA 7,528 8,607 Reported Free Cashflow 2,059 3,956
Adjustments

M&A Adjustments’ 30 (36) M&A Adjustments' 394 (143)
Telstra Enterprise reset & impairments? 438 50 | Telstra Enterprise reset & impairments? n/a n/a
Restructuring costs?® 247 0 | Restructuring costs® n/a n/a
Spectrum payments* n/a n/a | Spectrum payments* 1,284 57
Lease® n/a n/a | Lease® (751) (762)
Strategic investment® n/a n/a | Strategic investment® 261 325
Guidance Underlying EBITDA 8,243 8,621 Guidance Free Cashflow 3,247 3,433

The adjustments set out in the above tables have been reviewed by our auditor in accordance with the Australian Standard on
Review Engagements ASRE 2405 Review of Historical Financial Information Other than a Financial Report, for consistency with the
guidance basis set out on this page. Our auditors have concluded that based on their review, which is not an audit, nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the adjustments made to reported EBITDA and Free Cashflow set out in
the Market Guidance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2025 are not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the
guidance basis as set out on this page.

Notes:
1. M&A adjustments relating to acquisitions and disposals of controlled entities, joint ventures, associates and other investments and any associated net gains or losses,
and contingent consideration.

FY24 underlying EBITDA also adjusted for Versent Pty Ltd and its controlled entities (Versent) trading performance and additional operating costs related to multiple
individually immaterial Telstra Business Technology Centres acquired.

FY25 underlying EBITDA adjustment including $43m non-cash gain from Tianjin data centre lease.
M&A adjustments include income adjustments of $81m in FY24 including Versent and $47m in FY25 including non-cash gain from Tianjin data centre lease.
Free Cashflow adjusted for the following:

FY24:

— Payment for the acquisition of Versent.

— Payment for multiple individually immaterial Telstra Business Technology Centres and associated additional operating costs.
— Additional equity contribution to Silicon Quantum Computing Pty Ltd.

— Payment of ~$111m for FY23 Digicel Pacific earn-out.

FY25:

— Payment of $125m for the acquisition of Boost Tel Pty Limited and its controlled entities (Boost Mobile).
— Proceeds of $134m from the disposal of Titanium Ventures Fund Il L.P.

— Receipt of $131m loan repayment from Foxtel.

2. FY24 impairments including for Telstra Enterprise reset ($311m), right-of-use assets following a review of utilisation of our office building leases ($82m), and Retail
Energy business ($45m).

Telstra Enterprise reset including $177m for deferred contract costs and $134m for goodwill, software and inventory.
FY25 impairments including $50m impairment of London Hosting Centre assets.

3. FY24 Adjustments, over and above normal business as usual redundancies, that relate to organisational changes to simplify operations and improve productivity.

4. Adjustment relating to the impact on free cashflow associated with our spectrum purchases and renewals for FY25 including:
— $56m instalment payment for our national spectrum licence in the 26 GHz band.
— $0.6m payments for various ACMA licences.
— $0.3m payments for area-wide and apparatus licence in various spectrum bands.

5. Adjustment to Free Cashflow for payment of lease liabilities (including principal and interest).
6. Adjustment to Free Cashflow for strategic investment capex measured on an accrued basis and relates to the Intercity Fibre Network and Viasat projects.

n/a Adjustment is not relevant to the respective guidance measure.
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Directors'

Directors' Report

Report

In accordance with a resolution of the Board, the Directors present their report on the consolidated entity
(referred to as we, us, our, Telstra or the Telstra Group) consisting of Telstra Group Limited (the Company or
the Telstra Entity) and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the year ended 30 June 2025. Financial
comparisons used in this report are of results for the year ended 30 June 2025 compared with the results for

the year ended 30 June 2024.

The historical financial information included in this Directors’ Report has been extracted from the audited
Financial Report accompanying this Directors’ Report.

Principal activity

Our principal activity during the
financial year 2025 was to provide
telecommunications and information
services for domestic and international
customers. There has been no significant
change in the nature of this activity
during the year.

Review and results of operations

Information on the operations and
financial position for the Telstra Group is
set out in the Operating and Financial
Review (OFR), comprising the Chair and
CEO’s message, FY25 highlights, FY25
financial performance, Strategy and
performance, Our material risks, Outlook
and Full year results and operations
review sections accompanying this
Directors’ Report.

Dividend

On 20 February 2025, the Directors
resolved to pay a fully franked interim
dividend for the financial year 2025 of
9.5 cents per share. On 14 August 2025,
the Directors resolved to pay a fully
franked final dividend for the financial
year 2025 of 9.5 cents per share ($1,081
million). This brings the total dividend
for the financial year 2025 to 19 cents
per share, up 5.6% on the prior year.

The dividends declared by the Board
in financial year 2025 are consistent
with the objectives of our capital
management framework, which are

to maximise returns for shareholders,
maintain financial strength and retain
financial flexibility. The following
principles underpinning our capital
management framework were updated
as part of our new strategy, Connected
Future 30, and are:

e committed to balance sheet settings
consistent with an A band credit rating

e disciplined business-as-usual capex to
support core business growth

e sustainable and growing dividend
(prefer fully-franked)

¢ disciplined portfolio management
and strategic investment

¢ use balance sheet capacity for
additional shareholder returns.

Further information regarding the financial year 2025 dividends is set out in the Full
year results and operations review accompanying this Directors’ Report. The record
date for the final dividend will be 28 August 2025, with payment to be made on 25
September 2025. Shares will trade excluding entitlement to the final dividend on 27
August 2025

The Board determined that the Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP) will continue to
operate for the final dividend for the financial year 2025. The election date for
participation in the DRP is 29 August 2025.

Dividends paid during the year were as follows:

Fully franked
dividend per = Total dividend
Dividend Date resolved Date paid share ($m)

Total final
dividend for the 26 September
year ended 30 15 August 2024 2024 9.0 cents 1,040
June 2024
Total interim
dividend for the 20 February
year ended 30 2025 28 March 2025 9.5 cents 1,097
June 2025

On-market share buy-back

On 20 February 2025, we announced an on-market share buy-back of up to $750 million,
consistent with our capital management framework. The on-market share buy-back
commenced on 12 March 2025 and completed on 18 June 2025 with a total of
169,398,366 shares bought back, at an average price per share of $4.43.

Significant changes in the state of affairs

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of Telstra during the financial
year 2025.

Business strategies, prospects and likely developments

The OFR sets out information on Telstra’s business strategies and prospects for future
financial years and refers to likely developments in Telstra’s operations and the
expected results of those operations in future financial years. Information in the OFR
is provided to enable shareholders to make an informed assessment of the business
strategies and prospects for future financial years of the Telstra Group. Detail that
could give rise to likely material detriment to Telstra (for example, information that is
commercially sensitive, is confidential or could give a third party a commercial
advantage) has not been included. Other than the information set out in the OFR,
information about other likely developments in Telstra's operations and the expected
results of those operations in future financial years has not been included.
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Events occurring after the Board and Committee meeting attendance

end of the financial year Details of the number of meetings held by the Board and its Committees during

The Directors are not aware of any financial year 2025, and attendance by Directors, are set out below:

matter or circumstance that has arisen

since the end of the financial year that, Board Committees™®

in their opinion, has significantly

affected, or may significantly affect in Scheguled UHSChf.dUIed Nominati RPeople a?.d
future years, Telstra’s operations, the meetings meetings omination emuneration
results of those operations or the state a b a b a b a b
of Telstra’s affairs, other than: Craig W Dunn 10 10 ] ; 5 5 B @)
e the final dividend for the financial year -

2025 and that the DRP will operate in Vieki Brady 10 10 ! ! - ®) - @

respect of that dividend Eelco Blok 10 10 1 1 5 5 1 1
e the entering into of a legally binding Maxine 10 10 1 1 5 5 1 101

agreement to sell a 75 per cent Brenner

interest in our controlled entities Roy H 10 10 1 1 5 5 B B

within the Versent disposal group Chestnutt
e the announcement of an on-market David Lamont 5 5 1 1 3 2 - -

share buy-back of up to $1. billiqn to Ming Long 10 10 1 1 5 3 3 3

be conducted during the financial .

year 2026. Bridget 10 5 1 1 5 2 4 2

Loudon?
Refer to note 7.5 to the financial ) bi
statements in our 2025 Financial Report Elana Rubin 10 10 L L 5 5 4 4
for details. NlekJanavan 4 4 B _ . . 5 2
Damme
. . Total
Details of Directors and meetings 10 1 5 4
executives held
The changes to the Directors of the
Company during the financial year 2025 Committees'®
and up to the date of this report were:
. ) Risk and
¢ Niek Jan van Damme retired as a non- Audit and Risk* Audit* Sustainability*

executive Director on 15 October 2024.

Mr van Damme joined the Board in a b a b a b

October 2018 and served as a member Craig W Dunn 4 4 1 1 _ @)

of the Nomination Committee and the e

People and Remuneration Committee. Vicki Brady - * - m - @
« David Lamont joined as a non- Eelco Blok - & - - - -

executive Director on 3 December Maxine 4 4 _ B 9 2

2024 and serves as Chair of the Audit Brenner

Committee and as a member of the

T ‘ - Roy H 4 4 2 2

Nomination Committee and Risk & Chestnutt - -

Sustainability Committee. David Lamont® 5 5 1 1 5 5
Information about our Directors and Ming L 4 4 1 ; 5 5
Senior Executives is provided as ing Long
follows: Bridget

L ) - - - - - Q)]
. oudon
e names of our current Directors and -

details of their qualifications, Elana Rubin - (©)] - - - M

experience, special responsibilities, Niek Jan van

periods of service and directorships of Damme? - m - - - -

other listed companies are set out in )

he Board of Directors section Tota :

t . T meetings 4 1 2

accompanying this Directors’ Report held

¢ details of Director and Senior
Executive remuneration are set out in
the Remuneration Report, which
forms part of this Directors’ Report.

Column a: number of meetings held while a member. Column b: number of meetings attended.

Committee meetings are open to all Directors to attend. Where a Director has attended a meeting of a Committee of which he or she was not a member, this is indicated by ().
. Bridget Loudon accessed parental leave from 10 July 2024 to 29 October 2024.
. Niek Jan van Damme retired as Director on 15 October 2024. David Lamont commenced as a Director on 3 December 2024.
. The Audit and Risk Committee held its last meeting on 14 February 2025 and was replaced by the Audit Committee and the Risk and Sustainability Committee effective
1 March 2025.
. From time to time the Board establishes ad hoc Committees to support the Board in carrying out its responsibilities. Details of these ad hoc Committees have not been
included in the table.

rON S

o
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Director shareholdings in Telstra

Details of Directors’ shareholdings in the
Company as at 14 August 2025 are shown
in the table below:

Director Number of shares

held’
Vicki Brady? 1,806,457
Eelco Blok 75,000
Maxine Brenner 52,650
Roy H Chestnutt 73,766
Craig W Dunn 125,400
David Lamont 100,000
Ming Long 80,600
Bridget Loudon 62,000
Elana Rubin 89,830

-

. The number of shares held refers to shares held
either directly or indirectly by Directors as at 14
August 2025. Shares in which the Director does not
have a relevant interest, including shares held by
the Directors’ related parties (including relatives),
are excluded. Refer to the Remuneration Report
tables for total shares held by Directors and their
related parties directly, indirectly or beneficially as
at 30 June 2025.

. Vicki Brady also holds 1,381,080 Performance

Rights as at the date of this report.

The number of shares disclosed is the number held

as at the date of cessation as a Director.

N

[

Group Company Secretary
Craig Emery
LLB (UTS), GAICD, FGIA

Craig was appointed Group Company
Secretary of Telstra Group Limited
effective 15 October 2024.

Craig is a senior legal and governance
professional with over 20 years’
experience advising senior management
and boards. Craig reports to the Board
and his duties include continuous
disclosure compliance, corporate
governance and communication with
Telstra’s shareholders.

Craig joined Telstra in 2006 and has served
in senior legal roles throughout the
company including supporting our
Consumer, Small Business, Product,
Media, Finance and Operations functions.
He has spent time living and working in
Hong Kong leading our International legal
team. He was Telstra’s Chief Compliance
Officer from March 2023 prior to taking the
Group Company Secretary role.

Craig holds a Bachelor of Laws from the
University of Technology, Sydney, is a
Graduate of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors and a Fellow of the
Governance Institute of Australia.

Directors’ and officers’ indemnity
and insurance

(a) Constitution

The Company’s constitution contains
permissive provisions allowing it to
indemnify, to the maximum extent
permitted by law:

e certain officers of the Company and its
related bodies corporate (Telstra
Officers), for any liability and legal costs
which they may incur in that capacity;

¢ certain employees of the Company and
its related bodies corporate (Telstra
Employees), for any liability which they
may incur in that capacity; and

e certain Telstra Officers and Telstra
Employees, for any liability which they
may incur as a director or other officer
of a company that is not related to
Telstra.

(b) Deeds of indemnity

The Company has also executed deeds of
indemnity in favour of past and present
(amongst others):

e directors, secretaries, senior managers,
public officers and other specified
positions of the Company and its wholly
owned controlled subsidiaries;

e certain directors, secretaries, senior
managers and other specified positions
of the Company’s partly-owned
companies; and

e certain Telstra Group directors,
employees and other persons that act as
nominee directors or secretaries, or in
other positions (at the Company’s
request) for entities or industry
associations,

in each case as permitted under the
Company’s constitution and the
Corporations Act 2001 (the Act).

The deeds in favour of Directors of the
Company also give Directors certain
rights of access to the Company’s books
and require the Company to use best
endeavours to maintain insurance cover
for the Directors.

(c) Directors’ and officers’ insurance
The Company maintains directors' and
officers' insurance policies that, subject to
some exceptions, provide worldwide
insurance cover to past, present and
future directors, secretaries and officers
and certain employees of the Company
and its subsidiaries and, in certain limited
circumstances, other entities. Telstra has
paid the premiums for these policies. The
directors' and officers' insurance policies
prohibit disclosure of the premiums
payable under the policies and the nature
of the liabilities insured.

Directors' Report

Environmental regulation and
performance

Telstra, as a minimum, seeks to be
compliant with all applicable
environmental laws and regulatory
obligations relevant to its operations.
Where instances of non-compliance may
occur, Telstra has procedures requiring
that internal investigations are
conducted to determine the cause of the
non-compliance and to ensure that any
risk of recurrence is minimised. Telstra’s
procedures further require that the
relevant government authorities are
notified of any environmental incidents
(where applicable) in compliance with
statutory requirements. Telstra complies
with notices issued by government
authorities and regulators.

(a) Prosecutions or convictions

Telstra has not been prosecuted for, or
convicted of, any significant breaches of
environmental regulation during the
financial year 2025.

(b) Energy and greenhouse emissions

In Australia, Telstra is subject to the
reporting requirements of the National
Greenhouse and Energy Reporting Act
2007, which requires Telstra to report its
annual Australian greenhouse gas
emissions, energy consumption and energy
production. Telstra has implemented
systems and processes for the collection
and reporting of data and has, in
accordance with our obligations, reported
to the Clean Energy Regulator on an annual
basis. The next report is due on 31 October
2025 and will again be supported with an
independent assurance report.

For the London Hosting Centre in the
United Kingdom, Telstra is subject to the
Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme
(ESOS) Regulations 2014. Telstra qualifies
for participation in ESOS and must carry
out energy savings assessments every
four years. Telstra has met its obligations
under ESOS for all compliance periods to
date, being those first three compliance
periods ended 5 December 2015, 5
December 2019 and 5 June 2024.

For more information on environmental
performance, including environmental
regulation, refer to the 2025 Sustainability
Report, which is available online from 25
August 2025 at telstra.com/
sustainability/report.
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Non-audit services

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (Deloitte)
commenced as Telstra’s auditor for the
financial year commencing on 1 July 2024.
During the financial year 2025, Deloitte
has been engaged on assignments
additional to its statutory audit duties.
Details of the amounts paid or payable to
Deloitte for audit and non-audit services
provided during the financial year 2025 are
detailed in note 7.1 to the financial
statements in our 2025 Financial Report.

The Directors are satisfied, based on
advice provided by the Audit Committee
(formerly the Audit and Risk Committee),
that the provision of non-audit services

during the financial year 2025 is consistent
with the general standard of
independence for auditors imposed by the
Act and that the nature and scope of each
type of non-audit service provided did not
compromise the auditor independence
requirements of the Act for the following
reasons:

¢ all Deloitte engagements, including non-
audit services, were approved in
accordance with the external auditor
services policy adopted by Telstra and
subject to confirmation by Deloitte that
the provision of these services does not
compromise auditor independence;

Directors' Report

« the external auditor services policy
clearly identifies prohibited services,
which include reviewing or auditing the
auditor’s own work or Deloitte partners
or staff acting in a managerial or
decision-making capacity for Telstra; and

 the provision of non-audit services by
Deloitte is monitored by the Audit
Committee via periodic reporting to the
Audit Committee.

A copy of the auditor’s independence
declaration is set out in the Auditor’s
Independence Declaration to the Directors
of Telstra Group Limited and forms part of
this report.

NS Q7
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Message from the
People and Remuneration
Committee Chair

Dear fellow shareholders,

On behalf of your company’s People and Remuneration
Committee, | am pleased to present Telstra’s FY25 Remuneration

Report.

Over the past three years of our T25 strategy, we have been
disciplined about delivering the ambitious goals we set
ourselves. We finished strongly, delivering elevated customer
experiences, stronger financial performance and improved
reputation as measured by RepTrak. This is reflected in the
performance and remuneration outcomes for executives in FY25.
We are now moving into our five-year Connected Future 30
strategy which will see us double down on connectivity and
radically innovating in the core of our business.

FY25 executive remuneration
outcomes

In FY25, Telstra’s Executive Variable
Remuneration Plan (EVP) provided that a
significant portion of remuneration was
variable and at-risk. Individual outcomes
under the EVP depended on performance
against primary performance measures
(comprising financial, customer and
strategic measures) and the relevant

Senior Executive's individual performance.

The Performance Rights component is
subject to a secondary performance
condition (based on Telstra’s Relative
Total Shareholder Return (RTSR)). The
Board continued to have discretion in
determining the final outcomes. Further
details are provided in Section 2.3 of our
Remuneration Report.

The FY25 primary performance measures
and targets were selected by the Board to
help ensure that Senior Management
delivered against the final year T25
strategy objectives. Positive outcomes
were achieved on financial performance
with further improvements in customer
experience and Telstra’s reputation. The
Fixed Core Cost outcome included several
offsetting items that were reviewed by the
Board but were not adjusted for because,
collectively, they did not reduce
performance below the EVP maximum.
Benefits to FY25 Underlying EBITDA
resulting from the release of a Digicel
Pacific earn out provision and certain
impairments made for Telstra Enterprise
in FY24, including to deferred acquisition

costs, were taken into account when
setting the original FY25 guidance and
EVP threshold, target and maximum and
so were not adjusted for.

CEO Performance and Outcomes

The FY25 EVP outcomes were directly
linked to individual contribution,
company performance and long term
shareholder value creation. Reflecting a
very strong year of performance, the
CEOQ’s Individual EVP Outcome was 87.3%
of the maximum opportunity. The CEO’s
individual performance rating was a 4 on
our 1to 5 scale. The CEO’s EVP outcome
was determined by multiplying the EVP
Scorecard Outcome of 79.4% of maximum
by 110% representing her performance
rating for the year and her relative
performance in the executive team.

The CEO’s individual performance rating
reflects the Board’s assessment of Ms
Brady’s leadership of the company over
the past year, including improved cost
outcomes, the ongoing repositioning of
Telstra’s business portfolio with
enhanced capital disciplines, the
strengthening of Telstra’s senior
leadership team and major strategic
initiatives including the launch of
Connected Future 30, the data and Al
joint venture with Accenture, the satellite
partnership with SpaceX and the
additional $800m being invested in
Telstra’s 5G network over four years
(within our existing capital investment
envelope).

Directors' Report

Senior Executive Accountability and
Performance

We have further matured our
accountability framework and processes
in FY25, explicitly linking high
performance with effective risk
management. Senior leaders are subject
to accountability statements covering our
critical compliance obligations. A
quarterly senior management risk forum
reviews any compliance breaches and
other risk-related incidents, including the
performance of the accountable
executive in relation to the incident. The
Chief Risk Officer formally assessed the
risk management performance of each
Senior Executive against the agreed set
of requirements for effective risk
management and documented the
findings which formed part of each Senior
Executive’s FY25 performance
assessment.

Each Senior Executive’s individual
performance was assessed using a robust
process that took into account their
individual scorecard performance,
leadership behaviour, conduct, people
engagement, effective application of risk
management practices including health
and safety risks, accountability for
material risk events and the severity of
their impact. The final outcomes for
Senior Executives in FY25 have taken into
account what went well and areas where
there is still scope for improvement. The
Board supported the assessment process
for the Senior Executives and did not
exercise discretion. Further detail
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regarding the key FY25 remuneration
outcomes for the CEO and other Senior
Executives and our non-executive
Director fees is provided in our
Remuneration Report.

FY21 EVP Vesting

Vesting of the FY21 EVP Performance
Rights was assessed following the end of
the five year performance period which
ran from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2025,
having regard to performance against the
RTSR performance condition. The FY21
EVP Performance Rights will vest at 74%
based on Telstra’s RTSR ranking at the
62nd percentile of the comparator group
over the performance period. Further
details are provided in Section 2.4 of our
Remuneration Report.

Board Committee Structure

To better balance our standing Board
Committee’s workloads and recognising
increasing regulatory and reporting
requirements, a decision was made to
restructure from three Committees to
four Committees from 1 March 2025. All
non-executive Directors are members of
the Nomination Committee, so the
important role of this Committee is
encompassed within their base board
fees. For other Committees, a standard
fee for Committee Chairs and a standard
fee for Committee members was also
implemented from 1 March 2025 to
reflect the important role that these
Committees and their respective
members have in the governance of
Telstra. The fees that previously applied
to the Audit and Risk Committee were
reduced to reflect the transfer of risk
matters to the Risk and Sustainability
Committee. The People and
Remuneration Committee fees increased
to reflect increased accountability
regarding employee Health, Safety and
Wellbeing. Further detail on the role of
each Committee is provided in the 2025
Corporate Governance Statement.

To recognise the critical contribution of
our current offshore non-executive
Directors, the Board determined to
introduce an additional annual payment
of $40,000 each for Eelco Blok and Roy H
Chestnutt from 1 July 2025. This payment
recognises the difference in fees
applicable in some offshore domiciles,
relates to them as individual directors

and the specialised in-demand expertise
they bring, and the extra time investment
they make doing their role from an
offshore location. It does not apply to any
other non-executive Directors and will
not automatically apply to any offshore
non-executive Director recruited in the
future. Further detail on fees is provided
in Section 3 of this Remuneration Report.

People and Culture

We know that our people are key to
delivering strong results for our
customers and shareholders. We remain
committed to delivering a compelling
employee value proposition to attract
and retain the best talent and creating
an environment where employees feel
they can thrive and do their best work.
It was pleasing to see our engagement
score placing us within the top quartile
globally.

We have remained focused on
strengthening our culture with evidence
of increased adoption of, and impact
from, the Big Three behaviours and
habits that we introduced last year,
Look Beyond, Work as One, and Make

a Difference. Further action was taken
to build a diverse, equitable and inclusive
workplace through the introduction

of a global parental leave policy that
guarantees a minimum of 16 weeks

of paid leave for our international
employees regardless of gender or
location.

Our strengthened approach to
accountability has increased
understanding of expectations and
standards, and links to outcomes.

We are delivering on our prioritised
safety uplift actions including
enhancements to leadership training,
risk frameworks, and safety systems.
Tragically, in July 2025 a Telstra team
member lost his life when a bird struck
a chartered helicopter in which he was
travelling as a passenger. We offer our
sincere condolences to his family, friends
and colleagues, and acknowledge the
enormous contribution he made to
Telstra over many years. The incident
is currently under investigation, and we
expect to include further information

in our FY26 reports.
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We continue to evolve our workforce and
ensure we are building the capabilities we
need for the future, especially in data and
Al. Through the announcement of our
joint venture with Accenture, expansion
of our Data and Al Academy, and the
scaled deployment of Microsoft Copilot
to over 18,000 employees, we have
strengthened productivity and
collaboration. This year we also launched
Career Connect, a key enabler of Telstra’s
shift to a skills-based organisation with
nearly 50% of our employees now
onboarded, enabling deeper development
conversations through clear career
pathways and integrated performance
planning. Telstra's four Enterprise
Agreements were voted on and approved
by a majority of employees in July 2024
and have subsequently been endorsed by
the Fair Work Commission.

Our people have been highly engaged in
our new Connected Future 30 strategy,
and we remain committed to supporting
our people to perform, transform and
thrive as we deliver on our ambition for
Telstra.

Director and Senior Executive
changes

During FY25 we disbanded our Global
Business Services function and moved
teams into other relevant parts of the
business. This led to changes to our
Senior Executive team with Dean Salter
leaving the business on 31 July 2024. We
are grateful to Dean for his strong
contribution and leadership and wish him
all the best in his future endeavours.

We thank Niek Jan van Damme who
retired from the Board at the conclusion
of the 2024 Annual General Meeting on
15 October 2024. Effective 3 December
2024, we were delighted to appoint David
Lamont to the Telstra Board and the
Audit and Risk Committee. Further
details on these changes are provided in
the Key Management Personnel Section
of our Remuneration Report.

Brendon Riley, GE and CEO InfraCo, will
retire effective 30 September 2025, and
we are grateful for the very valuable
contribution Brendon has made in his
fourteen years at Telstra. We are very
pleased to have Steven Worrall join
Telstra on 1 September 2025 as our new
GE and CEO InfraCo.
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Looking ahead

In FY25, the Board reviewed our executive
remuneration framework, assisted by
external remuneration consultants. This
review was timed to ensure Telstra’s
remuneration framework aligns with and
facilitates the company’s five-year
Connected Future 30 strategy. The Board
engaged with proxy advisors and large
investors on the new incentive
framework. We thank them for their
interest, engagement and feedback.
Based on our engagements, we trust that
the design meets with their support.

In FY26 we will move to a more widely
used and understood incentive framework
with independent short term incentive
(STI) and long term incentive (LTI)
components. This structure will help
balance management’s focus on annual
deliverables with longer-term returns
critical to our strategy, including
disciplined investment in long-cycle
assets. Telstra’s core business model
involves investing large amounts of capital
in connectivity networks that our
customers value. This helps Telstra to
create value for shareholders. The
investment of the right amount of capital
in the right infrastructure opportunities at
the right time is critical and requires
discipline, fine business judgement, and
sound execution. Our Connected Future
30 strategy is built on this premise, and a
key financial goal of our strategy is to
achieve an underlying ROIC of 10% by
FY30. See the Forward-looking statements
at the front of this Annual Report for
further information on the key goals under
the Connected Future 30 strategy.

We will continue with the current
methodology for calculating STI while
focusing on longer term value add by
reweighting variable pay from STl to LTI.
The STI will be determined on an annual
basis having regard to the Company
Scorecard Outcome and an executive’s
individual performance. The separate LTI
will be provided in two equal tranches of
Performance Rights. One tranche of
Performance Rights will be subject to a
performance condition linked to Telstra’s
3-year average underlying return on
invested capital (UROIC) and the other
tranche will be subject to a performance
condition linked to our 4-year RTSR. The
RTSR comparator group for this latter
tranche will be 20 companies (ex-
resources) in the ASX 50 with comparable
risk and return characteristics to Telstra.
The Board has structured the new
framework to help ensure executive focus
and outcomes align with shareholder
expectations and deliver clear
performance linkages to our Connected
Future 30 strategy. | encourage you to
explore the further detail in Section 4.3
of our Remuneration Report.

The Board conducts a market review of
Senior Executive fixed remuneration and
Board fees on an annual basis and there
will be selective and targeted increases
in FY26 consistent with the market
benchmarking. Further details are
provided in Sections 3.1(c) and 4.2 of
our Remuneration Report.

Directors' Report

We continue to aim to provide market
leading transparency and disclosure on
our remuneration framework and targets
for the coming year. These are disclosed
in Section 4.4 of our Remuneration
Report. This provides our shareholders
with meaningful information to assess
the suitability of our remuneration
targets and outcomes. In setting
performance measures for FY26, the
Board sought to ensure the targets were
robust and sufficiently demanding,
considering the key deliverables and
milestones outlined in our Connected
Future 30 strategy, planned financial
outcomes contained within our FY26
Corporate Plan and FY26 guidance (as
announced on 14 August 2025).

| want to thank every employee for their
work in delivering our achievements over
the past three years of T25. We are
excited to carry that forward as we enter
a new phase, with a clear strategy and a
bold ambition for what comes next.

I would also like to thank you for your
support as a Telstra shareholder and
invite you to read the full report in detail.

Elana Rubin AM

People and Remuneration
Committee Chair
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(a) FY25r

=t

Individual EVP Outcome at Target = 200% of Fixed Remuneration comprised of:

100% 50% 70% 80%
Fixed Remuneration EVP Cash® EVP Restricted Shares * EVP Performance Rights *

(b) ¢

5
5E fixed re
fixed re
fixed re fi e
4/
Title :

2
2
&T 3
-\ GETE $1,114,000*
GETB 3

2 5
$1,114,000*
2
\ 3

fixed re
Fixed re 302 ¢ 41
1.5%.
t
lstra
a
took ¢
, tr 1 | for Oliver-C s
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(c) FY25E
FY25E N £
EVP Equity Allocated (75%)
Restricted Shares {2nd tranche] -
i Restricted Shares [th tranche)
End of restriction 30 June 2027 End of restriction 30 June 2029

EVP Cash Paid (25%) Restricted Shares (15t tranche) * Restricted Shares [3rd tranche) .
End of restriction 30 lune 2026 H End of restriction 30 lune 2028 H
H ! H i
i i
P25 1 a0s i i i H
Results AGM H ' ] '
Release i ' i H
1 H H H

! i
FY25 EVP Initial o ! -z ! Restricted Shares — T3 = Restricted Shares - Td i

Performance Period
1luly 2024 to Performance Rights
30 June 2025 Performance Rights Firial BTSR Test
30 June 2028

I FY24 EVP Performance Rights RTSR Performance Period
I 1 Juby 2024 to 30 June 2029
| s | FY26 FY27 FY28 FY20 FY30
_m Aug  Oct Nov Jun  Jul Jun Jul Jun Jul Jun  Jul
5/ 14 ( 5,
t L F :
F :
FY25 E
EVP [ fi. re
41 5)
< )

EVP EVP
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221

Metric Performance Range
Threshold Target Max
Senior Executive Performance Outcome

50% 100% 150%
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T25¢

=C

Sci

Reduce

emissions Weight Threshold

Scope 1+ 2 50% 0% 41% 439
Scope 3 50% 0% 41% 43%
Blended

targets

(rounded to

nearest whole

%) 100% 40%) 41%)| 43%)
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FY25
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18.5

FY24 3

3.62 4.30

17.5 17.0
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FY22 FY21
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FY21 (s (
g
€ ¢ E i
5f
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c F
n
t
Fixed
Name Year Remuneration
($000)
Vicki Brady (CEO) 2025 2,393
2024 2391
1. r 4F
2.
4t
3.
FY24 t 3.62.
4.
2t 3t
4¢
Fy221 3 EVP.
5. TheRTSRo TEVPw 74% o
was
Ir I 87.3%o0
Their I <
c ( [¢} inF
5f I f

211

(4]
(2]
[N

Value of EVP
Restricted Shares

Individual EVP

QOutcome payable

that became

as cash .
($000)? unrestricted
($000)™
1567 1462
1130 EES]
4¢
4t
1
e

Value of EVP
Performance
Rights that vest
($000)™°

760

452

Total
($000)

6182

4,696

4,
211

20

. Thisil
63% o

Sc

% change from
prior year
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pury

110% (FY2

70% s
[ ]
e thatn
e thatn
s 5.
Name
Michael Ackland

Kim Krogh Andersen

Oliver Camplin-Warner

Amanda Hutton

Brenclon Riley
Shailin Sehgal
Kathryn van cder Merwe

Brad Whitcomb

The RTSR o

5f

Remuneration

211

Sc ouw € 2.2«
e
FY25 ¢
| 1 110% (
n r fi 105% (
oning
foury
Value of STl or
Fixed Individual EVP EVP Restricted Value of EVP
X Qutcome Shares that Performance
($000) payable ascash became  Rights that vest
($000)" unrestricted ($000)**
($000)*°
1253 873 1.033 747
1157 770 886 745
1072 704 242
1.098 G654 310
1404 Ta4 1194 1.045
1069 664 157
1.025 653 239
1,188 715 407
of { 5.
5E 5z 5.
5 of $4.84.
74% of 1

-f

the

the a

Total
($000)

24

3806
3.062
2012
2,072
4437
1520

1217
2310
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5L
Maximum
Name potential EVP
opportunity
($000)°
Vicki Brady 7178
Michael Ackland 758
3.525

Kim Krogh Andersen
Oliver Camplin-Warner
Amanda Hutton
Brendon Riley*

Shailin Sehagal

Kathryn van der Merwe
Brad Whitcomb

Dean Salter*

1.
2.

fixed re
3.
4, AsLC «

v 4

Name
Vicki Brady
Michael Ackland

Kim Krogh Andersen
Oliver Camplin-Warner
Amanda Hutton
Brendon Riley

Shailin Sehgal

Kathryn van der Merwe
Brad Whitcomb

Dean Salter

5f I

Total rights

held
at1July
2024'

1,165,245
921,588

573,003

1.042.5M

95,342

282,525

Breakdown of FY25 Individual EVP Outcomes'

. 40%
25% Cash 35% Flestsr;lcted Performance . % of maximum % of maximum
ares X Individual EVP . .
component 3 Rights Outcome opportunity opportunity
($000) °°“""(‘;“Deo“;) component’ earned forfeited
($000)

1.567 2194 2,508 6,269 87.3% 12.7%
873 1222 1,396 349 92.9% FAE
770 1,078 1231 3,079 87.3% 12.7%
704 924 1,125 2,813 84.2% 16.8%
664 929 1,081 2,654 79.4% 20.6%
794 112 1271 3177 75.4% 24.6%
664 924 1,081 2,654 79.4% 20.6%
653 915 1,045 2,613 84.9% 15.1%
e 1,000 1143 2,858 79.4% 20.6%

54 74 85 213 F9.5% 20.5%
on11, 2025.
tionin
he
I
€ : and t
s their FY25
they\
5
Equity Movements
. Value of .
Rights Val!.le of Rights vested rights vested Other  Totalrights
rights and changes held
allocated . and

. N allocated exercised . (lapsed at 30 June

dluring FY25 ($000)° duringFyzs®  SXercised rights) 2025°
9 ($000)° 9
456,147 424 (124,962) 495 (115,350} 1,381,080
251,246 500 (1027113 407 {94,812y 975,307
254,574 507 (47411 188 {43,764y 236,402
70,278 140 - - - 70,278
183,877 366 - - - 183,877
352,009 700 (128,847 550 (128167 1,127,508
58757 n7 - - - 58,787
225,584 4449 - - - 225,584
289,260 576 - - - 384,602
_ _ - - - 382,525
r
\%
t
n
[
€ £ sz for:
n
< ¢
11
those
s innote 31
3 21 for Y
s
15
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Name

Vicki Bradly

Mic hael Ackland

Kim Krogh Anclersen
Cliver Camplin-Warner

Amanda Hutton
Brendon Riley

Shailin Sehgal
Kathryn van der Merwe

Brad Whitcomb

Dean Salter

Total

price.

4. OE

5f

1.991

Total shares held

Restricted

n
~

n

2.4,thes

Performance

Net shares
acquired or

at1July2024 '* Shares allocated® Rights Exercised® disposed of and

1252367

1454 795

088877

108,040

354,164

1.704.470

95457

23424

340 209

6,070,833

o0

399,125 124 962
219,840 102,713
222,752 4741
79,063 -
165,377 -
308,009 138,847
64,108 -
197,356 -
253,103 -
1208767 413933
11
5¢
< ¢

other changes®

(300,000)

(300,000)

15¢
e $C
g the
e
i
L
n
74%
ows:

Shares held

Total shares held )
£30 June 2025° nominally at

a une
30 June 2025~
1,806 457 564117
1,807,348 1,503,038
559,040 475 581
155,103 123,789
549 541 228 527
1,551,326 1,340,756
162,596 56,796
197,366 197,366
336,527 35,671
340209 281106
5,095,533 5417,067
W
[¢
€
€
[¢
5.2to"
E31



For personal use only

3.0 Non-e

3.1 Non-¢ f

_E -t
non-e
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e
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FY25E Hlense
df (s ( ).”
FY25 (¢ t
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FY25 (¢
2
y(
-€
e
(c)F fees
FY25 r
are\
h
F
s
andt in-c
5f

-€

$65,000 $32,500
$65,000 $32,500
$65,000 $32,500
N
-€ a
e H
t
a v (2.5%
fee $240,00 245,000 (2.19
in-c d
non-i Eelcot
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-€

Name and title

Craig W Dunn®
Chair

Eelco Blok®
Drrector

Maxine Brenner
Crirector

Roy H Chestnutt®
Crirector

David Lamont
Directol

Ming Long
Dracto

Bridget Loudon
Diracto

Elana Rubin®
Ciracto

Miek Jan van Damme"®

Former Director

Total

-r

5f

2.6451

Year

2025
2024
205
2024
205

2025

2028
2024
2025
2024
2025
2024
2025
2024
2028
2024
2025

2024

Short-term

benefits

Salary and fees
($000)'
7E0

[
245
235

272

270

162

275
277
243
243
300
277

2iod

2488

2024, ¢

-€

of $2

Men-monetary
benefits ($000)°

-€

28 r

Post-
engagement
benefits
Superannuation
($000)*
30

27

147

142

Tetal
($000)°
70

[
251
240
320
209
£74
s

172

2,774

2645

ies

ation
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5, our non-¢

Name

Craig W Dunn
Eelco Blok
Maxine Brenner
Roy H Chestnutt
David Lamont
Ming Long
Bridget Loudon
Elana Rubin

Niek Jan van Damme

Total
1
non-g
2,
3.
401 6
L
\
and w v
6¢ fi. re
t
g ,7971
\
I a
f
their fixed r
431
a)
d
5f 11

Total shares
held at
1 July 2024’

99,147
75,000
28,750
73,768
51.589
12,5600
89,830
77,000

507,582

-€

, ef

toe t

-t

aN:tusir:;Q; Total shares Shares held
. E held at nominally at30
disposed of and . -
1 30 June 2025 June 2025
other changes
28,353 128,500 127,800
- 75,000 -
23,900 52,650 52,650
- 73,756
28,01 80,600 -
49,500 52,000 52,000
- 80,830 19,424
- 77.000 -
231,764 739,346 435,640
-€
will |
S \
v E has made ir
C
a ¢
LTH u of \
|
f 263,797 to $1,350,000 and t
\ f 76,250 to $1,250,000."
C re |
] B
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Directors’
Report

Rounding

The Telstra Entity is a company of the kind referred to in

the Australian Securities and Investments Commission
Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors’ Reports)
Instrument 2016/191, as amended from time to time and
issued pursuant to section 341(1) of the Corporations Act
2001. Except where otherwise indicated, the amounts in

this Directors’ Report and the accompanying financial report
have been rounded to the nearest million dollars ($m) and
amounts in the Remuneration Report have been rounded to
the nearest thousand dollars ($000).

This report is made on 14 August 2025 in accordance with
a resolution of the Directors.

&%Ap@w

Craig W Dunn
Chair
14 August 2025

vt

Vicki Brady
Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
14 August 2025

Directors' Report

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
A.C.N. 74 490 121 060

477 Collins Street
Melbourne, VIC, 3000
Australia

Tel: +61 (0) 2 9322 7000
Fax: +61 (0) 2 9322 7001
www.deloitte.com.au

Independence Declaration by Auditor
to the Directors of Telstra Group Limited

In accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001,
| am pleased to provide the following declaration of
independence to the Directors of Telstra Group Limited.

As lead audit partner for the audit of the financial report of
Telstra Group Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2025,
| declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there
have been:

* No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements
of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit;

¢ No contraventions of any applicable code of professional
conduct in relation to the audit; and

¢ No non-audit services provided that contravene any
applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the
audit.

This declaration is in respect of Telstra Group Limited and the
entities it controlled during the financial year.

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Matt Sheerin
Partner
Chartered Accountants

14 August 2025

Telstra 2025 full-year results | E47
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Directors' Report

Board of Directors

G Board o Audit Q Risk and Sustainability 0 Nomination o People and Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee Committee
Key
. Denotes Chair of Board/Committee . Denotes member of Board/Committee

Non-executive Director appointed on 12 April 2016, Chair effective 17 October 2023 and last re-elected on 11
October 2022. Chair of the Nomination Committee and member of the Audit Committee. Previously Chair of
the Audit and Risk Committee from 2019 to 2023.

Craig is a highly regarded business leader with more than 25 years’ experience in financial services, pan-Asian
business activities and strategic advice for government and major companies. Craig was Chief Executive
Officer and Managing Director of AMP from 2008 to 2013 and held various roles at AMP in a 13-year career
including Managing Director of AMP Financial Services, Managing Director for AMP Bank and head of
Corporate Strategy and M&A.

Previously he was at Colonial Mutual Group from 1991 to 2000, including Managing Director for EON CMB Life
Insurance in Malaysia and senior roles in Group Strategy, M&A and Finance. He has also served as a member
of the Federal Government’s Financial System Inquiry in 2014 and the Consumer and Financial Literacy

Craig W Dunn Taskforce.
BCom, FCA Other directorships and appointments

Chair, CMi Merryck (from 2025) and RedKite (from 2024). Director, MLC Life Insurance (from 2023), Lion Pty
Goe Limited and Lion Global Craft Beverages Pty Limited (from 2021).

Vicki Brady became the CEO and Managing Director of Telstra on 1 September 2022. She leads Connected
Future 30, Telstra’s strategy to be the number one choice for connectivity in Australia. Prior to Connected
Future 30, she delivered Telstra’s T25 strategy and steered the company to four consecutive years of
underlying earnings growth.

Vicki joined Telstra in 2016 and was most recently Chief Financial Officer and Strategy & Finance Group
Executive. In this role, Vicki guided the company’s financial performance and reporting, led the development
of and progress against its corporate strategy, and oversaw its risk and internal audit capabilities, with the aim
of delivering shareholder value over the long term.

Before this, Vicki was head of Telstra’s Consumer & Small Business function. In this role she led a business
unit with $14.6 billion of income and was one of the architects of the T22 and T25 strategies. She has also
held roles as Group Managing Director, Sales & Service and Group Managing Director, Consumer. Before

.. working at Telstra, Vicki gained extensive executive leadership experience in telecommunications and services
Vicki Brady companies in Australia and internationally, working for organisations including Optus, SingTel and KPMG.
MScM (Stanford GSB),
BCom (ANU), CA, GAICD

o

Vicki is a Patron, on behalf of Telstra, of the National Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Art Awards
(NATSIAA).

Other directorships and appointments
Board member, Business Council of Australia (from June 2025).

Non-executive Director appointed on 15 February 2019 and last re-elected on 11 October 2022. Member of the
People and Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Eelco has almost 35 years of telecommunications experience at Dutch-based landline and mobile
telecommunications company, KPN, where he was CEO for seven years until April 2018.

Eelco started his career in Finance at KPN before becoming responsible for several businesses including
Carrier Services, Corporate Networks and Network Operations. In 2006 he was appointed a member of the
KPN Board of Management, where he was consecutively responsible for the Fixed Division, Business Market —
Wholesale — Operations and Mobile International. He was appointed CEO in April 2011.

From 2011 to 2017 Eelco was co-Chairman of the Dutch National Cyber Security Council an advisory body of
the Dutch government. He was also a Director for the international association GSMA from 2017 to April 2018.

Other listed company directorships (past three years)
Eelco Blok Director, OTE Group (from 2019). Former — Member of the Supervisory Board of Signify NV (2017 — 2022).

MS, BBA Other directorships and appointments

G 00 Chair of the Supervisory Boards of Hanab (from 2025) and Fairphone (from 2023, member from 2020).
Member of the Supervisory Board of Feyenoord Rotterdam N.V (from 2023). Board Advisor, Spotzer Digital
(from 2023), Glasfaser Plus (from 2022) and Glow Financial Services (from 2022).
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Maxine Brenner
BA, LLB

000600

Directors' Report

Non-executive Director appointed on 17 February 2023 and elected on 17 October 2023. Chair of the Risk
and Sustainability Committee and member of the People and Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Previously Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee from 2023 to 2025.

Maxine is an experienced ASX top-20 director with over 20 years' Board experience in some of Australia’s most
high-profile companies.

Maxine has a diverse background with strong experience in the corporate advisory, finance and regulatory
sectors. She has a strong customer perspective and is particularly focused on the changing nature of customer
expectations.

Maxine is a former Managing Director of Investment Banking at Investec Bank (Australia) Limited. She also
practised as a corporate lawyer with Freehill Hollingdale & Page (now Herbert Smith Freehills Kramer) and spent
several years as a lecturer in the Faculty of Law at both the University of NSW and the University of Sydney.

Other listed company directorships (past three years)
Director, Brambles Limited (from 2024), Woolworths Group Limited (from 2020) and Origin Energy Limited
(from 2013). Former — Director, Qantas Airways Limited (2013 —2024) and Orica Limited (2013 —2022).

Other directorships and appointments
Member of the University of NSW Council.

Roy H Chestnutt
BSc, BA, MBA

000

Non-executive Director appointed on 11 May 2018 and last re-elected on 15 October 2024. Member of the Risk
and Sustainability Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Roy has more than 30 years' of direct telecommunications experience. Most recently he was Executive Vice
President, Chief Strategy Officer for Verizon Communications and has held leadership positions with other
leading firms including Motorola, Grande Communications, Sprint-Nextel and AirTouch. Roy’s last six years
with Verizon included almost five as head of strategy responsible for the development and implementation of
Verizon’s overall corporate strategy, including business development, joint ventures, strategic investments,
acquisitions and divestitures.

Roy has been a Director for international industry association GSMA and is a former chair of the Chief
Strategy Officers Group including 25 global strategists from the world’s leading wireless carriers.

Other listed company directorships (past three years)
Director, Digital Turbine Inc (from 2018). Former — Director, Intelsat (2022-2025). Board of Advisors, Accenture
Luminary (from 2021-2025).

Other directorships and appointments
Senior advisor, Alvarez & Marsal (from July 2025) and Tillman Global Holdings LLC. Board Advisor, LotusFlare
(from 2019).

David Lamont
BCom, CA

0000

Non-executive Director appointed on 3 December 2024. Chair of the Audit Committee, and member of the
Risk and Sustainability Committee and the Nomination Committee.

David is an accomplished Chief Financial Officer and business leader, with more than 30 years’ experience in
a range of roles with highly respected organisations, including BHP, CSL and Orica.

David was BHP’s CFO from 2020 to 2024 and prior to that was the CFO of ASX-listed global biotech company
CSL Limited (from 2015 to 2020). He also held the positions of CFO and Executive Director at Minerals and
Metals Group and previously served as CFO for several other multinational public companies, including OZ
Minerals Limited, PaperlinX Limited and Incitec Limited.

David has deep expertise in capital management, project risk assessment, cost management and debt/capital
markets.

Other listed company directorships (past three years)
Director, APA Group (from 2024).

Other directorships and appointments
President, Financial Executives Institute of Australia (Director 2013-2024, President from 2025). Director,
Geelong Cats Foundation (from 2021).
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Ming Long AM
BEc, LLB, MBA, FCA, GAICD

0000

Directors' Report

Non-executive Director appointed on 1 January 2023 and elected on 17 October 2023. Member of the Audit
Committee, the Risk and Sustainability Committee, and the Nomination Committee.

Ming is an experienced director with over a decade of board experience in areas including real estate,
infrastructure, funds and investment management and financial services. She also has a wealth of experience
in sustainability and diversity.

Ming has held senior executive and leadership positions in listed and private equity owned organisations
leading complex multi-year strategies to transform companies, as well as experience in corporate
restructuring. She is passionate about helping Australia drive better economic, social and environmental
outcomes.

Ming has played an influential role in industry leadership in Australia and is on the steering committee for
the Australian Institute of Company Directors Climate Governance Initiative and is a member of the ASIC
Corporate Governance Consultative Panel. In 2020, she was awarded a Member of the Order of Australia for
her significant service to the financial and real estate sectors, and to diversity and inclusion.

Other directorships and appointments

Chair, CSIRO (from 2025, Deputy Chair from 2024). Director, IFM Investors (from 2022), QBE Insurance
(Auspac) (from 2019), Committee for Economic Development of Australia (CEDA) (from 2019). Member, AASB
S2 Implementation Advisory Panel (from 2025). Previously Chair of AMP Capital Funds Management Limited
and Director, Diversity Council Australia (Deputy Chair 2017-2021, Chair 2021-2024).

Bridget Loudon
BCom (University College Galway)

060

Non-executive Director appointed on 14 August 2020 and last re-elected on 17 October 2023. Member of the
People and Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Bridget is Founder and Chief Executive Officer of Expert360. Expert360 is Australia’s number one skilled talent
platform, using sophisticated vetting and matching technology to connect more than 1,000 companies with
more than 30,000 elite consultants, project managers, data analysts and developers. Expert360 has been
recognised as a game-changing platform by, among others, Harvard Business Review and the Economist.

Prior to founding Expert360 in 2013, Bridget worked as a management consultant for Bain & Co in Sydney. At
Bain, Bridget was part of teams that advised ASX 50 leaders on strategy and transformation across a range of
industries such as Retail, Consumer, Mining and Education.

Bridget is a leader in how organisations transform themselves to capture the opportunities presented by
developments in technology. She has passion for solving customer problems and an impressive desire to
create positive outcomes for society using technology.

Other directorships and appointments
Director, Expert 360 Pty Ltd (from 2013) and E360 Holdings Pty Ltd (from 2019).

Elana Rubin AM
BA (Hons), MA, SF Fin, FAICDLife

0600

Non-executive Director appointed on 14 February 2020 and last re-elected on 17 October 2023. Chair of the
People and Remuneration Committee and member of the Nomination Committee.

Elana has more than 20 years' Board experience across the financial services sector, including superannuation
and funds management as well as the fintech, property, infrastructure and government sectors. Her executive
career spanned industrial relations, social and economic policy and superannuation.

Elana is adept at working in consumer facing organisations with a strong customer focus and can balance
commercial interests with the complex requirements of regulated sectors.

Elana has strong risk management and regulatory experience, having worked in highly regulated sectors
including as Chair of AustralianSuper, one of Australia’s largest and innovative super funds, and Chair of
Victorian WorkCover Authority, a highly regarded regulator and workplace injury insurer.

Other listed company directorships (past three years)
Director, Dexus Funds Management Limited (from 2022). Former — Director, Afterpay Limited (2017-2022,
Chair 2020-2022).

Other directorships and appointments

Chair, Australian Business Growth Fund (ABGF) (from 2023) and Victorian Managed Insurance Authority
(from 2016). Director, Reserve Bank Governance Board (from 2025) and Slater & Gordon (from 2018). Former
— Director, Reserve Bank of Australia (2023-2025).
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Telstra Financial Report 2025

Telstra Group Limited
and controlled entities

Australian Business Number (ABN): 56 650 620 303

Financial report: introduction and contents

As at 30 June 2025

About this report

Notes to the Financial Statements

This is the financial report for Telstra Group Limited (referredtoas  ggction 1: Basis of preparation

the Company or the Telstra Entity) and its controlled entities 11 Basis of preparation of the financial report F8
(togetherreferred to as we, us, our, Telstra, the Telstra Group or the 12 Terminology used in our income statement F8
Group) for the year ended 30 June 2025. 1.3 Principles of consolidation F8
Telstra Group Limited is a ‘for profit’ company limited by shares 1.4 Key accounting estimates and judgements F9
incorporated in Australia whose shares are publicly traded on the 1.5 Other accounting policies F9

Australian Securities Exchange (ASX). Section 2: Our performance

This financial report was authorised for issue in accordance with a 2.1 Segment information F10
resolution of the Telstra Group Limited Board of Directors on 14 2.2 Income F15
August 2025. The Directors have the power to amend and reissue 2.3 Expenses F25
the financial report. 2.4 Income taxes F26

. . . 2.5 Earnings per share F29
Readlng the financials 2.6 Notes to the statement of cash flows F29

Section 3: Our core assets, lease arrangements and

Section introduction R .
working capital

The introduction at the start of each section outlines the focus of 3.1 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  F31
the section and explains the purpose and content of that section. 3.2 Lease arrangements F37
3.3 Trade and other receivables and contract assets F42
Note and topic summary 3.4 Contract liabilities and other revenue received in Faa
A summary at the start of certain notes explains the objectives and advance
content of that note, or at the start of certain specific topics 3.5 Net contract assets and contract liabilities Fa5
clarifies complex concepts, which users may not be familiar with. 3.6 Deferred contract costs F46
3.7 Inventories F47
Narrative table 3.8 Trade and other payables F47
Some narrative disclosures are presented in a tabular format to Section 4: Our capital and risk management
provide readers with a clearer understanding of the information 41 Capital management F48
being presented. 4.2 Dividend F48
4.3 Equity F48
Information panel 4.4 Net debt F51
4.5 Financial instruments and risk management F55

The information panel describes our key accounting estimates and
judgements applied in the preparation of the financial report, which  Section 5: Our people

are relevant to that section or note. 5.1 Employee benefits F67
5.2 Employee share plans F68
Conte nts 5.3 Post-employment benefits F71
5.4 Key management personnel compensation F74

Financial Statements

Income Statement 2 Section 6: Our investments

. 6.1 Changes in the group structure F75
Statement of Comprehensive Income F3 9 . group i
. . - 6.2 Investments in controlled entities F75
Statement of Financial Position F4 Lo
6.3 Non-controlling interests F78
Statement of Cash Flows F6 6.4 Assets and liabilities held for sale F80
Statement of Changes in Equity F7 ’

6.5 Investments in joint ventures and associated entities  F81

Section 7: Other information

7.1 Auditor’s remuneration F85
7.2 Other provisions F85
7.3 Parent entity disclosures F85
7.4 Commitments and contingencies F87
7.5 Events after reporting date F88
Consolidated Entity Disclosure Statement F89
Directors’ Declaration F96
Independent Auditor’s Report F97
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Income
Statement

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Telstra Group Year ended 30 June
2025 2024

Income
Revenue (excluding finance income) 2.2 23,125 22,928
Other income 2.2 485 554
23,610 23,482
Expenses
Labour 3,990 4,291
Goods and services purchased 8,212 8,441
Net impairment losses on financial assets 118 92
Other expenses 23 2,666 3,114
14,986 15,938
Share of net loss from joint ventures and associated entities 6.5 a7 (16)
15,003 15,954
Earnings before interest, income tax expense, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 8,607 7,528
Depreciation and amortisation 23 4,691 4,479
Earnings before interest and income tax expense (EBIT) 3,916 3,049
Finance income 2.2 103 112
Finance costs 2.3 742 696
Net finance costs 639 584
Profit before income tax expense 3,277 2,465
Income tax expense 2.4 934 677
Profit for the year 2,343 1,788
Profit for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of Telstra Entity 2,172 1,622
Non-controlling interests 171 166
2,343 1,788
Earnings per share (cents per share)
Basic 2.5 18.9 141
Diluted 2.5 18.8 14.0

The notes following the financial statements form part of the financial report.

F2 | Telstra Group Limited and controlled entities
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Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Telstra Group Year ended 30 June
2025 2024

Profit for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of Telstra Entity 2,172 1,622
Non-controlling interests 17 166
2,343 1,788
Items that will not be reclassified to the income statement
Retained profits
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plans attributable to equity holders of Telstra Entity 53 19) (34)
Income tax on actuarial loss on defined benefit plans 8 10
> Qumulative gain from the fair value.of equity.investments at fair value through other comprehensive 85 )
— income transferred to retained earnings on disposal
C Fair value of equity instruments reserve
O Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income 58 14)
Qumulative gain from the fair value.of equityvinvestments at fair value through other comprehensive (85) )
income transferred to retained earnings on disposal
q) Foreign currency translation reserve
m Translation differences of foreign operations attributable to non-controlling interests 1 (3)
D 48 (41
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to the income statement
C_G Foreign currency translation reserve
Translation differences of foreign operations attributable to equity holders of Telstra Entity (302) (38)
C Cash flow hedging reserve
o Changes in cash flow hedging reserve 4.5 47) 62
m Share of other comprehensive income of equity accounted investments (©) 2)
LS Income tax on movements in the cash flow hedging reserve 4.5 14 19)
G) Cost of hedging reserve
Q Changes in the value of the cost of hedging reserve (20) (29)
Income tax on movements in the cost of hedging reserve 6 9
S (350) 7)
o Total other comprehensive income (302) (58)
I I Total comprehensive income for the year 2,041 1,730
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of Telstra Entity 1,869 1,567
Non-controlling interests 172 163

The notes following the financial statements form part of the financial report.

Telstra Group Limited and controlled entities | F3



For personal use only

Statement of
Financial Position

As at 30 June 2025

Telstra Group As at 30 June
2025 2024

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2.6 1,012 1,046
Trade and other receivables and contract assets 3.3 3,677 3,828
Deferred contract costs 3.6 108 140
Inventories 3.7 485 518
Derivative financial assets 4.4 230 232
Current tax receivables 24 246 35
Prepayments 347 308
Assets classified as held for sale 6.4 390 -
Total current assets 6,495 6,107
Non-current assets

Trade and other receivables and contract assets 3.3 1,157 1,342
Deferred contract costs 3.6 773 794
Inventories 37 100 162
Investments — accounted for using the equity method 6.5 222 636
Investments — other 381 33
Property, plant and equipment 3.1 20,651 20,867
Intangible assets 3.1 11,775 12,421
Right-of-use assets 3.2 2,681 2,666
Derivative financial assets 4.4 481 AN
Deferred tax assets 2.4 51 74
Defined benefit asset 5.3 201 237
Total non-current assets 38,473 39,443
Total assets 44968 45,550
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 3.8 4,212 4,626
Employee benefits 51 677 721
Other provisions 7.2 130 349
Lease liabilities 3.2 502 530
Borrowings 4.4 4,314 3,698
Derivative financial liabilities 4.4 82 97
Current tax payables 2.4 56 28
Contract liabilities and other revenue received in advance 34 1,487 1,477
Liabilities classified as held for sale 6.4 61 -
Total current liabilities 11,521 11,526
Non-current liabilities

Other payables 3.8 28 10
Employee benefits 51 141 130
Other provisions 7.2 217 196
Lease liabilities 3.2 2,697 2,678
Borrowings 4.4 10,582 10,162
Derivative financial liabilities 4.4 9N 176
Deferred tax liabilities 2.4 1,843 1,783
Defined benefit liabilities 5.3 9 14
Contract liabilities and other revenue received in advance 3.4 1,623 1,623
Total non-current liabilities 17131 16,672
Total liabilities 28,652 28,198
Net assets 16,316 17,352
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Statement Of Telstra Financial Report 2025
Financial Position (continued)

As at 30 June 2025

Telstra Group As at 30 June
2025 2024

Equity

Share capital 43 2,345 3,095
Reserves 43 1,766 2,135
Retained profits 9,788 9,692
Equity available to Telstra Entity shareholders 13,899 14,922
Non-controlling interests 2,417 2,430
Total equity 16,316 17,352

The notes following the financial statements form part of the financial report.
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Statement of
Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2025
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Telstra Group
Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods and services tax (GST)) 25,647 25,196
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of GST) (17,540) (17,386)
Government grants received for operating activities 197 185
Net cash generated from operations 8,304 7,995
Income taxes paid 2.4 (980) (946)
Net cash provided by operating activities 26 7,324 7,049
Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment (2,375) (2,288)
Payments for intangible assets (1,499) (2,776)
Capital expenditure (before investments) (3,874) (5,064)
Payments for shares in controlled entities (net of cash acquired) (125) (389)
Payments for equity accounted investments (63) 47)
Payments for other financial assets held as investments (145) (32)
Total capital expenditure (including investments) (4,197) (5,532)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 129 146
Proceeds from sale of equity accounted investments 134 -
Proceeds from sale of other financial assets held as investments 131 -
Proceeds from sale and leaseback 52 98
Distributions received from equity accounted investments 26 64
Receipts of the principal portion of finance lease receivables 67 70
Government grants received for investing activities 79 62
Interest received 69 65
Repayment of loans by associated entity 152 35
Other 10) 2
Net cash used in investing activities (3,368) (4,990)
Operating cash flows less investing cash flows 3,956 2,059
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings 6,066 9,465
Repayment of borrowings (5,441) (7,829)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities 3.2 (632) (643)
Share buy-back 4.3 (751) -
Purchase of shares for employee share plans 18) (19)
Finance costs paid (871) (726)
Dividends/distributions paid to non-controlling interests (180) 167)
Dividends paid to equity holders of Telstra Entity 4.2 (2,137) (2,022)
Other (33) )
Net cash used in financing activities (3,997) (1,942)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 41) 17
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,046 932
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 7 3)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2.6 1,012 1,046

The notes following the financial statements form part of the financial report.
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Statement of
Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Telstra Group Share Reserves | Retained Non-
capital profits control-
ling
interests
Note $m $m $m $m $m $m

Balance at 1 July 2023 3,095 2,196 10,116 15,407 2,409 17,816
Profit for the year - - 1,622 1,622 166 1,788
Other comprehensive income - (31 (24) (55) @) (58)
Total comprehensive income for the year - (31) 1,598 1,567 163 1,730
Dividends 4.2 - - (2,022) (2,022) - (2,022)
Transactions with non-controlling interests - (30) - (30) 142) 172)
Additional shares purchased 4.3 (19) - - (19) - (19)
Share-based payments 19 - - 19 - 19
Balance at 30 June 2024 3,095 2,135 9,692 14,922 2,430 17,352
Profit for the year - - 2,172 2172 171 2,343
Other comprehensive income - (377) 74 (303) 1 (302)
Total comprehensive income for the year - (377) 2,246 1,869 172 2,041
Dividends 4.2 - - (2,137) (2137) - (2137)
Share buy-back (net of income tax) 43 (751) - - (751) - (751)
Transactions with non-controlling interests - 5) - 5) (185) (190)
Other transfers - 13 (13) - - -
Additional shares purchased 4.3 18) - - (18) - 18)
Share-based payments 19 - - 19 - 19
Balance at 30 June 2025 2,345 1,766 9,788 13,899 2,417 16,316

The notes following the financial statements form part of the financial report.
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1.1 Basis of preparation of the financial report

This financial report is a general purpose financial report, prepared
by a “for profit’ entity, in accordance with the requirements of the
Australian Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) (Corporations Act),
Accounting Standards applicable in Australia and other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board (AASB). It also complies with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and Interpretations published
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and, unless
otherwise stated, all values have been rounded to the nearest
million dollars ($m) under the option available under the Australian
Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC) Corporations
(Rounding in Financial/Directors’ Report) Instrument 2016/191 as
amended from time to time. The functional currency of the Telstra
Entity and its Australian controlled entities is Australian dollars.
The functional currency of certain non-Australian controlled
entities is not Australian dollars. The results of these entities are
translated into Australian dollars in accordance with our accounting
policy described in note 1.3.1.

The financial report is prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
some categories of financial instruments, which are recorded at fair
value.

Where relevant, comparative information has been reclassified to
ensure comparability with the current year disclosures and
presentation.

1.2 Terminology used in our income statement

EBITDA reflects earnings before interest, income tax, depreciation
and amortisation. EBIT is a similar measure to EBITDA, but takes
into account depreciation and amortisation.

We believe EBITDA is useful as it is a widely recognised measure of
operating performance.

1.3 Principles of consolidation

Our financial report includes the consolidated assets and liabilities
of the Telstra Entity and its controlled entities as a whole as at the
end of the financial year and the consolidated results and cash
flows for the financial year.

An entity is considered to be a controlled entity where we are
exposed, or have rights, to variable returns from our involvement
with the entity and have the ability to affect those returns through
our power to direct the activities of the entity. We consolidate the
results of our controlled entities from the date on which we gain
control until the date we cease control.

The effects of intra-group transactions and balances are eliminated
from our consolidated financial statements.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of controlled
entities are shown separately in our income statement, statement
of comprehensive income, statement of financial position and
statement of changes in equity.

F8 | Telstra Group Limited and controlled entities

The financial statements of the Group’s controlled entities are
prepared using consistent accounting policies with those of the
Telstra Entity. Adjustments are made to bring the reporting periods
in line with those of the Group where necessary.

1.3.1 Translation of financial reports of foreign operations that
have a functional currency other than the Australian dollar

The financial reports of our foreign operations are translated into
Australian dollars (our presentation currency) using the following
method:

Foreign currency
amount

Exchange rate

Assets and liabilities
including goodwill and fair
value adjustments arising
on consolidation

The reporting date rate

The initial investment date
rate

Equity items

Income statement Average rate (or the
transaction date rate for
significant identifiable

transactions)

The exchange differences arising from the translation of financial
statements of foreign operations are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 1. Basis of preparation (continued)

1.4 Key accounting estimates and judgements

Preparation of the financial report requires management to make
estimates and judgements.

1.4.1 Summary of key management judgements

The accounting policies and significant management judgements
and estimates used, and any changes thereto, are set out in the
relevant notes. The key accounting estimates and judgements are
included in the following notes:

Key accounting estimates and judgements

Assessment of a significant financing component

in mass market contracts 2.2 F20
Determining standalone selling prices 22 F21
Assessment of a significant financing component

2.2 F22

in Indefeasible Right of Use (IRU)
Assessment of a significant financing component = 22 F23
in nbn Definitive Agreements (DAs)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets 2.4 F28
Capitalisation of development costs 3.1 F33
Useful lives and residual values of tangible and

intangible assets 31 F33
Impairment assessment of our ubiquitous

telecommunications network 31 F34
Determining CGUs and their recoverable amount 31 F35

for impairment assessment of goodwill
Determining lease term for property leases 3.2 F37
Determining incremental borrowing rates for

property leases 3:2 F39
Estimating expected credit losses 3.3 F43
Amortisation period of deferred contract costs 3.6 F46
Long service leave provision 5.1 F67
Defined benefit plan 5.3 F73
Equity-like securities issued to the Australian
Government 63 F79
Significant influence over Telstra Super Pty Ltd 6.5 F83
Significant influence over Titanium Ventures Fund

1gniti | u V | u u u 6.5 F83

I, L.P.

1.5 Other accounting policies

Relevant accounting policies are included in the respective notes to
the financial statements. Changes in the accounting policies and
impacts from the accounting standards to be applied in future
reporting periods, as well as other accounting policies not disclosed
elsewhere in the financial report are detailed below.

1.5.1 Changes in accounting policies
(a) New and amended accounting standards

A number of amended accounting standards became effective in
the current reporting period but none of those had a materialimpact
on our accounting policies.

Telstra Financial Report 2025

(b) Other changes

Treasury Laws Amendment (Making Multinationals Pay Their Fair
Share—Integrity and Transparency) Act 2024 made minor
amendments to the Corporations Act for public companies to
disclose in their annual financial reports additional tax residency
information about entities within the consolidated group. We have
reflected these requirements in the disclosures in the consolidated
entity disclosure statement.

1.5.2 New accounting standards to be applied in future reporting
periods

In June 2024, AASB issued AASB 18 ‘Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements’. AASB 18 significantly updates the
requirements for presentation and disclosures in the financial
statements, with a particular focus on improving the reporting of
financial performance as it requires classification of income and
expenses into particular categories. It also introduces disclosure of
management-defined performance measures. AASB 18 is effective
for Telstra from 1 July 2027, with early application permitted, and
requires a restatement of the comparative reporting period. We are
currently assessing the expected impact from AASB 18 on our
financial reporting.

We have not early adopted any standard, interpretation or
amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective and, with
the exception of AASB 18 described above, we do not expect any of
them to have a material impact on our financial results upon
adoption.

1.5.3 Transactions and balances in foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the relevant
functional currency at the spot exchange rate at the transaction
date. At the reporting date, amounts receivable or payable
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the relevant
functional currency at market exchange rates as at the reporting
date. Any currency translation gains and losses that arise are
included in our income statement.

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency that are
measured at fair value (i.e. certain equity instruments not held for
trading) are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Differences arising from the
translation are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss in line
with the recognition of the changes in the fair value of the non-
monetary item.
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2.1 Segment information

Segment information is based on the information that
management uses to make decisions about operating matters
and allows users to review operations of the Group through the
eyes of management.

Our operating segments represent the functions which offer
our main products and services in the market. However, only
some of our operating segments meet the disclosure criteria
for reportable segments.

2.1.1 Operating segments

We report segment information on the same basis as our internal
management reporting structure at the reporting date. Segment
comparatives reflect any organisational changes that have
occurred since the end of the prior financial year to present a like-
for-like view.

During the financial year 2025, there were no changes to our
operating segments.

Our ‘Networks, IT and Product’ segment consists of two operating
segments, being Global Networks and Technology and Product and
Technology, which have been combined for reporting purposes as
they have similar economic characteristics and provide support
functions underpinning operations of the other segments.

In our segment results, the ‘All Other’ category includes functions
that do not qualify as operating segments as well as the operating
segments which are not material to be reported individually.
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Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.1 Segment information (continued)
2.1.1 Operating segments (continued)

We have six reportable segments as follows:

For personal use only

Segment

Operation

Telstra Consumer
(TC)

¢ provides telecommunication and technology products and services to consumer customers in Australia
using mobile and fixed network technologies

* operates contact centres, retail stores, a retail distribution network, digital channels, distribution systems
and the Telstra Plus customer loyalty program in Australia

Telstra Business
(TB)

¢ provides telecommunication and technology products and services to small and medium businesses in
Australia

o operates Telstra Business Technology Centres and digital channel partner network servicing small and
medium business customers

Telstra Enterprise
Australia (TEA)

¢ provides telecommunication services, advanced technology solutions, network capacity and
management, unified communications, cloud, security, industry solutions, integrated and monitoring
services to government and large enterprise and business customers in Australia

Telstra
International (TI)

¢ provides telecommunication, media and technology products and services to consumer, business and
government customers in the South Pacific through our Digicel Pacific business

¢ provides a full suite of telecommunication services, including satellite services, advanced technology
solutions, network capacity and management, cloud, security, industry solutions, integrated and
monitoring services to government and enterprise and business customers outside of Australia

¢ provides wholesale services outside of Australia, including voice and data

¢ manages Telstra’s networks outside Australia, including international subsea cables, in conjunction with
Networks, IT and Product and Telstra InfraCo segments

Networks, IT and
Product (NIT&P)

¢ Global Networks and Technology supports the other segments and their respective revenue generating
activities by maintaining high level of reliability and security of our global network platforms and cloud
infrastructure. It maintains our networks and is accountable for our network intelligence and automation.

¢ Product and Technology works with other functions to create and deliver products and solutions for
customers across all segments. It has accountability for product strategy, innovation, development, and
life cycle where products are incubated and brought to scale. It is also accountable for Telstra’s IT and
Data & Al functions and our digital platforms underpinning our customer digital experience.

Telstra InfraCo

e operatesin Australia and provides telecommunication products and services delivered over Telstra
networks to other carriers, carriage service providers and internet service providers

¢ provides other Telstra functions and wholesale customers with access to network infrastructure within
Telstra InfraCo’s asset accountabilities

* operates the fixed passive network infrastructure including data centres, exchanges, poles, ducts, pits
and pipes and fibre network

¢ designs and constructs fibre, exchanges and other infrastructure

¢ provides nbn co with long-term access to certain components of our infrastructure under the
Infrastructure Services Agreement

e operates the passive and physical mobile tower assets owned or operated by the Amplitel business
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.1 Segment information (continued)

2.1.1 Operating segments (continued)

Consistent with information presented for internal management
reporting, the result of each segment is measured based on its
EBITDA contribution, which differs from our reported EBITDA.

The table below details how we determine segment income and
EBITDA contribution of each segment.

Nature of
transaction

Description

Measurement basis

Impact on
segment results

Transactions
with external
parties

Any transactions
between any of the
Telstra Group entities
with:

¢ an external
counterparty, e.g.
supplier or customer

¢ any related party which
is not controlled by the
Telstra Group, i.e. it is
not eliminated on
consolidation.

Accounted for in accordance with the Australian
Accounting Standards.

The effects of all
transactions with
external parties are
included in the
segment results.

Transactions
with other
segments

Any transactions
between segments
arising from inter-
company legal
agreements between
entities controlled by the
Telstra Group.

Different measurement bases apply to our transactions

between segments depending on their nature:

¢ transactions arising from agreements entered into

as a result of the Telstra Group restructure

completed on 1January 2023, including charges for
use of our infrastructure assets and other services,
are measured based on a'management view', i.e. all
charges earned/incurred are recognised when
incurred as either income or expenses. Such
recognition may differ from the requirements of the
Australian Accounting Standards in a number of
areas, for example lease accounting.

any transactions other than those described above
are accounted forin accordance with the Australian
Accounting Standards.

Transactions within the same segment are eliminated

within that segment’s results except for the
transactions detailed under table A.

Any transactions other than those arising from the

agreements entered into as a result of the Telstra Group
restructure are excluded from the segment’s results.

Any transactions with other segments are eliminated on

consolidation, therefore the total Telstra Group

reported income and total reported EBITDA reconcile to

the statutory financial statements.

The effects of the
transactions with
other segments are
included in the
segment results
and, depending on
the nature of the
transaction, either
measured based on
the management
view or as
accounted under
the Australian
Accounting
Standards.

Some
transactions
which are
managed
centrally or by
one segment

Certain items and
transactions are
managed centrally or by
one of the segments even
if they relate to results of
multiple segments.

Accounted for in accordance with the Australian
Accounting Standards.

The effects of these
transactions are
included in the
segment results as
detailed below.
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Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.1 Segment information (continued) 2.1.2 Segment results

2.1.1 Operating segments (continued) Table A details our segment results and a reconciliation of EBITDA
contribution to the Telstra Group’s EBITDA, EBIT and profit before
income tax expense.

The following transactions are managed centrally rather than being
allocated to each segment, or by one segment even if they relate to
results of multiple segments:

* network service delivery expenses other than those supporting
passive infrastructure and related to customers serviced by TC,
TB, TEA, Tl and Telstra InfraCo segments are included in NIT&P
segment

¢ revenue associated with mobile handsets (and the corresponding
cost of goods sold) sold via dealers to the customers of TB
segment is included in TC segment

¢ Telstra Limited’s promotion and advertising expenses related to
TB and TEA segments are included in TC segment

e call centres and retail stores costs associated with TB segment
are reported in TC segment

¢ some commission costs related to acquisition of TB customer
contracts are included in TC

e Telstra Limited’s redundancy and restructuring expenses are
included in ‘All Other’ category rather than being allocated to TC,
TB, TEA, NIT&P and Telstra InfraCo segments.

For personal use only

Table A Elimina
Telstra Group

Year ended 30 June 2025
Mobility 7,283 1,835 1,313 - - 584 - 11,015 - 11,015
Fixed - Consumer and
Small Business (C&SB) 3,564 735 B B B B B 4,209 B 4,299
Fixed - Enterprise - 298 3,147 - - - - 3,445 (26) 3,419
InfraCo Fixed - - - - - 2,710 - 2,710 (1,117) 1,593
Amplitel - - - - - 470 - 470 (370) 100
Fixed - Active Wholesale - - - - - 349 - 349 - 349
International - - - 2,587 - - - 2,587 (215) 2,372
Other 15 m 25 - 434 46 640 1,159 (696) 463
Total management 10,862 2,867 4,485 2,587 434 4159 640 26,034 (2,424) 23610
reported income
Transactions between
segments ® M @®n (215) (407)  (1,623)  (244) (2/424) 2,424 -
Total external income 10,859 2,866 4,454 2,372 27 2,636 396 23,610 - 23,610
Share of net loss from
equity accounted entities ) B ) W) @ B (2) an ) e
EBITDA contribution 4,885 1,915 1,676 693 (2,724) 3,004 (842) 8,607 - 8,607
Depreplat}on and (4,691)
amortisation
Telstra Group EBIT 3,916
Net finance costs (639)
Telstra Group profit
before income tax 3,277
expense
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.1 Segment information (continued)
2.1.2 Segment results (continued)

Table A (continued) T TI NIT&P | Telstra All Sub- | Elimina | Total
Telstra Group InfraCo | Other total -tions

[ o S &) & S S G G Go S

Year ended 30 June 2024

Mobility 7,089 1,794 1,365 - - 484 - 10,722 - 10,722
Fixed - C&SB 3,615 740 - - - - - 4,355 - 4,355
Fixed - Enterprise - 331 3,206 - - - - 3,537 19) 3,518
InfraCo Fixed - - - - - 2,746 - 2,746 (1,157) 1,589
Amplitel - - - - - 453 - 453 (357) 96
Fixed - Active Wholesale - - - - - 366 - 366 - 366
International - - - 2,578 - - - 2,578 (223) 2,355
Other 18 (C)) 51 - 466 83 653 1,262 (781) 481
Total management 10,722 2,856 4,612 2,578 466 4132 653 26,019 (2,537) 23,482
reported income
:ég’;::ﬁ;‘?”s between @) M @5 (23  (439) (1,552  (273) (2,587) 2,537 -
Total external income 10,718 2,855 4,567 2,355 27 2,580 380 23,482 - 23,482
Share of net profit/(loss)
from equity accounted - - - 5 12) - 9) (16) - (16)
entities
EBITDA contribution 4,480 1,931 1,629 755 (2,743) 2,895 (1,419) 7,528 - 7,528
Depreiaton and @)
Telstra Group EBIT 3,049
Net finance costs (584)
Telstra Group profit
before income tax 2,465
expense

Certain intra-segment transactions within the Telstra InfraCo
segment have not been eliminated within that segment, i.e. $44
million (2024: $49 million) internal income and internal expenses
have been presented on a gross basis.

Negative revenue amounts in the tables relate to certain corporate
level adjustments.

Information about our non-current assets by geographical market is
presented in table B.

Table B
Telstra Group

Year ended 30 June

Carrying amount of non-current
assets

Located in Australia 30,834 31,581 ‘
Located offshore 4,495 5,009 ‘
35,329 36,590 ‘
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Our geographical operations are split between our Australian and
offshore operations. No individual foreign country within our
offshore operations has material revenue or non-current assets.

The carrying amount of our segment non-current assets excludes
financial assets, inventories, defined benefit assets, deferred
contract costs and deferred tax assets.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) Telstra Financial Report 2025

Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.2Income

Table A Year ended 30 June
Telstra Group 2025 2024

Revenue from contracts with customers 22,717 22,537
Revenue from other sources 408 391
Total revenue (excluding finance income) 23,125 22,928
Other income
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 93 137
Net gain on disposal of businesses and investments 5 -
Net gain related to lease arrangements 96 113
Government grants 238 230
Net gain on derivative financial instruments not related to financing 2 27
Other miscellaneous income 51 47
485 554
Total income (excluding finance income) 23,610 23,482
Finance income
Finance income (excluding income from finance leases) 83 89
Finance income from finance leases (Telstra as a lessor) 20 23
103 112
Totalincome 23,713 23,594

Revenue from other sources includes income from:

e customer contributions to extend, relocate or amend our network
assets, where the customer does not purchase any ongoing
services under the same (or linked) contract(s)

late payment fees

our lease arrangements, including finance leases where Telstra is
a dealer-lessor and operating leases (refer to note 3.2.2 for
further details about our lease arrangements).

Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets includes $74 million (2024: $110 million) net gain
on sale of our legacy copper assets which has been presented net of
the disposal costs in the financial year 2025 (2024: presented
excluding the disposal costs).

Net gain related to lease arrangements includes $45 million net
gain (2024: $1 million net loss) on lease modifications, $20 million
(2024: $63 million) gain on finance leases and $31 million (2024
$50 million) net gain on sale and leaseback of certain exchange
properties.

Government grants include income under the Telstra Universal
Service Obligation Performance Agreement, the Federal
Government’s Mobile Black Spot Program and other individually
immaterial government grants. There are no unfulfilled conditions
or other contingencies attached to these grants.

Net gain on derivative financial instruments not related to financing
reflects changes in the fair value of our energy power purchase
agreements accounted for as derivative financial instruments.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.2 Income (continued)
2.2.1 Disaggregated revenue

Table B presents the disaggregated revenue from contracts with
customers based on the nature and the timing of transfer of goods
and services.

We recognise revenue from contracts with customers when the
control of goods or services has been transferred to the customer.
Revenue from sale of services is recognised over time, whereas
revenue from sale of goods is recognised at a point in time.

Other revenue from contracts with customers includes licensing
revenue (recognised either at a point in time or over time) and
agency revenue (recognised over time). Refer to note 2.2.2 for
further details about our contracts with customers.

Table B TC TB NIT&P Telstra | All Other
Telstra Group InfraCo

| $m| $m] $m[ $m| $m] $m[ $m[  $m]

Year ended 30 June 2025

Sale of services 8,565 2,658 3,838 2,256 1 2,253 308 19,879
Sale of goods 1,972 186 503 54 - 2 38 2,755
szfgr;e;esnue from contracts with 29 3 29 1 ) } 21 83
10,566 2,847 4,370 2,311 1 2,255 367 22,717
Year ended 30 June 2024
Sale of services 8,398 2,662 3,856 2,266 1 2,093 292 19,568
Sale of goods 2,012 166 586 73 - 3 33 2,873
S::forr;eevrznuefrom contractswith o5 5 50 ) ) ) 16 26
10,435 2,833 4,492 2,339 1 2,096 341 22,537
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) Telstra Financial Report 2025

Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.2 Income (continued)
2.2.1 Disaggregated revenue (continued)

Table C presents total revenue from external customers
disaggregated by major products.

Table C NIT&P Telstra | All Other
InfraCo

Telstra Group

Year ended 30 June 2025

Mobile 7,283 1,835 1,313 - - 11,015
Revenue from contracts with 7,265 1,824 1,309 ) ) 584 ) 10,982
customers
Revenue from other sources 18 1 4 - - - - 33
Fixed - C&SB 3,362 735 - - - - - 4,097
Revenue from contracts with 3,289 708 B } ) ) ) 4,017
customers
Revenue from other sources 73 7 - - - - - 80
Fixed - Enterprise - 298 3121 - - - - 3,419
Revenue from contracts with : 297 3,081 } ) : } 3378
customers
Revenue from other sources - 1 40 - - - - 41
InfraCo Fixed - - - - - 1,464 - 1,464
Revenue from contracts with ) B B } } 1.232 } 1,232
customers
Revenue from other sources - - - - - 232 - 232
Amplitel - - - - - 89 - 89
Revenue from contracts with ) B B } } 88 ) 88
customers
Revenue from other sources - - - - - 1 - 1
Fixed - Active Wholesale - - - - - 349 - 349
Revenue from contracts with ) _ B ) ) 349 ) 349
customers
International - - - 2,325 - - - 2,325
Revenue from contracts with ) B B 231 ) ) ) 2,31
customers
Revenue from other sources - - - 14 - - - 14
Other products and services 12 ) 18) - 2 2 371 367
Revenue from contracts with 12 @ ©0) _ 1 2 367 360
customers
Revenue from other sources - - 2 - 1 - 4 7
Total revenue from contracts 10,566 2,847 4,370 2,31 1 2,255 367 22717
with customers
Total revenue from other 91 19 46 14 1 233 a 408
sources
10,657 2,866 4,416 2,325 2 2,488 37 23,125
Other income 202 - 38 47 25 148 25 485
10,859 2,866 4,454 2,372 27 2,636 396 23,610
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.2 Income (continued)

2.2.1 Disaggregated revenue (continued)

Table C (continued)
Telstra Group

Year ended

NIT&P

Telstra

All Other

Total

Mobile 7,089 1,795 1,354 - 10,722
Revenue from contracts with 7,066 1782 1,354 ) ) 484 ) 10,686
customers
Revenue from other sources 23 13 - - - - - 36
Fixed - C&SB 3,421 740 - - - - - 4161
Revenue from contracts with 3.359 732 ) ) ) ) ) 4,001
customers
Revenue from other sources 62 8 - - - - - 70
Fixed - Enterprise - 331 3,187 - - - - 3,518
Revenue from contracts with } 329 3138 ) ) ) ) 3,467
customers
Revenue from other sources - 2 49 - - - - 51
InfraCo Fixed - - - - - 1,390 - 1,390
Revenue from contracts with ) ) ) ) ) 1168 B 1168
customers
Revenue from other sources - - - - - 222 - 222
Amplitel - - - - - 76 - 76
Revenue from contracts with ) ) ) B ) 75 ) 75
customers
Revenue from other sources - - - - - 1 - 1
Fixed - Active Wholesale - - - - - 366 - 366
Revenue from contracts with ) ) B . ) 366 ) 366
customers
International - - - 2,343 - - - 2,343
Revenue from contracts with ) B } 2.339 ) ) ) 2,339
customers
Revenue from other sources - - - 4 - - - 4
Other products and services 13 (10) (5) - 1 3 350 352
Revenue from contracts with 10 10) ) ) 1 3 341 345
customers
Revenue from other sources 3 - 5) - - - 9 7
Total revenue from contracts 10,435 2,833 4,492 2,339 1 2,096 34 22,537
with customers
Total revenue from other 88 23 a4 a ) 223 9 391
sources
10,523 2,856 4,536 2,343 1 2,319 350 22,928
Otherincome 195 m 31 12 26 261 30 554
10,718 2,855 4,567 2,355 27 2,580 380 23,482

Revenue from other products and services includes revenue
generated by Telstra Health and miscellaneous income.

Negative revenue amounts disclosed in the tables above related to
certain corporate level adjustments and consolidation eliminations.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) Telstra Financial Report 2025

Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.2 Income (continued)

2.2.1 Disaggregated revenue (continued)

Table D presents total revenue from external customers
disaggregated by geographical markets.

Our geographical operations are split between our Australian and
offshore operations. No individual foreign country within our
offshore operations has material revenue.

Table D
Telstra Group

TB NIT&P Telstra | All Other
InfraCo

) ) ) O O O B )

Australian customers 10,657 2,866 4,416 193 2 2,488 350 20,972
Revenue from contracts with 10,566 2,847 4,370 193 1 2,255 346 20,578
customers
Revenue from other sources 9 19 46 - 1 233 4 394
Offshore customers - - - 2,132 - - 21 2,153
Revenue from contracts with } B B 2118 _ . 21 2139
customers
Revenue from other sources - - - 14 - - - 14
Total revenue from contracts 10,566 2,847 4,370 2,311 1 2,255 367 22,717
with customers
Total revenue from other 91 19 46 14 1 233 a 408
sources
10,657 2,866 4,416 2,325 2 2,488 371 23,125
Other income 202 - 38 47 25 148 25 485
10,859 2,866 4,454 2,372 27 2,636 396 23,610
Year ended 30 June 2024
Australian customers 10,523 2,856 4,536 214 1 2,319 344 20,793
Revenue from contracts with 10,435 2,833 4,492 214 1 2,096 335 20,406
customers
Revenue from other sources 88 23 44 - - 223 9 387
Offshore customers - - - 2129 - - 6 2,135
Revenue from contracts with ) ) ) 2125 B ) 6 2131
customers
Revenue from other sources - - - 4 - - - 4
Total revenue from contracts 10,435 2,833 4,492 2,339 1 2,096 341 22,537
with customers
Total revenue from other a8 23 a4 a B 223 9 391
sources
10,523 2,856 4,536 2,343 1 2,319 350 22,928
Other income 195 ()] 31 12 26 261 30 554
10,718 2,855 4,567 2,355 27 2,580 380 23,482

Telstra Group Limited and controlled entities | F19



For personal use only

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.2 Income (continued)
2.2.2 Our contracts with customers

We generate revenue from external customer contracts, which vary
in their form (standard or bespoke), term (casual, short-term and
long-term) and customer segment (consumer, small to medium
business, government and large enterprise), with the main
contracts being:

¢ retail consumer contracts (mass market prepaid and post-paid

mobile, fixed and media plans)

retail small to medium business contracts (mass market and off-

the-shelf technology solutions)

retail enterprise and government contracts (carriage,

standardised and bespoke technology solutions and their

management)

¢ network capacity contracts, mainly Indefeasible Right of Use
(IRU)

¢ wholesale contracts for telecommunication services

¢ nbn Definitive Agreements (nbn DAs) and related arrangements.

We sell a wide range of goods and services, which are provided
either directly by us or by third parties. Generally, we act as
principal rather than an agent in our contracts with customers.

The nature and type of contracts with customers are further
described below.

(a) Telstra Consumer (TC) and Telstra Business (TB) contracts

We offer prepaid and post-paid services to our TC and TB mass
market customers. Our mass market contracts are homogeneous in
nature and sold directly by us or via our dealer channel. These
contracts often offer a bundle of goods and services. Some also
include options to purchase additional goods or services free of
charge or at a discount (i.e. material rights).

We offer no-lock-in (month to month) post-paid service plans to our
mobile mass market TC and TB customers. In those arrangements,
our customers can purchase a device, either outright or on a device
repayment contract, together with a no-lock-in service plan. If a
customer cancels their no-lock-in service plan, any outstanding
device balance becomes payable immediately.

Where we sell a service plan and a device on a device repayment
contract together with that plan, and offer a discount to the
customer who takes up that bundle and purchases directly from us,
or through a dealer that is acting as our agent, we allocate the
discount between the device and services based on their relative
standalone selling prices. For our service bundle plans sold via
dealers, who in their own right also sell the device to the customer,
the whole discount is allocated to services only.

TB also offers fixed plans and technology solutions under fixed
term contracts, which incur early termination charges if cancelled
by the customer during the fixed term. Fixed term contracts
typically have a two to three year term, with the majority of fixed
and technology solutions contracts being 24 month contracts.

In some of our fixed post-paid service plans we also act as a lessor
in an operating lease for modem devices. Lease components of
those contracts are separately accounted for as revenue from other
sources.

Generally, we allocate the consideration, and any relevant
discounts, to all products in the bundle based on a mixture of
observable and estimated standalone selling prices of these
products.
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By and large we recognise revenue from the sale of goods on their
delivery and from sale of services based on the passage of time. The
consideration allocated at contract inception to material rights is
recognised as revenue either when the customer exercises the
option and benefits from the free or discounted products or when
the rights are forfeited.

We offer deferred payment terms when customers purchase certain
handsets and other devices under a device repayment contract.

Assessment of a significant financing
component in mass market contracts

We have applied judgement to determine that no significant
financing component exists in our bundled arrangements
offering no-lock-in mobile plans and device repayment
contracts sold directly by us to TC customers. We considered
factors such as significance of financing in the context of the
contract as a whole, commercial objectives of our offers, the
duration of deferred payment terms and interest rates
prevailing in the marketplace.

Generally, mass market TC and TB contracts are not modified due
to their homogeneous nature. However, because our no-lock-in
mass market fixed and mobile post-paid service plans are month to
month contracts, customers can change plans once each month or
cancel their services altogether.

We offer a loyalty program, Telstra Plus, under which our consumer
and small business customers can earn points redeemable in the
future for certain goods and services. The program also provides
customers access to tier benefits in the form of free or discounted
entertainment and other services. Points awarded for purchases of
Telstra goods and services are accounted for as material rights,
with any amount allocated to the points initially recognised as a
contract liability in the statement of financial position. When a
customer redeems the points or they expire we recognise revenue
from sale of goods or services transferred or from forfeiture of the
material rights. We also recognise revenue when, based on
customers redemption patterns, we expect that the likelihood of
the customers utilising the points is remote (i.e. breakage).
Discretionary bonus points that do not relate to accounting
contracts are classified as a marketing offer and expensed at the
time the points are awarded. Tier benefits reduce revenue of the
related accounting contracts.

TB offers loyalty programs and technology funds for medium
business customers under which they can obtain additional free
products. At contract inception, a portion of the consideration is
allocated to such products and recognised as a contract liability in
the statement of financial position. We recognise revenue when the
customer either exercises the option and benefits from the free
products or when the rights are forfeited.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.2 Income (continued)
2.2.2 Our contracts with customers (continued)
(b) Telstra Enterprise Australia (TEA) contracts

TEA transacts with large enterprise and government customers.
Large and complex TEA contracts are usually bespoke in nature as
they deliver tailored solutions and services. Outside of the large
customers, the contracts are mostly standard.

Our TEA legal contracts often are in a form of multi-year framework
agreements under which customers can order goods and services.
These arrangements include performance conditions and grant
different types of discounts or incentives. Such framework
agreements are rarely considered contracts for accounting
purposes. Instead, revenue recognition rules are applied to goods
and services ordered under each valid purchase order or a
statement of work raised under the terms of the framework
agreement.

In some of our TEA contracts we also act as a dealer-lessor for
certain customer premise equipment used by our customers as part
of the solutions management and outsourcing services. Leases
embedded in those contracts are separately accounted for, usually
as dealer-lessor finance leases with finance lease receivables
recognised in the statement of financial position.

Some of our TEA contracts include two phases: a build phase
followed by the management of the technology solutions. Due to
the complex nature of those arrangements, we analyse the facts
and circumstances of each contract in order to determine goods
and services ordered and timing of revenue recognition. If the build
phase (or its components) qualifies as a separate service, we
recognise the build phase revenue over the term of the build or at its
completion depending on when the customer obtains control over
the technology solution.

From time to time our bespoke TEA contracts are varied or
renegotiated. When this happens, we assess the scope of the
modification or its impact on the contract price in order to
determine whether the amendment must be treated as a separate
contract, as if the existing contract were terminated and a new
contract signed, or whether the amendment must be considered as
a change to the existing contract.

Under some of our enterprise arrangements, we receive customer
contributions to extend or amend our network assets to ultimately
enable delivery of telecommunication services to that customer.
Where the counterparty makes a contribution for network
construction activities and purchases ongoing services under the
same (or linked) contract(s), the upfront contribution is added to
the total consideration in the customer contract and is allocated to
the goods and services to be delivered under that contract.

Our TEA accounting contracts include multiple goods and services.
Generally, we allocate the consideration and any relevant discounts
to all the products in the accounting contract based on the
standalone selling prices. However, some discounts granted under
the framework agreements may be allocated to selected goods or
services only if specific performance conditions apply. Any
consideration allocated to a lease component is based on the
relative standalone selling price of the lease.
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Determining standalone selling prices

We have applied judgement to determine standalone selling
prices in order to allocate the consideration to goods and
services sold under the same customer contract.

In the absence of observable prices, we use various estimation
methods, including an adjusted market assessment and cost
plus margin approach, to arrive at a standalone selling price.
We have determined that the negotiated prices are largely
aligned to the standalone selling prices.

We recognise revenue from management services or fixed fee
services based on passage of time and from usage-based carriage
contracts when the services have been consumed.

Some of our framework agreements offer enterprise loyalty
programs and technology funds under which a customer can obtain
additional free products. At contract inception, a portion of the
consideration is allocated to such products and recognised as a
contract liability in the statement of financial position. We
recognise revenue when the customer either exercises the option
and benefits from the free products or when the rights are forfeited.

Our large commercial arrangements often incorporate service level
agreements, e.g. agreed delivery time or service reinstatement
time. If we fail to comply with these commitments, we will
compensate the customer. The expected amount of such
compensation reduces the revenue for the period in which a service
level commitment has not been met, and it is recognised as soon as
not meeting the commitment becomes probable. Some
arrangements also include benchmarking or consumer price index
clauses, which are accounted for as variable consideration, usually
from the time the price changes take effect.

(c) Telstra International (TI) contracts

Tl offers prepaid and post-paid mobile services to consumer
customers in South Pacific through Digicel Pacific business. These
contracts often offer a bundle of goods and services, including
products such as hardware, voice, text and data services, media
content and others. Tl also offers mobile services, fixed broadband
services and technology solutions to small business and enterprise
customers.

Tl contracts are either fixed term contracts, where early termination
charges apply if the customer cancels the contract; or casual
month-to-month contracts, where the customer may cancel the
contract at any time without any significant termination penalty.
Fixed term contracts are typically short term and rarely exceed five
years, with the majority of consumer, small business and enterprise
contracts with a term of up to three years.

We recognise Tl revenue from sale of goods on their delivery and
service revenue is generally recognised based on passage of time.

Where goods and services are provided as a bundle, we allocate the
consideration and any relevant discounts to all products in the
bundle based on their estimated relative standalone selling prices.
Where observable prices are not available, we estimate standalone
selling prices based on the cost plus margin approach.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.2 Income (continued)
2.2.2 Our contracts with customers (continued)
(c) Telstra International (TI) contracts (continued)

Some of our international arrangements include long-term network
capacity arrangements (some being take-or-pay arrangements) as
well as managed services such as security and backups, for which
revenue is usually recognised based on passage of time. IRU
arrangements often include upfront payments for services which
will be delivered over multiple years.

Assessment of a significant financing
component in Indefeasible Right of Use
(IRU)

We have applied judgement to assess if a financing
component is significant in the context of the contract as a
whole and, where relevant, to determine appropriate discount
rates.

We account for a significant financing component in our
domestic and international bespoke network capacity
agreements, i.e. IRUs, where customers make an upfront
payment in advance of receiving services. These contracts
have an average legal contract term between 10 and 25 years.

Where Telstra receives financing from the customer, revenue
recognised over the contract term exceeds the cash payment
received in advance of performance by the amount of interest
expense recognised in net finance costs.

During the financial year 2025, we recognised $36 million
(2024: $39 million) interest expense for our IRU arrangements.

(d) Telstra InfraCo contracts (excluding contracts with nbn co)

Telstra InfraCo typically transacts with carriage services providers
and internet service providers, who in turn sell their services to their
end users.

Revenue arises from fixed network service contracts, including
usage-based contracts and fixed bundles, with a term typically of
up to three years. Other contracts provide data and IP and mobile
products such as interconnect, bulk SMS and pre- and post-paid
mobile services.

Telstra InfraCo legal contracts are generally signed as multi-year
framework agreements, which set out pricing for the agreed
services, the term and any renewal options, incentives, discounts
and one-off fees.

Some of our framework agreements specify a minimum spend
commitment (i.e. a take-or-pay arrangement), in which case the
accounting contract may exist also at the framework agreement
level.

Customer contributions to extend or amend our network assets to
ultimately enable delivery of telecommunication services are
recognised when those services are delivered.

Telstra InfraCo’s service revenue is generally recognised over time
during the period over which the services are rendered, mostly
based on passage of time as the service provider (i.e. our customer)
receives unlimited calls and data.
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Some of Telstra InfraCo contracts include multiple goods and
services. We allocate the consideration, and any relevant discounts,
generally to all the products in the accounting contract based on
the negotiated prices, which are largely aligned to the estimated
standalone selling prices of goods and services promised under the
contracts. However, some discounts granted under the framework
agreements may be allocated only to selected goods or services
based on the specific performance conditions in the framework
agreement.

Some of our Telstra InfraCo contracts grant customers access to
our passive infrastructure assets. Lease component(s) in those
contracts are classified as either operating or finance leases, for
which we recognise revenue from other sources or other income,
respectively.

(e) Agreements with nbn co

The main contracts with nbn co are nbn DAs and related
arrangements.

Revenue from contracts with nbn co is reported within the Telstra
InfraCo segment. Amounts recognised as other income are
recorded in TC and Telstra InfraCo segments.

Our nbn DAs and related arrangements include a number of
separate legal contracts with both nbn co and the Commonwealth
Government which have been negotiated together with a common
commercial objective. These contracts have been combined for
revenue assessment. The combined contract has a minimum term
of 30 years for accounting purposes.

The combined nbn DAs and related arrangements include a number
of separately priced elements, some of which are not accounted for
under the revenue recognition standard. For example, income
recognised under the separately priced Telstra Universal Service
Obligation Performance Agreement is accounted for as government
grant and presented as other income.

Services provided under the Infrastructure Services Agreement
(ISA) are accounted for under the revenue recognition standard. We
recognise revenue from providing long-term access to our
infrastructure, including ducts and pits, dark fibre and exchange
rack spaces, over time, initially based on the cumulative nbn
network rollout percentage and after rollout completion based on
passage of time.

The ISA consideration includes a number of fixed and variable
components depending on the progress of the nbn network rollout
and the final number of the existing fixed line premises as defined
and determined under ISA. Given the nbn network rollout is
substantially complete and following contract amendments signed
in March 2024, significant variability in the ISA consideration has
been removed. However, payments for services delivered under the
ISA will continue to be indexed to consumer price index for the
remaining contracted period.

The build of nbn related infrastructure was not considered a
separate service, therefore payments received for it under a
separate legal agreement have been combined and accounted for
together with the ISA long-term access services. These upfront
payments have been recorded as a contract liability in the
statement of financial position and are recognised as services
transfer over the ISA average contracted period of 35 years. The
remaining contracted period of the ISA is 22 years.
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Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.2 Income (continued)
2.2.2 Our contracts with customers (continued)
(e) Agreements with nbn co (continued)

We deliver a number of different services under the nbn DAs and
related arrangements, some of which are transferred at different
periods to those when we receive the consideration.

Assessment of a significant financing
component in nbn Definitive Agreements
(DAs)

We have applied judgement to assess if a financing
component is significant in the context of the contract as a
whole and, where relevant, to determine appropriate discount
rates.

We do not separately account for the financing component in
our nbn DAs and related arrangements because it is not
significant to the accounting contract.

2.2.3 Revenue for contracted goods and services yet to be
delivered

Sometimes goods and services purchased under the same
customer contract will be transferred to the customer over multiple
reporting periods.

Table E presents aggregate consideration allocated to the
remaining goods, services and material rights promised under the
contracts where a customer has made a firm commitment before
the balance date but goods and services will be transferred after 30
June 2025. Any future amounts arising from contracts where the
customer has not made a firm commitment, such as usage-based
contracts, are not included in the disclosed amounts. Presented
time bands best depict the future revenue recognition profile.

Table E
Telstra Group

As at 30 June
2025 2024

Less than 1year 4,053 4,083
Between 1 to 2 years 2,290 2,528
Between 2 to 5 years 4,962 4,788
Between 5 to 10 years 7,952 7,582
Between 10 to 20 years 16,780 16,373
More than 20 years 3,594 5,373

39,631 40,727

Future revenue arising from nbn DAs is estimated based on
assumptions which are reassessed at each reporting period.
However, given its size, long-term nature and variable consideration
components (refer to note 2.2.2 for details), the actual amounts
recognised in the future periods may still materially differ from our
estimates.

Any amounts arising from our existing customer contracts which
will be recognised as ‘revenue from other sources’ or ‘other income’,
for example operating lease income or net gain on sale of assets, are
excluded from revenue for contracted goods and services yet to be
delivered.

Telstra Financial Report 2025

2.2.4 Recognition and measurement
Our revenue recognition accounting policies are described below.
(a) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers arises from goods and
services sold as part of our ordinary activities.

(i) Accounting contracts with customer

Revenue recognition principles are applied to accounting contracts
which are agreements between two or more parties that create
enforceable rights and obligations.

The accounting contract may not align with the legal contract and
in some cases multiple legal contracts may need to be combined to
form one accounting contract. In other instances, a legal contract
may only provide a framework agreement (i.e. an offer) and an
accounting contract only exists when the customer commits to
purchase goods or services.

Any components of the contract which are accounted for under
other accounting standards are separated out and accounted for
under those other standards.

(i) Goods, services and/or material rights

Revenue is recognised when Telstra fulfils its contractual
obligation to deliver promised goods and services (or a bundle of
goods and services) to the customer.

A contractual promise giving the customer an option to purchase
additional goods and services at a discount (i.e. material right) must
be accounted for separately if the incremental discount is at least
five per cent compared to other customers. For arrangements with
an incremental discount lower than five per cent, judgement is
required to determine if material rights should be accounted for
separately if the aggregate impact is significant. For example, this
might be the case for arrangements offering material rights to our
retail customers.

A good or service is separately accounted for if a customer can
benefit from it on its own or together with other readily available
resources, and no transformative relationship exists with other
promised goods or services.

(iii) Variable consideration

If a contractual amountincludes a variable component, we estimate
the amount to which we will be entitled in exchange for promised
goods and services. Examples of variable consideration include
discounts, rebates, refunds, credits and price concessions. To
estimate an amount of variable consideration, we use either the
most likely amount or the expected value method depending on
which better predicts the variable amount. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant reversal of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur.

(iv) Significant financing component

If the period between when we would transfer the good or service to
the customer and when the customer would pay for them is
expected to be greater than one year, we assess whether revenue
should be adjusted for significant financing component, i.e.
reduced if we offer deferred payment terms or increased if we
receive an advance payment from customer. The significance of
financing is assessed relative to the total contract value and
interest rates used reflect credit characteristics of the counterparty
receiving financing.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.2 Income (continued)

2.2.4 Recognition and measurement (continued)

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(v) Allocation of revenue to goods and services

We allocate the consideration to the goods and services based on
their relative standalone selling prices. Standalone selling price is
the price for which we would sell the goods or services on a
standalone basis, i.e. not in a bundle. We determine standalone
selling price at contract inception using an observable price for a
standalone sale of substantially the same good or service under
similar circumstances and to a similar class of customers. If no
observable price is available, we estimate the standalone selling
price using an appropriate method, e.g. adjusted market
assessment approach, expected cost plus a margin approach or a
residual approach.

In some instances, in order to correctly reflect the amount of
revenue we expect to be entitled to, we allocate variable
consideration, discounts or a significant financing component to
some but not all goods, services and/or material rights.

(vi) Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control of the good or service is
transferred to the customer, i.e. when the customer can benefit
from the good or service and decide how to use them.

We recognise revenue over time when the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided to them or we create
or enhance an asset controlled by the customer. Otherwise, we
recognise revenue at a point in time.

We use either input or output methods to measure progress when
selling goods or services. Output methods use direct
measurements of the value to the customer, for example,
milestones reached. Input methods use our efforts or inputs in
measuring the performance, for example, our labour hours used
relative to the total expected labour hours.

When revenue is recognised at a point in time, the allocated
consideration is recognised when control over a good is transferred
to the customer. In determining this, we consider the customer’s
obligation to pay, transfer of legal title to the good, physical
possession of the good, the customer’s acceptance, and risks and
rewards of ownership.

(vii) Contract modifications

From time to time, our contracts are renegotiated after contract
inception and their scope and/or price change. A contract
modification will result in a cumulative change to revenue already
recognised only when the remaining goods and services are not
separate from those already delivered.

(viii) Gross versus net presentation

When we control the promised goods and services before they are
transferred to the customer and we have primary obligation for their
delivery, we act as principal in the contract with a customer and
recognise revenue at gross amounts. When we act as an agent of a
third-party provider, we recognise revenue net of amounts payable
to that third party.
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(b) Revenue from other sources

Revenue from other sources includes income arising from
arrangements other than those accounted for under the revenue
recognition standard.

Contract terminations generally trigger different rights and
obligations. These rights and obligations are not related to our
performance and were not considered at inception of the
accounting contract. Therefore, where relevant, any income over
and above the recovery of the consideration due for the delivered
goods or services is not classified as revenue from customer
contracts. Instead, we classify it as revenue from other sources.

We earn revenue from some of our lease arrangements described in
note 3.2. This includes revenue from operating leases and from
finance leases where Telstra is a dealer-lessor of customer premise
equipment. We recognise revenue from operating leases over the
lease term, and revenue from sale of goods as a dealer-lessor at a
point in time at the commencement date of the lease.

Where a (combined) accounting contract includes lease and non-
lease components and Telstra is a lessor, we allocate the
consideration to lease and non-lease components applying the
relative standalone selling prices requirements for revenue from
contracts with customers.

We receive contributions to extend, relocate or amend our network
assets. Where the counterparty makes a contribution for network
construction activities that is neither a government grant nor
relates to the purchase of ongoing services under the same (or
linked) contract(s), we recognise revenue over the period of the
network construction activities.

Revenue from other sources also includes late payment fees, which
are recognised when charged and their collectability is reasonably
assured.

(c) Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and Telstra will comply
with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs
are deferred and recognised in the income statement as other
income over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.
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Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.3 Expenses

We classify expenses (apart from finance costs) by nature as this
classification more accurately reflects the type of operations we
undertake.

Telstra Group Year ended 30 June
2025 2024

Included in our labour expenses are the following:
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Employee redundancy 114 324
Share-based payments 25 19
Defined contribution plan expense 332 331
Defined benefit plan expense 47 43
Cost of goods sold (included in our goods and services purchased) 2,694 2,883
Other expenses
Impairment losses (excluding net losses on financial assets) 154 534
General and administration 995 1,037
Service contracts and other agreements 999 1,047
Promotion and advertising 286 294
Other operating expenses 232 202
2,666 314
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,414 2,429
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 600 619
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,677 1,431
4,691 4,479
Finance costs
Interest on borrowings m 656
Interest on lease liabilities (Telstra as a lessee) 130 m
Other 5) 19
836 786
Less: interest on borrowings capitalised (94) (90)
742 696

The following paragraphs provide further information about our
expenses and finance costs:

¢ share-based payments expense relates to both cash-settled and
equity-settled share plans. Refer to note 5.2 for further details
about our share-based payments arrangements.

o impairment losses include $72 million (2024: $261 million)

impairment of deferred contract costs and $55 million (2024:

$248 million) impairment of property, plant and equipment,

intangible assets and right of use assets

interest on borrowings has been capitalised using a capitalisation

rate of 5.0 per cent (2024: 5.0 per cent)

¢ other finance costs include unrealised valuation impacts on our
borrowings and derivatives. These include net gains/losses which
arise from changes in the fair value of derivative financial
instruments to the extent that hedge accounting is not effective
or the hedge accounting criteria are not met. These fair values
increase or decrease because of changes in financial indices and
prices over which we have no control. All unrealised amounts
unwind to nil at maturity of the underlying instrument.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.4 Income taxes

This note sets out our tax accounting policies and provides an analysis of our income tax expense and deferred tax balances,

including a reconciliation of tax expense to accounting profit.

Current income tax is based on the accounting profit adjusted for differences in accounting and tax treatments of income and

expenses (i.e. taxable income).

Deferred income tax, which is accounted for using the balance sheet method, arises because the accounting income is not always
the same as taxable income. This creates temporary differences, which usually reverse over time. Until they reverse, a deferred tax
asset or liability must be recognised in the statement of financial position.

This note also provides disclosures which form part of the requirements of the Australian Board of Taxation’s Voluntary Tax

Transparency Code.

2.4.1 Income tax expense

Table A provides a reconciliation of notional income tax expense to actual income tax expense.

Telstra Group
Major components of income tax expense
Current tax expense 872 972
Deferred tax resulting from the origination and reversal of temporary differences 46 (287)
Under/(over) provision of tax in prior years 16 (8)
934 677
Reconciliation of notional income tax expense to actual income tax expense
Profit before income tax expense 3,277 2,465
Notional income tax expense calculated at the Australian tax rate of 30% (2024: 30%) 983 740
Notional income tax expense differs from actual income tax expense due to the tax effect of:
Different tax rates in overseas jurisdictions 24) 41
Net non-taxable items “41) 14)
Under/(over) provision of tax in prior years 16 (8)
Income tax expense on profit 934 677
Income tax benefit recognised during the year directly in other comprehensive income or equity (28) -

Tables B and C include disclosures which form part of the
requirements of the Australian Board of Taxation’s Voluntary Tax
Transparency Code. Any disclosed amounts are determined in
accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards.

Table B provides a breakdown of effective income tax rates and Tax
Transparency Code effective income tax rates (TTC ETR) for both
the Telstra Entity and its Australian resident controlled entities and
the Telstra Group.

Table B Year ended 30 June

Telstra Group 2025 2024

Group | Australia

Australia

Effective income

28.5% 24.5% 27.5% 27.5%
tax rate
TaxTransparency
Code effective 28.0% 24.3% 28.5% 28.3%

income tax rate
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The effective income tax rate for the Telstra Group of 28.5 per cent
(2024: 27.5 per cent) was calculated as income tax expense divided
by profit before income tax expense. Refer to the key non-taxable
and non-deductible items impacting our effective tax rate as
detailed below.

The TTC ETR for the Telstra Group of 28.0 per cent (2024: 28.5 per
cent) differs from the effective income tax rate due to excluding the
impact of under or over provision of tax in prior years and amended
assessments. The 2024 TTC ETRs have been updated to include the
impact of the net over provision of tax and amended 2024
assessments reflected in the current year income tax expense.

The TTC ETR forms part of the requirements of the Voluntary Tax
Transparency Code to disclose the income tax expense borne by
Telstra in respect of the Australian and global operations for the
individual year.
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Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.4 Income taxes (continued)
2.4.1 Income tax expense (continued)
Non-taxable and non-deductible items include the tax effect of:

» $185 million non-taxable income relating to non-controlling
interests in trusts, and

¢ $137 million non-taxable amount related to overseas profits
taxed at lower corporate tax rates (i.e. below 30%), offset by

¢ $56 million non-deductible amount related to current and future
withholding taxes for which no tax offset is available, and

» $59 million of attributable taxable income from foreign
controlled entities.

Table C provides a reconciliation of income tax expense to income

Year ended 30 June
2025

tax paid during the year.

Table C

Telstra Group 2024

Income tax expense 934 677
(Under)/over provision in prior years 16) 8
Temporary differences recognised
in deferred tax expense
Trade and other receivables and
contract assets 2 8
Deferred contract costs 22 88
Property, plant and equipment (351) )
Right-of-use assets 12) 78
Intangible assets 318 86
Trade and other payables 18 48
Provision for employee entitlements (75) 60
Lease liabilities 25 (59)
il?;:;zvﬂviggfsand derivative financial ) @1
Con’gractvliabilities and other revenue 7 a2)
received in advance
Other 3 8
(46) 287
Current tax expense 872 972
Net income tax refunds for prior years (82) (33)
Net income tax receivable next year 190 7
Income tax paid 980 946
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2.4.2 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

Table D details the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised in the statement of financial position, which include
impact of foreign exchange movements.

Table D
Telstra Group

Year ended/as at
30 June

I )

Deferred tax items recognised in the

income statement

Trade and other receivables and

contract assets (=) (190)

Allowance for doubtful debts 50 40

Deferred contract costs a7y (196)

Investments - “4)

Property, plant and equipment (2,269) (1,805)

Right-of-use assets (616) (507)

Intangible assets 421) (753)

Trade and other payables 210 255

Provision for employee entitlements 245 309

Other provisions 124 128

Lease liabilities 702 566

Defined benefit asset 137 132

Borrowings and derivative financial

instruments it 22

Capital tax losses 2 6

Income tax losses 35 27

Other 6 @
(1,750) (1,633)

Deferred tax items recognised in

other comprehensive income or

equity

Investments 2 2

Defined benefit asset 197) (205)

I!?:;rtrrc;vrvnlngsand derivative financial 141 121

Other 6 6

(48) (76)

Other movements

Deferred tax liabilities reclassified to 6 )

liabilities held for sale

Net deferred tax liability (1,792) (1,709)

Comprising:

Deferred tax assets 51 74

Deferred tax liabilities (1,843) (1,783)
(1,792) (1,709)
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Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.4 Income taxes (continued)
2.4.2 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (continued)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

We apply judgement to recognise a deferred tax asset and
review its carrying amount at each reporting date. The carrying
amount is only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available in the future to utilise
this benefit. Any amount unrecognised could be subsequently
recognised if it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow us to benefit from this deferred tax asset.

Table E details deferred tax assets not recognised in the statement
of financial position.

Telstra Group
$m $m
Deferred tax assets not recognised
Capital tax losses 2,601 2,615 ‘
Income tax losses 83 84 ‘
Deductible temporary differences 103 95 ‘
2,787 2,794 \

2.4.3 International tax reform - Pillar Two income taxes

From 1 July 2024 a 15 per cent global minimum tax and 15 per cent
domestic minimum tax applies to the Telstra Group globally. The
Australian Pillar Tworules have been enacted. Pillar Two legislation
has also been enacted or substantively enacted in a number of
offshore jurisdictions where our controlled entities operate.

We applied the transitional safe harbour rules for the financial year
2025, and in respect of the jurisdictions where the transitional rules
were not satisfied, the top up tax exposure did not have a material
impact on our financial results.

We have applied the mandatory temporary exception from
recognising and disclosing information about deferred tax assets
and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes.

2.4.4 Tax consolidated group

Under the Australian taxation law, the Telstra Entity and its eligible
Australian resident wholly-owned entities (members) form a tax
consolidated group and are treated as a single entity for income tax
purposes. The Telstra Entity is the head entity of the group and, in
addition to its own transactions, it recognises the current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and tax credits for all members in the tax consolidated group.

Entities within the tax consolidated group have entered into an
income tax sharing agreement and an income tax funding
agreement with Telstra Group Limited as the head entity.

The income tax sharing agreement specifies methods of allocating
any tax liability in the event the head entity defaults on its group
payment obligations and the treatment where a member exits the
tax consolidated group.
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Under the income tax funding agreement, the head entity will pay
the tax consolidated group liabilities to the Commissioner of
Taxation and each of the members has agreed to pay/receive a
current tax payable to/receivable from the head entity based on the
current tax liability or current tax asset recorded in the financial
statements of the relevant member. The Telstra Entity will also
compensate the members for any deferred tax assets relating to
unused tax losses and tax credits.

Amounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts) by the
Telstra Entity of $991 million (2024: $1 billion) and payable by the
Telstra Entity of $95 million (2024: $82 million) under the income
tax funding agreement are due in the next financial year upon final
settlement of the current tax payable for the tax consolidated
group.

2.4.5 Recognition and measurement

Our income tax expense is the sum of current and deferred income
tax expenses. Current income tax expense is calculated on
accounting profit after adjusting for non-taxable and non-
deductible items based on rules set by the tax authorities. Deferred
income tax expense is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply for the period in which the deferred tax asset is realised or
the deferred tax liability is settled. Both our current and deferred
income tax expenses are calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Our current and deferred taxes are recognised as an expense in the
income statement, except when they relate to items that are
directly recognised in other comprehensive income or equity. In this
case, our current and deferred tax expenses are also recognised
directly in other comprehensive income or equity.

Our current and deferred taxes must also recognise the impact of
any uncertain tax positions. If it is probable that a relevant tax
authority would accept our tax treatment, our tax balances are
recognised under that tax treatment. Otherwise, for each uncertain
tax position for which it is not probable that the relevant tax
authority will accept the tax treatment, we use the most likely
amount or the expected value to estimate our tax balances.

We apply the balance sheet method for calculating our deferred tax

balances. Deferred tax is the expected tax payable or recoverable

on all taxable and deductible temporary differences determined

with reference to the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amount for financial reporting purposes as at the reporting
ate.

We generally recognise deferred tax liabilities for all taxable
temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax
liability arises from:

¢ the initial recognition of goodwill

¢ the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and affects neither our accounting
profit nor our taxable income at the time of the transaction
(single transactions where both deductible and taxable
temporary differences arise on initial recognition that result in
deferred tax assets and liabilities of the same amount are
excluded from this exemption).
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Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.4 Income taxes (continued)
2.4.5 Recognition and measurement (continued)

For our investments in controlled entities, joint ventures and
associated entities, recognition of deferred tax liabilities is required
unless we are able to control the timing of our temporary difference
reversal and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carried forward unused tax losses
and tax credits, can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset in the
statement of financial position where they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and to the extent that we
intend to settle our current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

2.5 Earnings per share

This note outlines the calculation of Earnings per Share (EPS),
which is the amount of post-tax profit attributable to each
share. EPS excludes profit attributable to non-controlling
interests and takes into account the average number of shares
weighted by the number of days on issue.

We calculate basic and diluted EPS. Diluted EPS reflects the
effects of the equity instruments allocated to our employee
share schemes under the Telstra Growthshare Trust.

Telstra Group

Year ended 30 June
2025

Earnings used in the calculation of
basic and diluted EPS

Profit for the year attributable to

equity holders of Telstra Entity 2li2

1,622

Number of shares

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares

(millions)

Weighted average number of ordinary

shares used in the calculation of basic 11,514 11,543
EPS
Dilutive effect of certain employee

. 10 10
share instruments
Weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the 11,524 11,553
calculation of diluted EPS
Basic EPS 18.9 141
Diluted EPS 18.8 14.0

When we calculate the basic EPS, we adjust the weighted average
number of ordinary shares to exclude the shares held in trust by
Telstra Growthshare Trust (Growthshare).

Information about equity instruments issued under Growthshare
can be found in note 5.2.
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2.6 Notes to the statement of cash flows

2.6.1 Reconciliation of profit to net cash provided by operating
activities

Table A provides a reconciliation of profit to net cash provided by
operating activities.

Table A Year ended 30 June
Telstra Group 2025 2024
Profit for the year 2,343 1,788
Add/(subtract) items classified as
investing/financing activities
Finance income (103) 112)
Finance costs 742 696
Net gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets ©3) as7n
Net gain on disposal of businesses,
controlled entities and equity (5) -
accounted investments
Revenue of a dealer-lessor (20) (46)
Net gain on lease related transactions (96) (113)
Government grants received relating
to investing activities &) G
Add/(subtract) non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation 4,691 4,479
Share-based payments 25 19
Defined benefit plan expense 47 43
Share of net loss from joint ventures

. o 17 16
and associated entities
Impairment losses (excluding
inventories, trade and other 55 251
receivables, and deferred contract
costs)
Effects of exchange rate changes 14 25
Other (34) (58)
Cash movementsin operating assets
and liabilities
Decr.ease/(lncrease) intrade and other 280 ©4)
receivables and contract assets
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 85 (108)
Increase in prepayments and other
assets prepey @z ®
Decrease in deferred contract costs 42 267
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other 138) 212
payables
Decrease in contract liabilities and
other revenue received in advance iz 59
Decrease in net tax liability (39) (260)
(Decrease)/increase in provisions (264) 199
Net. qa§h provided by operating 7,324 7,049
activities
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 2. Our performance (continued)

2.6 Notes to the statement of cash flows (continued)
2.6.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Table B details the nature of our cash and cash equivalents.

Table B As at 30 June
Telstra Group 2025 2024
$m

$m
Cash at bank and on hand 559 557
Banl; erosits and nggotiable 453 489
certificates of deposit
Cash and cash equivalents in the 1,012 1,046

statement of cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
include $103 million (2024: $130 million) held by our controlled
entities in China, Papua New Guinea, India and Indonesia. These
amounts are subject to regulatory controls and as a result, our
ability to utilise these funds for general operating activities by the
other entities within the Telstra Group may be constrained.

2.6.3 Recognition, measurement and presentation
(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and on hand, bank
deposits and negotiable certificates of deposit that are held to meet

short-term cash commitments rather than for investment purposes.

Bank deposits and negotiable certificates of deposit are classified
as financial assets held at amortised cost.

(b) Short-term borrowings in financing cash flows

Where our short-term borrowings are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments, we report the cash receipts
and subsequent repayments in financing activities on a net basis in
the statement of cash flows.

(c) Goods and Services Tax (GST) (including other value-added
taxes)

We record our revenue, expenses and assets net of any applicable
GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable

from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In these circumstances
the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense item.

Receivable and payable balances in the statement of financial
position, and receipts from customers and payments to suppliers in
the statement of cash flows include GST where we have either
included GST in our price charged to customers or a supplier has
included GST in their price charged to us. The net amount of GST
due to the ATO but not paid is included in our current trade and
other payables.
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3.1 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

This note provides details of our tangible and intangible
assets, including goodwill, and their impairment assessment.

Our impairment assessment compares the carrying values of
our cash generating units (CGUs) with their recoverable
amounts determined using a ‘value in use’ calculation. The
value in use calculations use key assumptions such as cash
flow forecasts, discount rates and terminal growth rates.

3.1.1 Property, plant and equipment

Table A shows movements in the net book value of our property,
plant and equipment (PPE) assets during the financial year.

Table A Land and Communication | Other plant and | Total property,
Telstra Group buildings assets equipment plapt and
equipment

$m $m

Net book value at 1 July 2023 20,158 20,969
Additions 48 2,233 123 2,404
Depreciation expense (75) (2,243) 111) (2,429)
Impairment losses - 28) - (28)
Other movements ) (41) (%) (49)
Net book value at 30 June 2024 comprising: 566 20,079 222 20,867
Cost 1,181 60,308 1,230 62,719
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (615) (40,229) (1,008) (41,852)
Net book value at 1 July 2024 566 20,079 222 20,867
Additions 34 2,191 104 2,329
Depreciation expense (68) (2,223) (123) (2,414)
Impairment losses 5) (10) O] (16)
Reclassification to assets held for sale - 21 2) (23)
Other movements 2 77) “a7) (92)
Net book value at 30 June 2025 comprising: 529 19,939 183 20,651
Cost 1,166 58,283 1,152 60,601
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (637) (38,344) (969) (39,950)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 3. Our core assets, lease arrangements and working capital (continued)

3.1 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
(continued)

3.1.1 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The following paragraphs provide further information about our
fixed asset classes:

* additions to PPE include $37 million (2024: $41 million) of
capitalised borrowing costs directly attributable to qualifying
assets

¢ land and buildings include leasehold improvements related to
right-of-use assets recognised under our leasing arrangements
(Telstra as a lessee)

e communication assets include network land and buildings that

are essential to the operation of our communication assets

our buildings and communication assets are mainly used by us to

generate revenue, however we also generate rental income from

these assets. Given their dual purpose, it is impractical to
separately present the assets under the operating lease
arrangements. As at 30 June 2025, the total net book value of the
assets used for dual purpose was $2,705 million (2024: $2,672
million).

e asat 30 June 2025, $1,578 million (2024: $1,385 million) of PPE
was under construction and not installed and not ready for use

» other movements include $62 million (2024: $19 million) net
transfers from/to intangible assets, $3 million (2024: $35 million)
decrease due to net foreign exchange differences, and other
individually insignificant transactions.

3.1.2 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Table B shows movements in the net book value of our intangible
assets during the financial year.

Table B Goodwill Software Licences Other intan- | Total intan-
Telstra Group assets gible assets | gible assets

$m $m

Net book value at 1 July 2023 3,464 4,045 1,762 1,718 10,989
Additions - 1,452 1,216 71 2,739
Acquisitions through business combinations 232 1 - 52 285
Amortisation expense - (992) 277) (162) 1,431)
Impairment losses (52) (86) - - (138)
Net foreign currency exchange differences (5) - - - 5)
Other movements - 12) 6) - (18)
Net book value at 30 June 2024 comprising: 3,639 4,408 2,695 1,679 12,421
Cost 3,783 14,024 4,708 3,016 25,531
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (144) (9,616) (2,013) (1,337) (13,110)
Net book value at 1 July 2024 3,639 4,408 2,695 1,679 12,421
Additions - 1,470 1 15 1,486
Acquisitions through business combinations 69 - - 85 154
Amortisation expense - (1,198) (321) (158) (1,677)
Impairment losses - ) - - (2)
Net foreign currency exchange differences (203) - - (137) (340)
Reclassification to assets held for sale (287) (@) - (42) (331)
Other movements - 44 4 16 64
Net book value at 30 June 2025 comprising: 3,218 4,720 2,379 1,458 1,775
Cost 3,347 14,685 4,712 2,787 25,531
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (129) (9,965) (2,333) (1,329) (13,756)
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Section 3. Our core assets, lease arrangements and working capital (continued)

3.1 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
(continued)

3.1.2 Goodwill and other intangible assets (continued)

The following paragraphs detail further information about our
intangible asset classes:

 additions to software assets include $57 million (2024: $49

million) of capitalised borrowing costs directly attributable to

qualifying assets

software assets mostly comprise internally generated assets

licences comprise of spectrum and apparatus licences obtained

to operate a range of radiocommunications devices

¢ impairment losses recognised in the financial year 2024 related to
goodwill of Alliance Automation Pty Ltd and Aqura Technologies
Pty Ltd CGUs and other intangible assets mainly due to our
enterprise reset

¢ other movements include $62 million (2024: $19 million) net
transfers to/from property, plant and equipment to intangible
assets and other individually insignificant transactions.

Capitalisation of development costs

We apply judgement to determine whether to capitalise
development costs.

Development costs are only capitalised if the project is
assessed to be technically and commercially feasible, we are
able to use or sell the asset, and we have sufficient resources
and intent to complete the development.

As at 30 June 2025, $935 million (2024: $916 million) of
software assets were not installed and not ready for use.

3.1.3 Depreciation and amortisation

Table C presents the weighted average useful lives of our property,
plant and equipment and identifiable intangible assets with a
definite useful life.

Table C
Telstra Group

Expected benefit

(years)
As at 30 June

2025 2024

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings 30 30
Communication assets 27 27
Other plant and equipment 7 7
Intangible assets

Software assets 8 9
Licences 17 16
Other intangibles 20 19

Useful lives and residual values of tangible
and intangible assets

We apply judgement to estimate useful lives and residual
values of our assets and review them each year. If useful lives
or residual values need to be modified, the depreciation and
amortisation expense changes from the date of reassessment
until the end of the revised useful life for both the current and
future years.

Assessment of useful lives and residual values includes a
comparison with international trends for telecommunication
companies and, in relation to communication assets, a
determination of when the asset may be superseded
technologically or made obsolete. For intangible assets,
specifically business software, useful lives are adjusted to
align with expected retirement dates of the relevant
applications under the current corporate strategies.

During the financial year 2025, the net effect of the
assessment of useful lives was $59 million increase (2024: $64
million decrease) in depreciation expense and $30 million
(2024: $33 million) decrease in amortisation expense.

3.1.4 Translation of Digicel Pacific acquisition accounted assets

We acquired Digicel Pacific in July 2022 and denominated the
purchase price allocation in US dollars. Following the continued
devaluation of the PNG Kina from its historic alignment with US
dollar as a result of foreign exchange market reforms, we have
amended the denomination of these allocations to PNG Kina to
better align with the main underlying operating currency.

Consequently, during the financial year 2025, we have adjusted the
carrying amounts of the goodwill and the related fair value
adjustments to intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment arising from the acquisition to reflect the foreign
currency translation from PNG Kina to Australian Dollars. The
impacts of this reassessment reduced goodwill by $231 million,
other intangible assets by $145 million, property plant and
equipment by $18 million, deferred tax liabilities by $47 million and
a corresponding adjustment of $347 million was recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve.

3.1.5 Impairment assessment

All non-current tangible and intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Goodwill and
intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are assessed for impairment at least annually. If
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is impaired and an impairment loss is charged to the
income statement so as to reduce the carrying amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value
less cost of disposal and its value in use. Fair value less cost of
disposal is measured with reference to quoted market prices in an
active market. Value in use represents the present value of the
future amount expected to be recovered through the cash inflows
and outflows arising from the asset’s continued use and
subsequent disposal.

We identify CGUs, the smallest groups of assets that generate
largely independent cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets. CGUs to which goodwill is allocated cannot be larger than
an operating segment.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 3. Our core assets, lease arrangements and working capital (continued)

3.1 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
(continued)

3.1.5 Impairment assessment (continued)
(a) Telstra Entity ubiquitous telecommunication network

An impairment assessment is performed at the level of our Telstra
Entity ubiquitous telecommunications network CGU.

Impairment assessment of our ubiquitous telecommunications network

We have determined that assets which form part of the Telstra Entity ubiquitous telecommunications network, comprising the
customer access network and the core network, are working together to generate independent cash inflows. No one item of
telecommunications equipment is of any value without the other assets to which it is connected to deliver our products and services.

Indicators of impairment may include changes in our operating and economic assumptions or possible impacts from risks such as
changing economic and market conditions and climate related events. We apply judgement in determining whether certain trends
with an adverse impact on our cash flows are considered impairment indicators.

We continue to operate in uncertain economic environments with persistent inflation and other economic pressures. However, given
the long-lived nature of the majority of our assets and the nature of the services we provide, the expected return on the assets is not
significantly impacted. As a result, we did not consider the uncertain economic environment as an impairment indicator of our
ubiquitous telecommunications network.

We continue to assess the potential impacts of both acute and chronic physical climate hazards on our assets, including bushfires,
tropical cyclones, coastal erosion and inundation, intense rainfall events and increasing temperatures, as well as the impact of
extreme weather events on our operations and service delivery.

We have already incorporated in our management forecasts some financial impacts related to our short-medium term environmental
goals associated with both reducing our absolute scope 1+2 greenhouse gas emissions by 70 per cent by 2030 (from the financial year
2019 baseline) and enabling renewable energy generation equivalent to 100 per cent of our consumption by 2025, as well as existing
proactive spend and some reactive spend related to climate hazards. However, work is ongoing to incorporate other potential long-
term financial impacts of climate change and our relevant adaptation strategies in our forward plans.

Based on our experience with extreme weather events, and considering the diverse location and nature of our assets as well as our
continued focus on network resiliency and business continuity programs, we do not consider the potential impacts of climate and the
transition to a lower carbon economy to be an impairment indicator at this stage. In addition, based on the analysis performed, the
range of financialimpactsidentified and quantified to date for possible climate scenarios, namely proactive and reactive spend items,
is not significant compared to the excess of the recoverable amount over the carrying value of our ubiquitous telecommunications
network.

As we continue to assess climate impacts to our business, we will incorporate any identified financial impacts into our impairment
assessment. Should we identify material adverse effects of climate or the transition to a lower carbon economy on our cash flows, we
may deem it an impairment indicator in the future.

Management forecasts require significant judgements and assumptions and are subject to risk and uncertainty that may be beyond
our control. Hence, there is a possibility that changes in circumstances will materially alter projections, which may impact our
assessment of impairment indicators and the recoverable amount of assets at each reporting date.
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Section 3. Our core assets, lease arrangements and working capital (continued)

3.1 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
(continued)

3.1.5 Impairment assessment (continued)
(b) Goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to the CGUs as
detailed in table D.

Table D
Telstra Group

As at 30 June
2025 2024

Digicel Pacific'? 1,391 1,611
Telstra Enterprise International Group™® 644 628
Telstra Consumer Group®# 408 341
Telstra Enterprise Australia Group®® 377 437
Health Group® 251 251
Versent® n/a 221
PowerHealth Group 89 89
Fetch TV 32 32
Other®® 26 29

3,218 3,639

1 These CGUs operate in overseas locations. Therefore, the goodwill allocated to these
CGUs will fluctuate in line with movements in applicable foreign exchange rates.

2 Goodwill allocated to the Digicel Pacific CGU includes a reduction of $231 million
adjustment reflecting translation of Digicel Pacific acquisition accounted assets as
detailed in note 3.1.4.

3 The Telstra Enterprise International Group, Telstra Enterprise Australia Group, Telstra
Consumer Group and Health Group CGUs include goodwill from past acquisitions
integrated into these businesses.

4 During the financial year 2025, Telstra acquired Boost Tel Pty Limited and its
controlled entities and its operations were integrated into Telstra Consumer Group CGU.
In addition, a final goodwill adjustment related to Telstra Business Group CGU (included
in ‘Other’) has been transferred from Telstra Consumer Group CGU to ‘Other’.

5 Certain goodwillincluded in these CGUs have been reclassified to assets held for sale.
6 Other includes other individually immaterial CGUs.

We used a value in use calculation to determine the recoverable
amounts of our CGUs with allocated goodwill.

Determining CGUs and their recoverable
amount for impairment assessment of
goodwill

We apply judgement to identify our CGUs and determine their
recoverable amounts using a value in use calculation. These
judgements include cash flow forecasts, as well as the
selection of growth rates, terminal growth rates and discount
rates based on experience and our expectations for the future.

Our cash flow projections are based on five-year
management-approved forecasts unless a different period is
justified. The forecasts use management estimates to
determine income, expenses, capital expenditure and cash
flows for each asset and CGU.

We have concluded that the discounted cash flows generated
continue to support the carrying values of our CGUs, thus no
impairment has been identified.

We have used the following key assumptions in determining the
recoverable amount of our material CGUs to which goodwill has
been allocated:

Table E
Telstra Group

Terminal value
growth rate

Discount rate

I O N

% % %
Digicel Pacific 12.2 13.9 3.0 3.0
Telstra l.-:nterprise 8.8 8.3 20 20
International Group
Telstra Consumer 1.0 122 25 o5
Group
Telstra Enterprise
Australia Group 12.0 13.3 2.5 2.5
Health Group 12.7 12.6 2.5 2.5
Versent' n/a 14.8 n/a 2.5
PowerHealth Group 15.7 16.1 2.5 2.5
Fetch TV 13.7 14.2 2.5 2.5

1 Versent CGU has been reclassified to assets held for sale.

The discount rate represents the pre-tax discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections. The discount rate reflects the market
determined, risk-adjusted discount rate that is adjusted for specific
risks relating to the CGU and the countries in which it operates.

The terminal value growth rate represents the growth rate applied
to extrapolate our cash flows beyond the forecast period. These
growth rates are based on our expectation of the CGUs’ long-term
performance in their markets.

We also perform sensitivity analyses to examine the effect of a
change in key assumptions across all CGUs. For the most sensitive
CGU, the pre-tax discount rate would need to increase by 154 basis
points (2024: 22 basis points) or the terminal value growth rate
would need to decrease by 228 basis points (2024: 33 basis points)
or the EBITDA forecasts would need to decrease by 10.4 per cent
(2024: 1.6 per cent) before the recoverable amount would equal its
carrying value.

No other reasonably possible changes in key assumptions will result
in a material impairment charge for the other CGUs.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 3. Our core assets, lease arrangements and working capital (continued)

3.1 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

(continued)

3.1.6 Recognition and measurement

Our policy for recognition and measurement of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets is detailed in the table below.

Asset class

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including assets under construction, is recorded at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes the purchase price and costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for its intended use.

We capitalise borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in our income
statement when incurred.

Property, plant and equipment other than freehold land are depreciated on a straight-line basis in the
income statement from the time when the assets are installed and ready for use. Items of property,
plant and equipment excluding leasehold improvements are depreciated over their estimated useful
lives. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the useful life of
the assets.

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is measured at cost. Cost represents the excess of what
we pay for the business combination over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired at the
date of acquisition.

Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment on an annual basis or when an indication of
impairment arises.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of joint ventures or associated entities constitutes part of the cost
of the investment.

Internally generated
intangible assets

Internally generated intangible assets include mainly IT development costs incurred in design, build
and testing of new or improved IT products and systems.

Research costs are expensed when incurred.
Capitalised development costs include:

¢ external direct costs of materials and services consumed

¢ payroll and payroll-related costs for employees (including contractors) directly associated with the
project

¢ borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the qualifying assets.

Internally generated intangible assets have a finite life and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives.

Acquired intangible
assets

We acquire other intangible assets either as part of a business combination or through a separate
acquisition. Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recorded at their fair value at the
date of acquisition and recognised separately from goodwill. Intangible assets acquired through a
specific acquisition are recorded at cost.

Intangible assets that are considered to have a finite life are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
useful lives. Intangible assets that are considered to have an indefinite life are not amortised but tested
for impairment on an annual basis or when an indication of impairment exists.
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Section 3. Our core assets, lease arrangements and working capital (continued)

3.2 Lease arrangements

This note provides details about our leasing arrangements,
where Telstra is either a lessee or a lessor, including
arrangements where Telstra is an intermediate lessor (i.e.
subleases).

3.21 Telstra as a lessee

Our most significant lease contracts relate to network and non-
network properties, including:

¢ land and buildings supporting our network assets and data
centres
» office buildings and retail spaces.

Other lease arrangements include:

¢ spaces on mobile towers

¢ renewable energy plants

e motor vehicles

¢ equipment, mobile devices, laptops, personal computers,
printers and other assets.

None of our leases include residual value guarantees. Other
features of our leases are described below.

(a) Leases with extension, termination and purchase options

We do not have any significant purchase options in our property
leases.

Extension options are included in a number of commercial and
network property leases and are taken up to maximise the
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in our
core business operations.

The majority of extension and termination options within our lease
contracts are exercisable only by us and not by the respective
lessor, with the exception of ‘holdover periods’ in our property
leases, where generally either party can terminate the lease.

The extension, termination and purchase options are considered
when determining lease term.

Determining lease term for property
leases

We apply judgement to determine a lease term for leases with
extension, termination or purchase options. We also consider
lease modifications where we continue to use the same
underlying asset for an extended term.

Our property lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions,
with typical fixed term periods between one and 15 years.

In determining the lease term, we consider all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise
an extension, termination or purchase option, including
holdover periods where relevant.

In particular, we consider contractual terms under which the
lease term can be extended or terminated, potential relocation
costs, asset specific factors and any relevant leasehold
improvements or our wider strategy and policy decisions.

We also consider long-term inter-company arrangements to
access tower sites and exchanges located on land leased from
third parties.

Extension options are only included in the lease term if the
lease is reasonably certain to be extended. Periods beyond
termination options are only included in the lease term if it is
reasonably certain that the lease will not be terminated.

The longer the fixed lease term, the less certain a lessee is to
exercise an option to extend the lease.

The extension options for leases of office buildings have
generally not been included in the lease term due to a
competitive marketplace and our commercial ability to either
substantially renegotiate or replace these assets instead of
exercising the extension options.

Our termination options have been considered reasonably
certain not to be exercised; therefore, the lease terms have not
been shortened and all future cash flows have been included
in the measurement of the lease liability.

The lease term assessment is reviewed if a significant event or
change in circumstances occurs which affects this
assessment and that is within our control as a lessee.
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Section 3. Our core assets, lease arrangements and working capital (continued)

3.2 Lease arrangements (continued)
3.2.1 Telstra as a lessee (continued)
(b) Leases with lease payment increases

Under most of our lease arrangements, we pay fixed lease
payments which may also include fixed rent increases, both of
which are included in the measurement of lease liabilities at initial
recognition or at the time of reassessment. However, some of our
property leases may contain other escalation clauses, including
increases subject to future consumer price index or at greater of
fixed increase and future consumer price index and/or increases
subject to market rates. Such increases are included in the
measurement of lease liabilities at the time of reassessment.

No material remeasurements of lease liabilities resulting from such
escalation clauses were recognised during the financial year 2025.

(c) Leases with variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate

Some of our leases, such as leases of renewable energy plants,
include variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate. Such payments are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and are expensed as incurred in ‘other expenses’ in
the income statement.

(d) Right-of-use assets

Table A shows movements in net book value of our right-of-use
assets during the financial year.

For personal use only

Table A Right-of-use assets for underlying assets
Telstra Group Land and Other Total
e | | ™"

Net book value at 1 July 2023 2,081 2,825
Additions 391 218 609
Depreciation expense (436) (183) (619)
Impairment losses (82) - (82)
Terminations (22) ) (€1)]
Derecognition due to finance subleases - ) )
Other movements 2 (29) 27)
Net book value at 30 June 2024 comprising: 1,934 732 2,666
Cost 3,791 1,409 5,200
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (1,857) (677) (2,534)
Net book value at 1 July 2024 1,934 732 2,666
Additions 520 278 798
Depreciation expense (422) (178) (600)
Impairment losses 37) = (37)
Terminations (85) (16) (101)
Derecognition due to finance subleases @) @) 14)
Other movements 5 (36) 31
Net book value at 30 June 2025 comprising: 1,908 773 2,681
Cost 4185 1,542 5,727
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (2,277) (769) (3,046)

Other movements include other individually insignificant
transactions.
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Section 3. Our core assets, lease arrangements and working capital (continued)

3.2 Lease arrangements (continued)
3.2.1 Telstra as a lessee (continued)
(d) Right-of-use assets (continued)

Table B provides information about the weighted average useful
lives of our right-of-use assets.

Table B
Telstra Group

Weighted average
useful life (years)

As at 30 June

Right-of-use assets
Land and buildings 1 1

Other 8 8

For personal use only

(e) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities do not include leases with variable payments which
do not depend on an index or a rate, for which associated
outstanding rental payments as at balance date continue to be
included in trade and other payables.

Determining incremental borrowing rates
for property leases

We apply judgement to determine incremental borrowing
rates for our property leases because the interest rates
implicit in leases are not readily determinable for those
arrangements.

The incremental borrowing rates are determined with
reference to rates sourced from market-based credit adjusted
yield curves which are independently derived and reasonably
reflect the credit risk of the lessee. The discount rates also
reflect:

¢ the lease term (based on the weighted average repayment
term)

e any guarantees which may be in place

« the impact of any security if significant to pricing.

As at 30 June 2025, the weighted average incremental
borrowing rate was 4.0 per cent (2024: 3.2 per cent).

Table C presents maturity analysis of our lease liabilities.

Telstra Group
Undiscounted future cash flows
Less than 1 year 631 611
1to 2 years 461 487
2tobyears 1,086 1,033
More than 5 years 1,719 1,592
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 3,897 3,723
Future finance charges (798) (615)
Present value of lease liabilities 3,099 3,108
Comprising:
Current 502 530
Non-current 2,597 2,578
3,099 3,108

Measurement of lease liabilities reflects judgements made about
discounted future cash flows arising from reasonably certain
extension options and lease modifications, which must be
reassessed should the circumstances change.

Potential future cash outflows of $1,270 million (2024: $1,669
million) are not reflected in the measurement of lease liabilities as
they relate to leases which are yet to commence and/or extension
options that we assessed as not reasonably certain. Almost 90 per
cent (2024: 90 per cent) of those cash flows would occur after five
years. These outflows represent contractual undiscounted future
cash flows estimated based on fixed lease payments only, payable
over:

« for leases yet to commence - the legally non-cancellable lease
term

o for leases already recognised in the statement of financial
position and for those yet to commence - all extension options
exercisable only by us (i.e. excluding holdover periods).

Such cash flows are not contractually payable until options have
been legally exercised (if at all) and/or until the effective dates of
already executed new contracts.
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Section 3. Our core assets, lease arrangements and working capital (continued)

3.2 Lease arrangements (continued)
3.2.1 Telstra as a lessee (continued)

(f) Amounts recognised in the income statement and cash
outflows for leases

Table D presents amounts recognised in the income statement and
the cash outflows related to our lease arrangements.

Year ended 30 June
2025 2024

Table D
Telstra Group

Amounts recognised in the income

statement
Income from operating subleases (in
13 8

revenue from other sources)
Net gain on sale and leaseback

. . : 31 50
transactions (in other income)
Net gain/(loss) on modifications and
reassessment of leases (in other 45 )
income)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (in
depreciation and amortisation (600) (619)
expense)
Impairment losses (in other expenses) 37) (82)
Expense for leases with variable 6) @
payments (in other expenses)
Interest expense on lease liabilities (in (130) an

net finance costs)

Cash outflows for leases
In cash flows from operating activities (6) (@)
In cash flows from financing activities
(principal portion)

In cash flows from financing activities
(interest portion)

(632) (643)

(130) (108)

3.2.2 Telstra as a lessor (including a dealer-lessor and an
intermediate lessor)

Our lease arrangements where Telstra is a lessor, including a
dealer-lessor and intermediate lessor, include the following main
categories:

¢ leases and subleases of property assets, including office and
network buildings

¢ finance leases where Telstra is a dealer-lessor of communication
assets dedicated to solution management

¢ leases of modem devices to our consumer and small business

customers

leases of dark fibre and exchange buildings

leases of spaces on mobile towers.

Our key finance and operating leases are described below.
(a) Finance leases
(i) Finance leases where Telstra is a dealer-lessor

We enter into finance lease arrangements with our customers
predominantly for communication assets dedicated to solution
management. At lease commencement date, we recognise revenue
and a selling profit from these transactions as we have no risks
associated with the remaining rights in the underlying assets.
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(i) Subleases

Generally, we rent office and network buildings for our own use and
not with the intention to earn rental income. However, where our
needs or the intended use of the rented properties change and we
have assessed that exiting a lease is uneconomical, we may
sublease property assets on market terms for all or a part of the
remaining non-cancellable lease term of the head lease.

These subleases are either classified as operating lease or finance
lease. For finance subleases, at lease commencement date, we
record a net gain or loss on the derecognised right-of-use asset and
recognise a finance lease receivable. We have no risks associated
with any retained rights in the underlying assets as the properties
are vacated and returned to the landlords at the end of the non-
cancellable lease term.

(iii) Leases of passive infrastructure assets

Generally, we hold our infrastructure assets for our own use and not
with the intention to earn rental income. However, we also generate
some revenue from rental of dark fibre, exchange building
floorspace and spaces on mobile towers mainly to our wholesale
customers.

These leases are either classified as operating lease or finance
lease.

(iv) Finance lease receivable maturity analysis

Table E sets out the maturity analysis of undiscounted lease
payments receivable and the unearned finance income for our
finance lease receivables. No unguaranteed residual values accrue
under our finance leases.

Table E
Telstra Group

As at 30 June
2025 2024

Undiscounted lease payments
receivable under finance leases

Less than 1year 92 93
1to2years 36 32
2to 3 years 49 57
3to 4 years 39 40
4 to 5 years 33 28
More than 5 years 176 166
;r:::ilv:r;cli;sscounted lease payments 425 416
Less: unearned finance income (169) (130)
Net investment in the lease 256 286
Allowance for doubtful debts (O} (O}
255 285
Comprising
Current 66 72
Non-current 189 213
255 285

During the financial year 2025, we added $53 million (2024: $128
million) new finance lease receivables and recognised interest
income of $20 million (2024: $23 million).

Refer to note 3.3.1 for details regarding impairment assessment of
our finance lease receivables.
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Section 3. Our core assets, lease arrangements and working capital (continued)

3.2 Lease arrangements (continued)

3.2.2 Telstra as a lessor (including a dealer-lessor and an
intermediate lessor) (continued)

(b) Operating leases

Table F sets out maturity analysis of undiscounted future lease
payments receivable under our operating leases.

96

Table F
Telstra Group

Within 1 year 112

Within 1to 2 years 75 68

Within 2 to 3 years 60 53

Within 3 to 4 years 51 33

Within 4 to 5 years 41 20

After 5 years 243 131
582 401

(c) Amounts recognised in the income statement

Table G presents amounts relating to our lease arrangements where
Telstra is a lessor (including an intermediate lessor) recognised in
the income statement during the financial year.

For personal use only

Table G
Telstra Group

As at 30 June
2025 2024

Revenue from dealer-lessor finance
leases (in revenue from other sources)

Income from operating leases,
including subleases (in revenue from 105 87
other sources)

Net gain on derecognition due to

finance leases, including subleases (in 20 63
other income)

34 46

Finance income from finance leases (in

. . 20 23
finance income)

3.2.3 Recognition and measurement
(a) Lease identification and lease term

A contract is, or contains, a lease if it conveys the right to control
the use of anidentified asset, including a physically distinct portion
of an asset, for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The
customer has the right to control the use of an identified asset if the
supplier has no substantive substitution rights, and the customer
obtains substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset and has the right to direct its use.

A contract may include lease and non-lease components, which are
accounted for separately. We allocate the consideration to lease
and non-lease components based on their relative standalone
(selling) prices.

If a lease has been identified at inception of the arrangement, a
lease term is determined considering a non-cancellable period and
reasonably certain extension, termination or purchase options.

(b) Telstra as a lessee

Alessee recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at lease
commencement date. The lease liability is initially measured as a
present value of the following lease payments:

« fixed payments (including any in-substance fixed lease
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

¢ variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate,

initially using the index or rate as at the commencement date

the exercise price of a purchase option, if the purchase option was

assessed as reasonably certain to be exercised

payments for penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term

reflects that the lessee will exercise that option.

Lease payments expected to be made under a reasonably certain
extension option are also reflected in the measurement of the lease
liability.

Where lease arrangements include market rent review clauses,
lease liabilities are measured excluding any expected impacts from
market rent reviews until they are legally binding and can be reliably
measured.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease, unless that rate is not readily determinable, in which
case the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised in the income statement in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers those payments occurs.

At the commencement of the lease, right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, which comprises the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the
commencement date and any initial direct costs. Where an
obligation exists to dismantle, remove or restore a leased asset or
the site itis located on and a provision has been raised, the right-of-
use asset also includes these restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term. If
it is reasonably certain that we will exercise the purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s
useful life. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of
the lease.

Right-of-use assets are reviewed for impairment under the same
policy as our property, plant and equipment assets. Refer to note
3.1.5 for further details regarding impairment testing.

Costs of improvements to the leased properties are capitalised as
leasehold improvements and usually depreciated over the shorter
of the useful life of the improvements and the term of the lease.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 3. Our core assets, lease arrangements and working capital (continued)

3.2 Lease arrangements (continued)
3.2.3 Recognition and measurement (continued)
(b) Telstra as a lessee (continued)

We reassess lease liability (and make a corresponding adjustment
to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

¢ the lease term has changed (reflecting reassessment of or
exercise of an extension or termination options previously not
included in the measurement of the lease liability) or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate

¢ the future lease payments change due to changesin anindexor a
rate, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate

¢ alease contract is modified and the lease modification is not
accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate.

(c) Telstra as a lessor (including a dealer-lessor and an
intermediate lessor)

We distinguish between finance leases, which effectively transfer
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of
the leased asset from the lessor to the lessee, and operating leases
under which the lessor effectively retains substantially all such
risks and benefits. Lease classification is made at the inception date
and is only reassessed if a lease is modified.

Where we are an intermediate lessor, we account for the head lease
and the sublease as two separate contracts. The sublease is
classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease.

Where we lease assets via a finance lease, a finance lease
receivable (i.e. a net investment in the lease) is recognised at the
lease commencement date and measured at the present value of
the lease payments receivable plus the present value of any
unguaranteed residual value expected to accrue at the end of the
lease term and discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease.

Finance lease receipts are allocated between finance income and a
reduction of the finance lease receivable over the term of the lease
in order to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net
investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Where we are a dealer-lessor, at the commencement of the lease, in
addition to the finance lease receivable we also recognise a selling
profit or loss (being the difference between revenue from other

sources and the cost of sale) from the sale of the underlying asset.

Income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease and presented in the income
statement as revenue from other sources.

(d) Sale and leaseback transactions

When we sell and lease back the same asset, the accounting
treatment depends on whether the control of the asset has been
transferred to the buyer:

o if yes, we measure the right-of-use asset arising from the
leaseback at the proportion of the previous carrying amount of
the asset that relates to the rights retained by us as a seller-
lessee. Accordingly, we recognise only the amount of any gain or
loss that relates to the rights transferred to the buyer-lessor.

¢ if not, as a seller-lessee we continue to recognise the transferred
asset and we recognise a financial liability equal to the transfer
proceeds.
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3.3 Trade and other receivables and contract assets

3.3.1 Current and non-current trade and other receivables and
contract assets

Telstra Group
Note
Current
Zgi(:rearcizei/i\/\/if:lc(eljssi?r?ers el 2,731
Finance lease receivables 3.2 66 72
Accrued revenue 256 227
Other receivables 218 250
3,056 3,280
Contract assets 3.5 621 548
3,677 3,828
Non-current
Finance lease receivables 3.2 189 213
Amounts owed by joint
ventures and associated 6.5 - 139
entities
Other receivables 38 51
888 1,062
Contract assets 3.5 269 280
1,157 1,342

The majority of our receivables are in the form of contracted
agreements with our customers. In general, the terms and
conditions of these contracts require settlement between 14 and 30
days from the date of invoice. Credit risk associated with trade and
other receivables and contract assets has been provided for.

Our trade receivables include receivables with deferred payment
terms over 12, 24 or 36 months arising from mass market plans of
hardware and services. Amounts expected to be collected within 12
months from the reporting date are presented as current assets.

Trade receivables from contracts with customers represent an
unconditional right to receive consideration (primarily cash) which
normally arises when the goods and services have been delivered
and/or a valid invoice has been issued. By contrast, contract assets
relate to our rights to consideration for goods or services provided
to the customer but for which we do not have an unconditional right
to payment at the reporting date.

In general, we invoice customers in advance for services provided
under our prepaid or fixed fee (usually monthly) contracts and in
arrears for usage-based contracts (e.g. carriage services under
enterprise contracts). In those cases, we would recognise a contract
liability and a contract asset, respectively.

Refer to note 3.5 for movements in net contract assets and contract
liabilities.



For personal use only

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Telstra Financial Report 2025

Section 3. Our core assets, lease arrangements and working capital (continued)

3.3 Trade and other receivables and contract assets
(continued)

3.3.1 Current and non-current trade and other receivables and
contract assets (continued)

Other current receivables include funds that do not meet the
criteria to be classified as cash and cash equivalents as they are not
available for use by the Telstra Group. They mainly include $15
million (2024: $12 million) monies held on behalf of our Digicel
Pacific customers in respect of the mobile money business.

Refer to note 6.5.1 for further details on amounts owed by joint
ventures and associated entities.

(a) Impairment of trade and other receivables and contract
assets

Trade and other receivables and contract assets are exposed to
customers’ credit risk and are subject to impairment assessment.

If a credit loss (i.e. a shortfall between the contractual and
expected cash flows) is expected, an allowance for doubtful debt is
raised to reduce the carrying amount of trade and other receivables
and contract assets. For both receivables and contract assets we
estimate the expected credit loss using one or a combination of a
portfolio approach and/or an individual account by account
assessment as detailed below.

(i) Portfolio approach

The portfolio approach is based on historical credit loss experience
and, where appropriate, adjusted to reflect current conditions and
estimates of future economic outlook. This approach is mostly
applied to balances arising from our consumer and small to medium
business customer contracts. Under this approach, receivables and
contract assets are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as:

e account status (services still active or not)
¢ customers’ payment history
¢ the days past due.

For each grouping, the expected credit loss is then calculated on
the probability that an account within the group will default (i.e. it
will become past due by more than 90 days, or when an invoice will
be overdue for our no-lock-in consumer plans) and the expected
loss rate when they default, both represented as a percentage of
the exposure at default and determined at the customer account
level.

Our provision rates range from 0.1 per cent (2024: 0.1 per cent) for
balances not past due to 91.0 per cent (2024: 91.0 per cent) for
balances where the payment is overdue by more than 90 days and
the customer’s services have been deactivated.

(ii) Individual approach

The individual approach is an account by account assessment
based on credit history, knowledge of debtor’s financial situation,
such as insolvency or entering a payment plan, or other known
credit risk specific to the debtor, such as judgement based on the
debtor’s industry. This approach is applied to balances arising from
contracts with large enterprise and government customers as well
as to other accounts in TEA, Tl, Telstra InfraCo, TC and TB
segments where some detrimental change in payment behaviour
has been noticed or certain thresholds have been exceeded by a
customer.

Balances arising from our transactions with nbn co (reported in
Telstra InfraCo and TC segments) are separately assessed based
on the Australian government credit risk rating.

We estimate our allowance for impairment as detailed below.

Estimating expected credit losses

We apply judgement to estimate the expected credit losses
for our trade and other receivables measured at amortised
cost and for contract assets.

For trade receivables and contract assets arising from our
Telstra Consumer, Telstra Business and Telstra Enterprise
Australia customers, we have implemented a scenario-based
approach incorporating base, good and bad economic
scenarios. The overall expected credit loss was calculated as a
weighted average of the three scenarios.

Our analysis has shown that generally overall macroeconomic
factors, such as unemployment rates, interest rates or gross
domestic product have no strong correlation with our bad debt
losses unless certain thresholds are exceeded. As at 30 June
2025, those macroeconomic factors were within the relevant
thresholds.

The aging analysis and loss allowance in relation to trade
receivables from contracts with customers, finance lease
receivables and contract assets are detailed in table B. The analysis
is based on the original due date of the receivables, including where
repayment terms for certain long outstanding receivables have
been renegotiated. Contract assets are not yet due for collection,
thus the entire balance has been included in the ‘not past due’
category. Unallocated receipts from or credits granted to
customers have been included in the ‘not past due’ category.

Table B
Telstra Group

As at 30 June

2025 2024

Gross | Allow- ross Allow-
ance ance
$ $

$m

Not past due 3,850 (66) 4,015 (58)

Past due 1 - 30 days 296 1) 277 5)

Past due 31 - 60

days 105 @ 102 9

Past due 61 - 90

days 56 (10) 55 (13)

Past 91 days 245 (136) 243 (104)
4,552 (230) 4,692 (189)

Accrued revenue, amounts owed by joint ventures and associated
entities, and other receivables (before allowance for doubtful
debts) totalling $524 million (2024: $675 million) are subject to
impairment assessment using the general approach and include 55
per cent (2024: 33 per cent) of balances with counterparties with an
external credit rating of A- or above, and 19 per cent (2024: 40 per
cent) of balances with counterparties with an external credit rating
between B+ and B-. The remaining balance is related to individually
insignificant debtors, and there is no concentration of credit risk in
those amounts.
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Section 3. Our core assets, lease arrangements and working capital (continued)

3.3 Trade and other receivables and contract assets
(continued)

3.3.1 Current and non-current trade and other receivables and
contract assets (continued)

(a) Impairment of trade and other receivables and contract
assets (continued)

We hold security for a number of trade receivables, including past
due or impaired receivables, in the form of guarantees, letters of
credit and deposits. During the financial year 2025, the securities
we called upon were insignificant. These trade receivables, along
with our trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired,
comprise customers who have a good debt history and are
considered recoverable. Further, we limit our exposure to credit risk
from trade receivables by establishing a maximum payment period
and, in certain instances, cease providing further services after 90
days from the past due date (or 30 days for our no-lock-in consumer
plans).

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts in respect of all our
trade and other receivables and contracts assets, regardless of the
method used in measuring the impairment allowance, are detailed
in table C.

Table C
Telstra Group

Year ended 30 June
2025 2024

For personal use only

Opening balance 1 July 197) (193)

Additional allowance 181) (139) ‘
Amount used 28 39 ‘
Amount reversed 109 96 ‘
Closing balance 30 June (241) 197) ‘

Impairment allowance related to accrued revenue, amounts owed

by joint ventures and associated entities, and other receivables (i.e.
balances not presented in table B) amounted to $11 million (2024
$8 million).

3.3.2 Recognition and measurement

Trade and other receivables and contract assets are financial assets
which are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Contract assets are initially recorded at the transaction price
allocated as compensation for goods or services provided to
customers for which the right to collect payment is subject to
providing other goods or services under the same contract (or group
of contracts) and/or we are yet to issue a valid invoice. Contract
assets are subsequently measured to reflect relevant transaction
price adjustments (where required) and are transferred to trade
receivables when the right to payment becomes unconditional.
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(a) Impairment of financial assets

We estimate the expected credit losses for our financial assets
(including contract assets) measured at amortised cost depending
on their nature on either of the following basis:

e for accrued revenue, amounts owed by joint ventures and
associated entities, and other receivables - using a general
approach, i.e. 12-month expected credit loss which results from
all possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date. However, if the credit risk of a financial asset at
the reporting date has increased significantly since its initial
recognition, loss allowance is calculated based on lifetime
expected credit losses.

o for trade receivables from contracts with customers, contract
assets and lease receivables - using a simplified approach, i.e.
lifetime expected credit loss which results from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Any expected credit loss is discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

Any customer account with debt more than 90 days past due (or
when an invoice is overdue for our no-lock-in (month to month)
mass market plans) is considered to be in default.

Trade and other receivables and contract assets are written off
against the impairment allowance or directly against their carrying
amounts and expensed in the income statement when all collection
efforts have been exhausted and the financial asset is considered
uncollectable. Factorsindicating there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery include insolvency and significant time period since the
last invoice was issued.

3.4 Contract liabilities and other revenue received in
advance

Contract liabilities arise from our contracts with customers and
represent amounts paid (or due) to us by customers before
receiving the goods and/or services promised under the contract.

Otherrevenue received in advance comprises upfront consideration
under contracts giving rise to revenue from other sources or other
income, for example from sale of assets.

Amounts expected to be recognised as revenue within 12 months
from the reporting date are presented as current liabilities.

Table A presents customer payments received in advance under
different types of our commercial arrangements.

As at 30 June
2025 2024

Table A
Telstra Group

Current

Contract liabilities 3.5 1,344 1,334

g;c:;:;zvenue received in 143 143
1,487 1,477

Non-current

Contract liabilities 3.5 1,040 1,062

;);C;rr](r:e;venue received in 583 561
1,623 1,623
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Section 3. Our core assets, lease arrangements and working capital (continued)

3.5 Net contract assets and contract liabilities

Contract assets and contract liabilities arise due to the timing
differences between revenue recognition and customer invoicing.
Our billing arrangements for goods and services as well as different
types of discounts, credits or other incentives can vary depending
on the type and nature of the contracts with customers. As a result,
at times under the same accounting contract, we may recognise
both a contract asset and a contract liability. At each reporting
date, any balances arising from the same accounting contract are
presented net in the statement of financial position as either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability.

The net presentation mainly impacts our small to medium business
and enterprise framework arrangements that offer loyalty programs
and technology funds, and nbn Definitive Agreements, where
multiple legal contracts have been combined as one accounting
contract.

Table A presents opening and closing balances of our current and
non-current contract assets and contract liabilities and their total
net movement for the period.

Telstra Group
621 548

Current contract assets

Non-current contract assets 269 280
Total contract assets 890 828
Current contract liabilities (1,344) (1,334)
Non-current contract liabilities (1,040) (1,062)
Total contract liabilities (2,384) (2,396)
Total net contract liabilities (1,494) (1,568)
s ey ar wo

Generally, contract assets increase when we recognise revenue for
goods and services transferred to the customer before billing and
decrease when we invoice customers for already provided goods
and services.

On the other hand, contract liabilities increase when we receive
consideration in advance of transferring the goods and services to
the customer, and decrease when we recognise revenue for the
goods and services previously prepaid by the customer.

Other changes in our contract assets and contract liabilities
represent movements resulting from changes in the transaction
prices due to timing of invoicing and recognition of discounts,
credits and other incentives.

The following selected movements contributed to the overall
decrease of $74 million (2024: $152 million increase) in the net
contract liabilities:

o $1,382 million (2024: $1,441 million) revenue recognised in the
reporting period that was included in the contract liabilities
balance at the beginning of the reporting period

¢ $7 million increase (2024: $14 million) reflecting cumulative
catch-up adjustments to revenue recognised in the prior
reporting periods

* $11 million net decrease (2024: nil) reflecting reclassification to
assets and liabilities classified as held for sale.

Refer to note 3.3.1 for details regarding impairment assessment of
contract assets.
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Section 3. Our core assets, lease arrangements and working capital (continued)

3.6 Deferred contract costs

We pay dealer commissions to acquire customer contracts and
we incur upfront set-up and other costs related to customer
contracts. When those costs support the delivery of goods and
services in the future and are expected to be recovered, they
are deferred in the statement of financial position and
amortised on a basis consistent with the transfer of goods and
services to which these costs relate.

Table A provides movements in net book values of the deferred
contract costs.

Table A
Telstra Group

Costs to
obtain a

contract

Commis-
sions

Net book value at 1 July 2023 comprising:

$m
875

Costs to fulfill a contract

Set-up costs

$m
a3

Total
deferred
contract

Costs of costs

service
provider

$m
284

327

1,202

Current n/a - 114 114 14
Non-current 875 43 170 213 1,088
Additions 223 8 386 394 617
Amortisation expense (252) (10) (362) (372) (624)
Impairment losses (261) - - - (261)
Net book value at 30 June 2024 comprising: 585 41 308 349 934
Current n/a - 140 140 140
Non-current 585 41 168 209 794
Net book value at 1 July 2024 585 41 308 349 934
Additions 220 6 378 384 604
Amortisation expense (215) ) (349) (358) (573)
Impairment losses (72) - - - (72)
Reclassification to assets held for sale - - >12) 12) 12)
Net book value at 30 June 2025 comprising: 518 38 325 363 881
Current n/a - 108 108 108
Non-current 518 38 217 255 773

Amortisation period of deferred contract
costs

We apply judgement to estimate the amortisation period of
deferred contract costs to obtain a contract.

For sales commissions paid on acquisition of the initial
contract which are not commensurate with recontracting
commissions, the amortisation period reflects the average
estimated customer life for respective types of contracts.
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Section 3. Our core assets, lease arrangements and working capital (continued)

3.6 Deferred contract costs (continued)
3.6.1 Recognition and measurement

We capitalise costs to obtain an accounting contract when the
costs are incremental, i.e. would not have been incurred if the
contract had not been obtained and are recoverable either directly
via reimbursement by the customer or indirectly through the
contract margin.

We immediately expense the incremental costs of obtaining
contracts if the period of benefit is one year or less.

Costs to fulfil a contract relate directly to an identified good or
service or indirectly to other activities that are necessary under the
contract but that do not result in a transfer of goods or services.

Costs to fulfil a contract include set-up costs and prepaid costs of
a service provider related to goods and services which will be
transferred in the future reporting periods.

We capitalise costs to fulfil a contract if:

¢ the costs relate directly to a contract or a specifically identified
anticipated contract

the costs generate or enhance resources that we control and will
use when transferring future goods and services

* we expect to recover the costs.

We amortise deferred contract costs in ‘goods and services
purchased’ expense over the term that reflects the expected period
of benefit of the expense. This period may extend beyond the initial
contract term to the estimated customer life or average customer
life of the class of customers. We use the amortisation pattern
consistent with the method used to measure progress and
recognise revenue for the related goods or services.

We assess whether deferred contract costs are impaired whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. We recognise impairment losses
in ‘other expenses’.

3.7 Inventories

Telstra Group

Current

Goods for resale 408 443

Network and other inventory 77 75
485 518

Non-current

Network and other inventory 100 162
100 162

3.7.1 Recognition and measurement

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
For the majority of inventory items, we assign cost using the
weighted average cost basis.

Net realisable value of items expected to be sold is the estimated
selling price less the estimated costs incurred in marketing, selling
and distribution.

Net realisable value of items expected to be consumed, for example
used in the construction of another asset, is the net value expected
to be earned through future use.

3.8 Trade and other payables

Telstra Group
Current
Trade payables 1,117 1,476
Accrued expenses 1,921 1,859
Accrued capital expenditure 527 542
Accrued interest 168 157
Contingent consideration - 67
Other payables 479 525
4,212 4,626
Non-current
Other payables 28 10
28 10

Trade payables and other payables are non-interest bearing
liabilities. Our payment terms vary, however payments are generally
made within 20 days to 90 days from the invoice date.

Contingent consideration relates to payment obligations arising
from our acquisitions of controlled entities and is measured at fair
value. Refer to note 4.5.6 for further details.

3.8.1 Recognition and measurement

Trade and other payables, including accruals, are recorded when we
are required to make future payments as a result of purchases of
assets or services. Trade and other payables are financial liabilities
initially recognised at fair value and carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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4.1 Capital management

Capital management is undertaken in accordance with the capital
management framework and financial parameters regularly
reviewed and approved by the Board.

We manage our capital structure with the aim to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, while:

¢ safeguarding our ability to continue as a going concern
¢ maintaining an optimal capital structure and cost of capital that
provides flexibility for strategic investments.

In order to maintain or adjust our capital structure, we may issue or
repay debt, adjust the amount of dividends to be paid to
shareholders or return capital to shareholders.

Notes 4.3 and 4.4 provide further details on each component of
capital, being equity and net debt.

4.2 Dividend
We currently pay dividends to equity holders of the Telstra Entity

twice a year, an interim and a final dividend. Table A below provides
details about the dividends paid during the financial year.

Table A Year ended 30 June

| Yearended30June |
$m $m

Previous year final

dividend paid 1,040 982 9.0 8.5
Interim dividend 1,097 1,040 9.5 9.0 ‘
paid

2137 2,022 18.5 175 |

On 14 August 2025, the Directors of Telstra Group Limited resolved
to pay a fully franked final dividend for the financial year 2025 of 9.5
cents per ordinary share. The final dividend will be fully franked at a
tax rate of 30 per cent. The record date for the final dividend will be
28 August 2025, with payment to be made on 25 September 2025.
From 27 August 2025, shares will trade excluding entitlement to the
dividend.

On 14 August 2025, the Board determined that the Telstra Group
Limited Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP) will continue to operate
for the final dividend for the financial year 2025. The election date
for participation in the DRP is 29 August 2025.

As at 30 June 2025, the final dividend for the financial year 2025 was
not determined or publicly recommended by the Board. Therefore,
no provision for the dividend had been raised in the statement of
financial position. A $1,081 million provision for the final dividend
payable has been raised as at the date of resolution.

There are no income tax consequences for the Telstra Group
resulting from the resolution and payment of the final dividend,
except for $464 million of franking debits arising from the payment
of this dividend that will be adjusted in our franking account
balance.
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Table B provides information about our franking account balance.

Table B Year ended 30 June
Telstra Group 2025 2024

$ $m
Franking account balance (deficit) 81 34)

Franking debits that will arise from the
receipt of income tax receivable as at
30 June (at a tax rate of 30% on a tax
received basis)

(207) (35)

(288)

(69) |

We believe that our current balance in the franking account,
combined with the franking credits that will arise on income tax
instalments expected to be paid in the financial year 2026, will be
sufficient to fully frank our 2025 final dividend.

4.3 Equity

This note provides information about our share capital and
reserves presented in the statement of changes in equity.

We have established the Telstra Growthshare Trust to
administer the Company's employee share schemes. The trust
is consolidated as it is controlled by us. Shares held within the
trust are used to satisfy future vesting of entitlementsin these
employee share schemes and reduce our contributed equity.

4.3.1 Share capital

Table A details components of our share capital balance.

Telstra Group
$m $m
Contributed equity 2,379 3,130
Shares held by employee share plans (40) (44) ‘
Net services received under employee 6 9
share plans
2,345 3,095 |
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Section 4. Our capital and risk management (continued)

4.3 Equity (continued)
4.3.1 Share capital (continued)
(a) Contributed equity

During the financial year 2025, we conducted an on-market share
buy-back of 169,398,366 ordinary shares for the total consideration
of $751 million (including transaction costs). The buy-back was
conducted in the ordinary course of trading at an average price per
share of $4.43. The shares bought back were subsequently
cancelled.

As at 30 June 2025, there were 11,385,028,987 (2024
11,554,427,353) authorised fully paid ordinary shares on issue. Each
of our fully paid ordinary shares carries the right to one vote on a
poll at a meeting of the Company.

Holders of our shares also have the right to receive dividends and to
participate in the proceeds from sale of all surplus assets in
proportion to the total shares issued in the event of the Company
winding up.

(b) Share buy-back impact on earnings per share (EPS)

EPS is the amount of post-tax profit attributable to each share. It
excludes profit attributable to non-controlling interests and takes
into account the average number of shares weighted by the number
of days on issue.

The EPS would have been higher had we completed the on-market
share buy-back at the beginning of this reporting period.

(c) Shares held by employee share plans

As at 30 June 2025, the number of shares held by employee share
plans totalled 10,481,232 shares of Telstra Group Limited (2024:
11,422,109).

During the financial year 2025, Telstra Growthshare Pty Ltd (the
trustee of the Telstra Growthshare Trust that administers our
employee share schemes) purchased on-market 4,659,600 shares
of Telstra Group Limited for the purposes of the employee incentive
schemes for a total consideration of $18 million and at the average
price per share of $3.93.

(d) Net services received under employee share plans

We measure the fair value of services received under employee
share plans by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. The net services received under employee share plans
represent the cumulative value of share-based payment expense
recognised after the establishment of Telstra Group Limited as the
parent entity following the Telstra Group restructure completed on
1January 2023.
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Section 4. Our capital and risk management (continued)

4.3 Equity (continued)

4.3.2 Reserves

Table B details our reserve balances.

Table B Foreign | Cashflow | Costof | Fairvalue | General Total
Telstra Group currency | hedging hedging | of equity reserve reserves
transla- reserve reserve instru-
tion ments
reserve reserve
$m $m
Balance at 1 July 2023 134 (49) a7) 2,077 2,196
Other comprehensive income (38) 41 (20) 14) - (31)
Transactions with non-controlling interests - - - - (30) (30)
Balance at 30 June 2024 96 (8) (37) 37 2,047 2,135
Other comprehensive income (302) (34) 14) (27) - (377)
Transactions with non-controlling interests 8 - - - >13) (5)
Other transfers 13 = = = = 13
Balance at 30 June 2025 (185) 42) (51) 10 2,034 1,766

The table below details the nature and purpose of our reserves.

Reserve Nature and purpose

Foreign currency
translation reserve

Represents exchange differences arising from the conversion of the non-Australian controlled entities’
financial statements into Australian dollars. This reserve is also used to record our percentage share of
exchange differences arising from our equity accounted non-Australian investments in joint ventures
and associated entities.

Cash flow hedging
reserve

Represents the effective portion of gains or losses on remeasuring the fair value of hedge instruments,
where a hedge qualifies for hedge accounting.

Cost of hedging

Represents changes in the fair value of our derivative financial instruments attributable to certain costs

reserve of hedging, for example, movements in foreign currency basis spread and option premiums (time
value). The cost of hedging related to foreign currency basis and option premiums are included in
interest on borrowings in the income statement over the life of the borrowing.

Fair value of equity Represents changes in fair value of equity instruments we have elected to measure at fair value
instruments reserve through other comprehensive income.
General reserve Represents other items we have taken directly to equity.

4.3.3 Recognition and measurement

Issued and paid-up capital is recognised at the fair value of the
consideration received by the Telstra Entity.

Any transaction costs arising on the issue of ordinary shares are
recognised directly in equity, net of income tax, as a reduction of
the share proceeds received.

Services received under employee share plans (i.e. share-based
payments) increase our share capital balance and vested employee
share plans decrease the share capital balance resulting in a net
movement in our equity.

We record purchases of the Telstra Entity shares underpinning our
employee share plans as a reduction in share capital.
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Section 4. Our capital and risk management (continued)

4.4 Net debt

As part of our capital management we monitor net debt. Net
debt equals total lease liabilities, borrowings and derivative
financial instruments, less cash and cash equivalents.

This note provides information about components of our net
debt and related finance costs.

Table A lists the carrying value of our net debt components (both

current and non-current balances).
As at 30 June

Table A
Telstra Group

Lease liabilities (3,099) (3,108)
Borrowings (14,896) (13,860)
Net derivative financial instruments 538 170
Gross debt (17,457) (16,798)
Cash and cash equivalents 1,012 1,046
Net debt (16,445) (15,752)

No components of net debt are subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements except for a $200 million non-recourse facility
entered into by Telstra PM Pty Ltd with Export Finance Australia. A
subset of these facilities contains debt covenants to measure debt
serviceability with which we are compliant as at 30 June 2025.

All amounts owing under or in relation to the borrowing facilities
with Export Finance Australia in respect of the Digicel Pacific
acquisition (referred to as ‘non-recourse borrowing facilities’ in
table B) are secured by:

» substantially all of the assets (including any shares) and

undertakings of substantially all of the acquired entities,

comprising Digicel Pacific Limited and each of its wholly-owned

subsidiaries

the assets (including any shares) and undertakings of Telstra PM

Pty Ltd and BidCo (S) Pte. Ltd

¢ the shares in Telstra PM Pty Ltd held by Telstra PM Holdings Pty
Ltd.

Table B summarises the key movements in net debt during the
financial year and provides our gearing ratio. Our gearing ratio
equals net debt divided by total capital, where total capital equals
equity, as shown in the statement of financial position, plus net
debt.

Table B Year ended 30 June

Telstra Group

Opening net debt at 1 July (15,752) (14,418)
Non-recourse borrowing facilities 7 (54)
Debt issuance (1,595) (1,198)
Drawings (term bank loans) (150) -

Commercial paper (net) (680) (1,201)
Revolving bank facilities (net) 427 (630)
Debt repayments 1,370 1,416

Other borrowings 4) 31

Lease liability payments 632 643

Net cash outflow/(inflow) 7 (993)
Fair value (loss)/gain impacting:

Equity (72) 34

Other expenses (15) 13

Finance costs 3 3

Other non-cash movements

Lease liability (Telstra as a lessee) (623) (560)

Other loans and derivatives 41 55
Total non-cash movements (666) (455)
Total increase in gross debt (659) (1,448)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents (including effects of (34) 14
foreign exchange rate changes)

Total increase in net debt (693) (1,334)
Closing net debt at 30 June (16,445) (15,752)
Total equity (16,316) (17,352)
Total capital (32,761) (33,104)
% %
Gearing ratio 50.2 47.6

During the financial year 2025, we issued debt of $1,595 million,
comprised of:

e 12-year €700 million Euro bond ($1,147 million Australian dollar
equivalent)
o 7-year $448 million Australian bond.
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4.4 Net debt (continued)
4.4.1 Borrowings

Table C details the carrying and fair values of borrowings included
in the statement of financial position.

Table C As at 30 June 2025 As at 30 June 2024

value value

$m $m $m $m
Current borrowings
Unsecured notes 1,344 1,334 1,656 1,633
Bank and other loans - unsecured 661 661 51 514
Commercial paper - unsecured 2,295 2,295 1,623 1,623
>\ Non-recourse borrowing facilities 14 14 7 7
p— Other financial liabilities - - 1 1
C 4,314 4,304 3,698 3,678
O Non-current borrowings
Unsecured notes 7,645 7,694 6,808 6,888
q) Bank and other loans - unsecured 1,324 1,324 1,745 1,751
m Non-recourse borrowing facilities 1,198 1,217 1,195 1,204
Other financial liabilities 415 321 414 300
D 10,582 10,556 10,162 10143
Total borrowings 14,896 14,860 13,860 13,821
CG Unsecured notes comprise bonds and private placements.
C Our commercial paper is used principally to support working capital
and short-term liquidity and continues to be supported by a
o combination of liquid financial assets, and access to committed
m bank facilities,. as vs{ell as to hedge some of our net investments in
i controlled entities in United States dollars.
Other financial liabilities represent amounts arising from sale and
G) leaseback transactions accounted as financial liabilities under the
Q accounting standards.
(a) Recognition and measurement
-
||o Recognition and measurement
Initial recognition and Borrowings are recognised initially on the trade date (the date on which we become a party to the

measurement contractual provisions of the instrument).

All loans and borrowings are initially recorded at fair value, which typically reflects the proceeds
received, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent After initial recognition, all borrowings are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
measurement method. Any difference between proceeds received net of direct transaction costs and the amount
payable at maturity is recognised over the term of the borrowing using the effective interest method.

Borrowings that are in designated fair value hedge relationships are adjusted for fair value
movements attributable to the hedged risk.

Derecognition Borrowings are derecognised when our contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.
Any gain or loss is recognised in the income statement when the borrowing is derecognised.

Borrowings are classified as non-current borrowings except for
those that mature in less than 12 months from the reporting date,
which are classified as current borrowings.
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Section 4. Our capital and risk management (continued)

4.4 Net debt (continued)
4.4.2 Derivatives

Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their value
from the price of an underlying item such as interest rate,
foreign currency exchange rate, credit spread or other index.

We enter into derivative transactions in accordance with
policies approved by the Board to manage our exposure to
market risks and volatility of financial outcomes that arise as
part of our normal business operations. We do not
speculatively trade in derivative financial instruments.

Table D shows the carrying value of each class of derivative
financial instruments.

Table D As at 30 June 2025 As at 30 June 2024

Telstra Group Liabilities Liabilities

$m $m $m

Current derivative financial instruments

Cross currency swaps 199 (29) 182 77)
Interest rate swaps and options 5 (8) 27 (8)
Other derivatives 26 (45) 23 12)
230 (82) 232 97)
Non-current derivative financial instruments
Cross currency swaps 353 “4a7) 128 (176)
Interest rate swaps and options 29 44) 17 -
Other derivatives 99 - 66 -
481 (CU)) 1 (176)
Total derivative financial instruments Al 173) 443 (273)

The terms of a derivative contract are determined at inception,
therefore any movements in the price of the underlying item over
time will cause the contract value to fluctuate, which is reflected in
the change in fair value of the derivative.

Where the fair value of a derivative is positive, it is carried as an
asset, and where negative, as a liability. Both parties are therefore
exposed to the credit quality of the counterparty. We are exposed
to credit risk on derivative assets as a result of the potential failure
of the counterparties to meet their contractual obligations.

Refer to note 4.5.3 for information about our credit risk policies.
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4.4 Net debt (continued)
4.4.2 Derivatives (continued)

(a) Recognition and measurement

Recognition and measurement

Initial recognition and
subsequent
measurement

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and subsequently remeasured at fair value at each reporting date.

Recognition of resulting gains or losses depends on the designation of the derivative as a hedging
instrument and the nature of the item being hedged.

Right to set-off

We record derivative financial instruments on a net basis in our statement of financial position where
we have a legally recognised right to set-off the derivative asset and the derivative liability, and we
intend to settle on a net basis or simultaneously.

Derecognition

Derivative assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the derivative assets
have expired or have been transferred and we have transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset.

Derivative liabilities are derecognised when the contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired.

Derivative financial instruments are presented as current and non-
current assets or liabilities based on future cash flows. The portion
to be realised or settled within 12 months from the reporting date is
classified as current, with the remaining portion classified as non-

current.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts that are financial assets are
not separated from financial asset hosts and a hybrid contract is
classified in its entirety at fair value.

Derivatives embedded in other financial liabilities or host contracts
are treated as separate financial instruments when their risks and

characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not measured at fair value through profit

or loss.
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Section 4. Our capital and risk management (continued)

4.4 Net debt (continued)
4.4.3 Finance costs

Table E presents our net finance costs. Interest expense on
borrowings are net amounts after offsetting interest income and
interest expense on associated derivative instruments.

Telstra Group
Interest income 61 60
Finance income from finance leases
(Telstra as a lessor) 20 23
Finance income from contracts with 1 15
customers
Net interest income on defined benefit 1 14
plan
Total finance income 103 12
Interest expense on borrowings 711) (656)
Interest expense on lease liabilities (130) 1)
Gross interest on debt (841) (767)
ELr\Siz(r_:eigsts from contracts with (45) (50)
Net gains on financial instruments
included in remeasurements o 31
5 19)
Interest capitalised 94 90
Total finance costs (742) (696)
Net finance costs (639) (584)

Net gains on financial instruments included in remeasurements
within net finance costs comprise unrealised valuation impacts on
our borrowings and derivatives. These include net unrealised gains
or losses which arise from changes in the fair value of derivative
financial instruments to the extent that hedge accounting is not
achieved or is not effective. These fair values increase or decrease
because of changes in financial indices and prices over which we
have no control.

4.5 Financial instruments and risk management

Our underlying business activities result in exposure to
operational risks and financial risks, including interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Our overall risk management program seeks to mitigate these
risks in order to reduce volatility of our financial performance
and to support the delivery of our financial targets. Financial
risk management is carried out centrally by our treasury
department under policies approved by the Board.

Our financial risk management strategies ensure that we can
withstand market disruptions for extended periods.

This note summarises how we manage these financial risks.
Our Group Treasury Policy was updated and approved by the
Board during the financial year 2025.

4.5.1 Managing our interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from changes in market interest rates.
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose us to fair value interest
rate risk. Variable rate borrowings give rise to cash flow
interest rate risk, which is partially offset by cash and cash
equivalents balances held at variable rates.

We manage interest rate risk on our net debt portfolio by:

¢ limiting interest rate fluctuations using cross currency, interest
rate swaps and options. Refer to note 4.4.2 for further details on
derivatives

¢ ensuring access to diverse sources of funding

¢ reducing risks of refinancing by establishing and managing our
target maturity profiles.

(a) Exposure

The use of cross currency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps
and options allows us to manage the level of exposure our
borrowings have to interest rate risks.

Table A shows our fixed to floating ratio based on the carrying value
of our borrowings. The post hedge position differs from the pre
hedge position where we have derivative hedging instruments in
place.

Table A
Telstra Group

As at 30 June
2025 2024

Pre Post Pre Post
hedge | hedge | hedg hedge

e
$m $m $m $m

Floating rate

borrowings (5,392) (5,753) (4,986) (5,648)
Fixed rate

borrowings (9089)  (8728) (8458)  (7796)
Other financial

liabilities (415) (415) 416) (416)
Total borrowings (14,896) (14,896) (13,860) (13,860)

Refer to note 4.4.1 for further details on our borrowings.
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Section 4. Our capital and risk management (continued)

4.5 Financial instruments and risk management
(continued)

4.5.1 Managing our interest rate risk (continued)
(a) Exposure (continued)

Table B summarises as at 30 June our floating rate derivative
instruments showing estimated gross nominal floating rate interest
cash flows until maturity, associated nominal amounts in the
underlying currency and weighted average maturity.

Table 8
Telstra Group Native Receive/ Nominal | Nominal/ | Weighted | Nominal | Nominal/ | Weighted
currency (pay) interest Principal average interest Principal average
flows amounts maturity flows amounts maturity
$m m $m
Interest rate swaps
3MBBSW AUD Receive 384 2,300 4.1 199 550 6.4
3MBBSW AUD Pay (269) (1,000) 55 (289) (775) 6.6
3MTSOF uUsD Receive 7 100 1.7 13 100 2.7
6MTSOF uUsD Receive 52 400 3.4 44 350 2.4
Interest rate options
3MBBSW AUD Receive = 1,625 4.4 - - -
Cross currency
swaps
3MBBSW AUD Pay (1,060) 2,429 8.0 (483) (1,343) 5.9
(b) Sensitivity The results of the sensitivity analysis are driven primarily from the

We have performed a sensitivity analysis based on the interest rate
risk exposures of our financial instruments as at 30 June. In
accordance with our policy to swap foreign currency borrowings
into Australian dollars, interest rate sensitivity relates primarily to
movements in the Australian interest rates.

We have selected a sensitivity range of plus/minus 25 basis points
(2024: 25 basis points) as a reasonably possible shift in interest
rates taking into account the current level of both short-term and
long-term interest rates, historical volatility and market
expectations of future movements. The sensitivity reflects a
change in benchmark rates only. This is not a forecast or prediction
of future market conditions.

Table C shows the results of our sensitivity analysis on the impacts
to profit after tax and on equity.

Table C As at 30 June

Telstra Group 2025

Gain/(loss)

Net Equity Net Equity
profit profit
$m $m $m $m

2024

Interest rates

Interest rates
(-25bp) 8 &2 9 @2 ‘
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following factors:

e any increase or decrease in interest rates will impact our net
unhedged floating rate financial instruments and therefore will
directly impact profit or loss

¢ changes in the fair value of derivatives which are part of effective
cash flow hedge relationships are deferred in equity.

The analysis does notinclude the impact of any management action
that might take place if the interest rate shifts were to occur.
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Section 4. Our capital and risk management (continued)

4.5 Financial instruments and risk management

(continued)

4.5.2 Managing our foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is our risk that the value of a financial
commitment, forecast transaction, recognised asset or
liability will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. We issue debt offshore and operate internationally and
hence we are exposed to foreign exchange risk from various

currencies.

This risk exposure arises primarily from:

currencies

borrowings denominated in foreign currencies
trade and other creditor balances denominated in foreign

¢ firm commitments or highly probable forecast transactions
for receipts and payments settled in foreign currencies or
with prices dependent on foreign currencies

« translation risk associated with our net investments in
foreign controlled entities (foreign operations).

(a) Borrowings

We mitigate the foreign currency exposure on foreign currency
denominated borrowings by converting these borrowings to
Australian dollars using cross currency swaps.

Table D shows the cross currency swaps that are hedging our
unsecured notes and forward foreign exchange contracts that are
hedging United States dollar denominated commercial paper.

Table D
Telstra Group

As at 30 June 2025 As at 30 June 2024

Exposure Cross currency Carrying | Exposure Cross currency Carrying
swap/forward swap/forward value
foreign exchange foreign exchange

contract receive/ contract receive/
(pay) (pay)

Australian dollars Australian dollars

m m $m $m m m $m $m

Euro (3,050) 3,050 (4,941) (5,383) (2,350) 2,350 (3,793) (3,669)
United States dollars (500) 500 (650) (765) (1,500) 1,500 (1,958) (2,263)
Japanese yen - - - - (5,000) 5,000 (62) 47)
:'I"“f:"r‘;‘i‘;:i::’:::c‘ie"°m'“ated (5591)  (6148) (5813)  (5979)
United States dollars (975) 975 (1,514) (1,473) (750) 750 (1,136) (1,104)
Commercial paper (1,514) (1,473) (1,136) (1,104)
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4.5 Financial instruments and risk management
(continued)

4.5.2 Managing our foreign currency risk (continued)
(b) Trading

We have some exposure to foreign currency risk from our operating
(transactional) activities. We manage this risk by:

¢ hedging a proportion of the exposure of foreign exchange
transaction risk arising from firm commitments or highly probable
forecast transactions denominated in foreign currencies in
accordance with our risk management policy. These transactions
may be physically settled in a foreign currency or in Australian
dollars but with direct reference to quoted currency rates in
accordance with a contractual formula.

¢ economically hedging a proportion of foreign currency risk
associated with trade and other creditor balances.

We hedge the above risks using forward foreign exchange
contracts.

Table E summarises forward foreign exchange contracts that are
hedging our transactional currency exposures.

Table E As at 30 June 2025

Telstra Group

Local currency Austra-
lian
dollars

Transactions to and from
wholly-owned controlled

entities

British pounds sterling - -
Forecast transactions

United States dollars (734) 325
Indian rupee (14,290) 5,716
Philippine peso (551) 221
Trade payables

United States dollars (34) 34

(516)
(102)
(6)

(53)

Average
exchange
rate

0.63
55.78
35.93

0.65

As at 30 June 2024

Local currency

47)
(336)
(15,491)
(610)

(45)

24
170
6,196
244

45

Austra-
lian
dollars

(46)
(254)
(110)
(®

(67)

Exposure Forward foreign exchange Exposure Forward foreign exchange
contract receive/(pay) contract receive/(pay)

Average
exchange
rate

0.52
0.67
56.24
39.41

0.67
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Section 4. Our capital and risk management (continued)

4.5 Financial instruments and risk management
(continued)

4.5.2 Managing our foreign currency risk (continued)
(c) Natural offset

Our direct foreign exchange exposure arising from the impact of
translation of the results of our foreign entities to Australian dollars
is, in part, naturally offset at the Group level by foreign currency
denominated operating and capital expenditure of functions, for
which we do not have hedges in place.

(d) Sensitivity

We have performed a sensitivity analysis based on our foreign
currency risk exposures existing at balance date.

Table F shows the impact that a plus/minus 10 per cent shift in
applicable exchange rates would have on our profit after tax and on
equity.

Table F As at 30 June

Telstra Group 2025 2024

Net Equity Net Equity
profit profit
$m $m $m $m
Exchange rates
(+10%)
Exchange rates
(-10%)

72 “4) 83 7

(88) 4 (95) (C)) ‘

A shift of plus/minus 10 per cent has been selected as a reasonably
possible change taking into account the current level of exchange
rates and the volatility observed both on a historical basis and on
market expectations of future movements. This is not a forecast or
prediction of future market conditions. We have disclosed the
sensitivity analysis on a total portfolio basis and not separately by
currency.

Any unhedged foreign exchange positions associated with our
transactional exposures will directly affect profit or loss as a result
of foreign currency movements.

There is no significant impact on profit or loss from foreign currency
movements associated with our borrowings portfolio that are
swapped to Australian dollars as an offsetting entry will be
recognised on the associated hedging instrument.

We are exposed to equity impacts from foreign currency
movements associated with our offshore investments and our
derivatives in cash flow hedges. The translation of our foreign
entities’ results into the Group’s presentation currency has not been
included in the above sensitivity analysis as this represents
translation risk rather than transaction risk.

The analysis does not include the impact of any management action
that might take place if these events occurred.

4.5.3 Managing our credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss. We are
exposed to credit risk from our operating activities (primarily
customer credit risk) and financing activities.

We manage credit risk by:

« applying Board approved credit policies

¢ monitoring exposure to high-risk debtors

¢ requiring collateral where appropriate

¢ assigning credit limits to all financial counterparties.

We may also be subject to credit risk on transactions not included
in the statement of financial position, such as when we provide a
guarantee for another party. Details of our contingent liabilities are
disclosed in notes 7.3.1and 7.4.2.

(a) Customer credit risk

Trade and other receivables and contract assets consist of a large
number of customers, spread across the consumer, business,
enterprise, government and international sectors. Our credit
management team assesses customers’ credit quality, and defines
and monitors credit limits by customer. Sales to overdue customers
are prohibited unless appropriately approved. Compliance with
credit limits and approval process is regularly monitored. Other
than nbn co, we do not have any significant credit risk exposure to a
single customer or group of customers.

Refer to note 3.3 for details about our trade and other receivables
and contract assets.

(b) Treasury credit risk

We are exposed to credit risk from the investment of surplus funds
(primarily deposits) and from the use of derivative financial
instruments.

We have a number of exposures to individual counterparties. To
manage this risk, we have Board approved policies that limit the
amount of credit exposure to any single counterparty. Counterparty
credit ratings and market conditions are reviewed continually with
limits being revised and utilisation adjusted where appropriate.

We also manage our credit exposure using a value at risk (VaR)
methodology, which is an industry standard measure that estimates
the maximum potential exposure of our risk positions as a result of
future movements in market rates. This helps to ensure that we do
not underestimate credit exposure with any single counterparty.
Using VaR analysis at 30 June 2025, 100 per cent (2024: 100 per
cent) of our derivative credit exposure was with counterparties that
have a credit rating of A- or better.

4.5.4 Managing our liquidity risk

Our objective is to maintain a balance between continuity and
flexibility of funding through the use of liquid financial instruments,
long-term and short-term borrowings, and committed available
bank facilities.

We manage liquidity risk by:

¢ defining minimum levels of cash and cash equivalents

¢ defining minimum levels of cash and cash equivalents plus
undrawn bank facilities

¢ closely monitoring rolling forecasts of liquidity reserves on the
basis of expected business cash flows

¢ using instruments which trade in highly liquid markets with highly
rated counterparties

¢ investing surplus funds in liquid instruments.
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Section 4. Our capital and risk management (continued)

4.5 Financial instruments and risk management
(continued)

4.5.4 Managing our liquidity risk (continued)

Our access to commercial paper programs continues to be
supported by a combination of liquid financial assets, and access to
committed bank facilities.

Table G shows our total and undrawn committed bank facilities. As
at 30 June 2025, we had total available facilities of $4,771 million,
the majority of which were held by the Telstra Entity.

Table G As at 30 June
Telstra Group 2025 2024

$m $m
Facilities available 4771 4,029
Facilities used (1,126) (1,553) ‘
Facilities unused 3,645 2,476 ‘

Our committed facilities mature on a staggered basis over the next
5 years with $3,850 million maturing beyond 12 months.

Drawings under our bank facilities and commercial paper issues are
shown on a gross basis in the statement of cash flows.

Table H shows the maturity profile of our financial liabilities
including estimated interest payments. We reduce refinancing risk
by ensuring that our borrowings mature in different periods. Table
H also includes the cash inflows and outflows of derivative financial
assets as these assets have a direct relationship with an underlying
financial liability and both the asset and the liability are managed
together.

The amounts disclosed are undiscounted contractual future cash
flows and therefore do not reconcile to the amounts in the
statement of financial position.

Table H Contractual maturity
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Telstra Group

As at 30 June 2025

1to 2

years

2tob

years

As at 30 June 2024

1to 2
years

2tob
years

Unsecured notes (1,344) (550) (3,389) (4,700) (9,983) (1,556) (1,210) (2,923) (2,814) (8,503)
Commercial paper (2,323) - - - (2,323) (1,658) - - - (1,658)
Bank and other loans (661) (989) (334) 1 (1,985) 1) 341 (1,402) 2) (2,256)
fon-recourse borrowing 14 (0)  (209)  (969)  (1,212) @ (3 (149 (1033) (1,202)
Other financial liabilities 1) (22) (69) (797) (909) (19) (19) (57) (744) (839)
Interest on unsecured

notes, non-recourse

facilities, bank and other (434) (391) (919) (736)  (2,480) (379) (308) (702) (540) (1,929)
loans

Lease liabilities (631) (461)  (1,086) (1,719)  (3,897) 611) 487) (1,033) (1,692) (3,723)
Trade/other payables and } } ) )

accrued expenses (4,212) (28) (4,240) (4,626) (10) (4,636)
Derivative inflows 5,456 576 3,479 2,667 12,178 3,441 1,380 2,085 1,860 8,766
Derivative outflows (5,410) (654) (3,438) (2,631) (12,133) (3,382) (1,415)  (2,208)  (2,021)  (9,026)
Total (9,594) (2,539) (5965) (8,886) (26,984) (9,308) (2,423) (6,389) (6,886) (25,006)
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Section 4. Our capital and risk management (continued)

4.5 Financial instruments and risk management
(continued)

4.5.5 Hedge accounting

Hedging refers to the way in which we use financial instruments,
primarily derivatives, to manage our exposure to financial risks. The
gain or loss on the underlying item (the ‘hedged item’) is expected
to move in the opposite direction to the gain or loss on the derivative
(the ‘hedging instrument’), therefore offsetting our risk position.
Hedge accounting allows the matching of the gains and losses on
hedged items and associated hedging instruments in the same
accounting period to minimise volatility in the income statement.

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, prospective hedge
effectiveness testing must meet all of the following criteria:

¢ an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and
hedging instrument

¢ the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes
resulting from the economic relationship

¢ the hedgeratiois the same as that resulting from actual amounts
of hedged items and hedging instruments for risk management.

To the extent permitted by the Australian Accounting Standards,
we formally designate and document our financial instruments by
hedge type as follows:

Fair value hedges

Cash flow hedges Net investment hedges

Objectives of this
hedging arrangement

To hedge the exposure to
changes in the fair value of
borrowings which are issued
atafixedrate, ordenominated
in foreign currency, by
converting to floating rate
borrowings denominated in
Australian dollars.

To hedge the exposure to
changes in cash flows from
borrowings that bear floating
interest rates or are
denominated in foreign
currency. Cash flow hedging is
also used to mitigate the
foreign currency exposure
arising from highly probable
and committed future foreign
currency cash flows.

To offset the foreign
exchange exposure arising
from the translation of our
foreign investments from their
functional currency to
Australian dollars.

Instruments used

We enter into cross currency
and interest rate swaps to
mitigate our exposure to
changesin the fair value of our
long-term borrowings.

We enter into cross currency
swaps, interest rate swaps
and options to hedge future
variable cash flows arising
from our borrowings.

Where we choose to hedge our
net investment exposures, we
use forward foreign exchange
contracts, cross currency
swaps and/or borrowings in

the relevant currency of the

We use forward foreign .
investment.

exchange contracts to hedge
a portion of firm commitments
and highly probable forecast
transactions.

Economic
relationships

In all our hedge relationships, the critical terms of the hedging instrument and hedged item (including
face values, cash flows and currency) are generally aligned.

Discontinuation of
hedge accounting

Hedge accounting is discontinued when a hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated, or no longer
meets the criteria for hedge accounting. At that time, any cumulative gains or losses relating to cash
flow hedges recognised in equity are initially retained in equity and subsequently recognised in the
income statement as the previously hedged item affects profit or loss.

For fair value hedges, the cumulative adjustment recorded against the carrying value of the hedged
item at the date hedge accounting ceases is amortised to the income statement using the effective
interest method.

For net investment hedges, any cumulative gains or losses that have been accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve are initially retained in equity and subsequently recognised in the income
statement on the disposal or partial disposal of the foreign operation.
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Section 4. Our capital and risk management (continued)

4.5 Financial instruments and risk management
(continued)

4.5.5 Hedge accounting (continued)

Table | shows the carrying value of each component of our gross
debt including derivative financial instruments categorised by
hedge type.

Telstra Group
$m m
Borrowings by hedge designation
Fair value hedges (2,966) (1,357)
Cash flow hedges (6,853) (4,839)
Net investment hedge (392) (395)
Illcl);tlirg)sgheilgcountmg hedge (4.685) (7.269)
Total borrowings (14,896) (13,860)
Lease liabilities (3,099) (3,108)
il;:;?lli:)i:;rowmgs and lease (17,995) (16,968)
Derivative assets by hedge
designation
Fair value hedges 138 -
Cash flow hedges 432 343
Ir\le(l);;ir:)sgh?;countlng hedge 141 100
Total derivative assets 1 443
Derivative liabilities by hedge
designation
Fair value hedges (79) (236)
Cash flow hedges (85) (23)
Ill(l);tlirg)sghz?;countmg hedge ©) a4)
Total derivative liabilities (173) (273)
Total gross debt (17,457) (16,798)

The principal value of our gross debt on an equivalent basis was
$17,493 million (2024: $16,812 million). Principal value represents
contractual obligations less future finance charges, excluding fair
value remeasurements, and for foreign denominated balances,
equates to the principal value in the underlying currency converted
at the spot exchange rate as at 30 June 2025.

(a) Derivatives not in an accounting hedge relationship

Some derivatives may not qualify for hedge accounting or are
specifically not designated as a hedge as natural offset achieves
substantially the same accounting results. This includes:

¢ interest rate swaps entered to offset against existing positions
resulting in natural accounting offsets

» forward foreign currency contracts that are used to economically
hedge exchange rate fluctuations associated with trade payables
or other liability and asset balances denominated in a foreign
currency

¢ power purchase agreements accounted for as derivative financial
instruments.
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(b) Fair value hedges

All changes in the fair value of the underlying item relating to the
hedged risk are recognised in the income statement together with
the changes in the fair value of derivatives. The net difference is
recorded in the income statement as ineffectiveness. The carrying
value of borrowings in effective fair value hedge relationships is
adjusted for gains or losses attributable to the risk(s) being hedged.

Table J outlines the cumulative amount of fair value hedge
adjustments that are included in the carrying amount of borrowings
in the statement of financial position.

Table J
Telstra Group

Principal value (3,046) (1,482)
Unamortised discounts/premiums 8 10

Amortised cost (3,038) (1,472)
Cu.mulatlve fair value hedge 72 15
adjustments

Carrying amount (2,966) (1,357)

Table K shows the ineffectiveness recognised in the income
statement. We have excluded foreign currency basis spreads and
option time value from our designated fair value and cash flow
hedge relationships.

Table K Year ended 30 June
Telstra Group 2025

((eE:110)74 (Gain)/
loss loss

Remeasurerpent of hedged item used 197 a3)
to measure ineffectiveness

Flhange in value of hedging (203) 1
instruments

Net gain before tax from

ineffectiveness & (12)
Net gain after tax (@) (8)
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Section 4. Our capital and risk management (continued)

4.5 Financial instruments and risk management
(continued)

4.5.5 Hedge accounting (continued)
(c) Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is
effective (i.e. offsets the movement on the hedged item) is
recognised directly in the cash flow hedging reserve in equity and
any ineffective portion is recognised within net finance costs
directly in the income statement.

Gains or losses deferred in the cash flow hedging reserve are
subsequently:

¢ transferred to the income statement when the hedged
transaction affects profit or loss

¢ included in the measurement of the initial cost of the assets

where the hedged item is for purchases of property, plant and

equipment

transferred immediately to the income statement if a forecast

hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur.

During the financial years 2025 and 2024, there was no material
impact on profit or loss resulting from ineffectiveness of our cash
flow hedges or from discontinuing hedge accounting for forecast
transactions no longer expected to occur.

Table L presents the hedge gains or losses transferred to and from
the cash flow hedging reserve.

Table L
Telstra Group

Year ended 30 June
2025 2024

Changes in fair value of cash flow
hedges R “2)
Changes in fair value transferred to a5) a3
other expenses
Changes in fair value transferred to ®) )
goods and services purchased
C;hanges in fair value transferred to 60 77
finance costs
Changes in fair value transferred to ) )
property, plant and equipment
Changes in cash flow hedging @7 62
reserve
Income ta?( on movements in the cash 14 19)
flow hedging reserve

(33) 43

Table M shows when the cash flows are expected to occur with
respect to items in cash flow hedges (i.e. notional cash outflows).
These amounts are the undiscounted cash flows reported in
Australian dollars.

Table W

Telstra Group

Non-capital items

Within 1 year (630) (651)

Capital items

Within 1 year (120) (153)

Borrowings

Within 1 year (2,784) (1,623)

Within 1to 5 years (1,865) (3,122)

After 5 years (440) (434)
(5,839) (5,983)

Non-capital items will be recognised in the income statementin the
same period in which the cash flows are expected to occur. For
capital items, the hedged assets affect the income statement as
the assets are depreciated over their useful lives.
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4.5 Financial instruments and risk management
(continued)

4.5.6 Valuation and disclosures within fair value hierarchy

The financial instruments included in the statement of
financial position are measured either at fair value or their
carrying value approximates fair value, with the exception of
borrowings, which are held at amortised cost.

To determine fair value, we use both observable and
unobservable inputs. We classify the inputs used in the
valuation of our financial instruments according to a three
level hierarchy as shown below. The classification is based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole.

During the financial year 2025, there were no changes in valuation
techniques for recurring fair value measurements of our financial
instruments. There were also no transfers between fair value
hierarchy levels.

The table below summaries the methods used to estimate the fair
value of our financial instruments. As at 30 June 2025, there were no
financial instruments measured using level 1 inputs.

Level

Financial instrument

Fair value

For personal use only

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted)
market prices in active
markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Listed investments in equity
instruments

Quoted prices in active markets.

Level 2: the lowest level
input that is significant to
the fair value measurement
is directly (as prices) or
indirectly (derived from
prices) observable

Borrowings, cross currency,
interest rate swaps and options

Forward contracts

Valuation techniques maximising the use of observable
market data. Present value of the estimated future cash
flows using appropriate market-based yield curves,
which are independently derived or option pricing
models with inputs for yield and volatility curves. Yield
and volatility curves are sourced from readily available
market data quoted for all major interest rates and
currencies.

Quoted forward rates at reporting date for contracts
with similar maturity profiles.

Level 3: one or more key
inputs for the instrument are
not based on observable
market data (unobservable
inputs)

Unlisted investments in equity
instruments, power purchase
agreements accounted for as

derivatives, and embedded foreign

exchange derivative

Contingent consideration

Valuation techniques (where one or more of the
significant inputs is not based on observable market
data) include reference to discounted cash flows and
fair values of recent orderly sell transactions between
market participants involving instruments that are
substantially the same. Forembedded foreign exchange
derivative, the fair value is determined using long-term
foreign exchange rate estimates where observable
market prices are unavailable for certain currency pairs.
For unlisted investments denominated in foreign
currencies, valuation technique also includes
movements in exchange rates.

Initial recognition: expectations of future performance
of the business. Subsequent measurement: present
value of the future expected cash flows.
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Section 4. Our capital and risk management (continued)

4.5 Financial instruments and risk management
(continued)

4.5.6 Valuation and disclosures within fair value hierarchy
(continued)

Table N categorises our financial instruments which are measured
at fair value, according to the valuation methodology applied.

Telstra Group
m $ $m m $

Assets

Derivative financial instruments 588 123 m 362 81 443

Investments in unlisted securities = 381 381 - 33 33
588 504 1,092 362 14 476

Liabilities

Derivative financial instruments 173) = (173) (273) - (273)

Contingent consideration = = - - 67) 67)
(173) - (173) (273) 67) (340)

Total 415 504 919 89 47 136

Fair value of borrowings presented in table C in note 4.4.1 was
measured using level 2 inputs.

Derivative financial assets measured using level 3 inputs included
$88 million (2024: $43 million) embedded foreign exchange
derivative. Its fair value was determined using long-term foreign
exchange rate estimates as observable market prices were
unavailable for certain currency pairs. During the financial year
2025, we recognised in the income statement a $45 million net gain
on remeasurement of this derivative financial asset.

As at 30 June 2025, investments in unlisted securities included
investment in DAZN Group Limited (DAZN) recognised following
the disposal of our investment in NXE Australia Pty Limited and its
controlled entities (NXE Group). Refer to note 6.5.1 for details of
this transaction. The investment in DAZN is measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income and it is denominated in
foreign currency. Therefore, any related foreign exchange
component has been included in the changes in fair value of this
investment.

Table O details movements in contingent consideration measured
using level 3 inputs.

Table O Year ended 30 June
Telstra Group 2025 2024

Opening balance at 1 July 67 251
Cas.h settlements made during the (30) a14)
period
Bemeasurements recognised in the (39) 61
income statement
Interest recognised in the income B 6
statement
Translation impacts recognised in

. : 2 )
foreign currency translation reserve
Transfer to other provisions - (13)
Closing balance at 30 June - 67
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4.5 Financial instruments and risk management
(continued)

4.5.7 Offsetting and netting arrangements

Table P presents financial assets and financial liabilities that are
offset, or subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or
other similar agreements but not offset.

The column ‘net amounts’ shows the impact on the statement of
financial position if all set-off rights were exercised. ‘Related
amounts not offset in the statement of financial position’ reflect
amounts subject to conditional offsetting arrangements.

Table P
Telstra Group

Related amounts not offset in the
statement of financial position

Effects of offsetting in the statement of
financial position

Collateral | Net amounts
received or

pledged

Financial
instruments

Gross Netamounts
amounts presented in
offset in the the
statement of | statement of
financial financial
position position

A | & [ cAB | b | € | FCDE |

Gross
amounts
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As at 30 June 2025
Cash and cash equivalents 686 676 10 - > 10
Borrowings (676) (676) - - - -
Ig?g;aaac?gsst:tesr receivables and 203 77 216 a4 4 168
Trade and other payables (155) 77) (78) 44) - (34)
Derivative financial assets 588 - 588 119 - 469
Derivative financial liabilities (173) - (173) (119) - (54)
Total 563 - 563 - 4 559

As at 30 June 2024
Cash and cash equivalents 519 468 51 - - 51
Borrowings (468) (468) - - - -
Igi(:reaac?c;:::tesr receivables and an 79 232 47 9 176
Trade and other payables (173) (79) (94) 47) - 47
Derivative financial assets 362 - 362 101 - 261
Derivative financial liabilities (273) - (273) (101) - 172)
Total 278 278 - 9 269

A number of the Telstra Group wholly-owned subsidiaries have
entered into customary multi-entity bank account set-off facilities,
under which bank accounts are managed on an aggregated basis.
As a result, cash and overdraft balance sheet positions of different
legal entities are presented net in the statement of financial
position.

Our rights of set-off that are not otherwise included in column B of
table P, related to:

e our inter-operative tariff arrangements with some of our
international roaming partners, where we have executed
agreements that allow the netting of amounts payable and
receivable by us on cessation of the contract

e our wholesale customers, where we have executed wholesale
services supply agreements that allow for the netting of amounts
payable and receivable by us in certain circumstances where
there is a right to suspend the supply of services or on the
expiration or termination of the agreement
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e our derivative financial instruments, where we have executed
master netting arrangements under our International Swaps and
Derivatives Association agreements. These agreements allow for
the netting of amounts payable and receivable by us or the
counterparty in the event of default or a credit event. In line with
contractual provisions, in the event of insolvency all derivatives
with a positive or negative fair value that exist with the respective
counterparty are offset against each other, leaving a net
receivable or liability.
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5.1 Employee benefits
5.1.1 Aggregate employee benefits

Our employee related obligations include:

liabilities for wages and salaries and related on-costs (presented

within current trade and other payables)

¢ annual leave, long service leave and employee incentives
(presented within current and non-current employee benefits)
and

¢ redundancy provisions (presented within current other

provisions).

Table A provides a summary of all these employee obligations.

e | oo |

Table A
Telstra Group

Accrued labour and on-costs

-

Current employee benefits 721 ‘
Non-current employee benefits 141 130 ‘
Current redundancy provisions 9 199 ‘

1,465 673 |

As at 30 June 2025, $9 million (2024: $199 million) provision has
been raised for redundancy costs based on the detailed formal plan
developed and communicated to the Telstra Group employees
likely to be affected. The execution of the detailed formal plan for
which a redundancy provision has been raised is expected to be
completed by the end of the financial year 2026.

We apply judgement and use estimates in measuring our provisions
for employee benefits.

Long service leave provision

We applied judgement to determine the following key
assumptions used in the calculation of long service leave
entitlements:

e 3.7 per cent (2024: 3.7 per cent) weighted average projected
increases in salaries
e 5.0 per cent (2024: 5.4 per cent) discount rate.

The discount rate used to calculate the present value has been
determined by reference to market yields at 30 June 2025 on
eight year (2024: eight year) high quality corporate bonds
which have due dates similar to those of our liabilities.

For the amounts of the provision presented as current, we do not
have theright at the end of the financial year to defer settlement for
any of these obligations. However, based on experience, we do not
expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or
require payment within the next 12 months. Amounts disclosed in
table B have been determined in accordance with an actuarial
assessment and reflect leave that is not expected to be taken or
paid within the next 12 months.

Table B As at 30 June
Telstra Group 2025 2024

Leave obligations expected to be
settled after 12 months

$m $m
344 367

The liabilities for employee benefits relating to wages and salaries,
annual leave and other current employee benefits are accrued at
their nominal amounts. These are calculated based on
remuneration rates expected to be current at the settlement date
and include related costs.

5.1.2 Recognition and measurement

Certain employees who have been employed by Telstra for at least
10 years are entitled to long service leave of three months or more
depending on the actual length of employment. We accrue
liabilities for long service leave not expected to be paid or settled
within 12 months of the reporting date at present values of future
amounts expected to be paid. This is based on the projected
increases in wage and salary rates over an average of 10 years,
experience of employee departures and periods of service.

Provisions are recognised when:

¢ the Telstra Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to
make a future sacrifice of economic benefits as a result of past
transactions or events

¢ itis probable that a future sacrifice of economic benefits will arise

¢ areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

We recognise a provision for redundancy costs when a detailed
formal plan for the redundancies has been developed and a valid
expectation has been created that the redundancies will be carried
out in respect of the employees likely to be affected.
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Section 5. Our people (continued)

5.2 Employee share plans

We have a number of employee share plans pursuant to which
equity is awarded to executives as part of their total
remuneration. Active share plans are conducted through the
Telstra Growthshare Trust (Growthshare). Telstra wholly
owns Telstra Growthshare Pty Ltd (the Trustee), which is the
corporate trustee for Growthshare. The results of the Trustee
are consolidated into our Telstra Group financial report.

A transaction will be classified as share-based compensation
where the Group receives services from employees and pays
for these either in shares or similar equity instruments or in
cash but the amounts due are based on the Telstra share price.

This note summarises the primary employee share plans
conducted through Growthshare and the key events in the
share-based payment arrangements that have occurred
during the financial year.

We have granted the following types of equity instruments as part
of our equity-settled employee share plans:

e restricted shares
¢ performance rights.

Restricted shares are Telstra shares that are subject to a restriction
period.

Performance rights are rights to Telstra shares subject to the
satisfaction of certain performance measures and service
conditions over a defined performance period.

Telstra has discretion to provide the holder of a performance right
with a share or a cash amount equivalent to the value of a share on
vesting of a performance right. Further information can be found in
note 5.2.1.

The table below provides a summary of the instruments granted
under the equity-settled employee share plans outstanding at 30
June 2025.

Type of Financial Restriction Date of Performance Number of
equity year granted period testing hurdles instruments
instrument against allocated and
performance outstanding at
hurdles 30 June 2025
Executive FY25 Four equal tranches n/a n/a The restricted
Variable with the respective shares for FY25 are
Remuneration tranches restricted expected to be
Plan (EVP) from one to four allocated in the
restricted years from the end first half of FY26
shares of the initial
performance period
FY24 n/a n/a 2,058,499
FY23 n/a n/a 1,225,665
FY22 n/a n/a 664,861
FY21 n/a n/a 438,715
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Telstra Financial Report 2025

Type of Financial Restriction Date of Performance Number of
equity year granted period testing hurdles instruments
instrument against allocated and
performance outstanding at
hurdles 30 June 2025
Short-term FY25 Three equal n/a n/a The STl restricted
incentive (STI) tranches with the shares for FY25 are
restricted respective tranches expected to be
shares restricted from one allocated in the
to three years from first half of FY26
the end of the
performance period
FY24 n/a n/a 1,882,095
FY23 n/a n/a 1,356,346
FY22 n/a n/a 580,488
EVP FY25 n/a 30 June 2029 Relative Total The performance
performance Shareholder rights for FY25 are
rights Return (RTSR) expected to be
allocated in the
first half of FY26
FY24 n/a 30 June 2028 RTSR 2,352,568
FY23 n/a 30 June 2027 RTSR 1,867,678
FY22 n/a 30 June 2026 RTSR 1,519,677
FY21 n/a 30 June 2025 RTSR 2,005,541

We will also grant cash rights in lieu of restricted shares and
performance rights under the FY25 EVP to Brendon Riley who will
cease employment as CEO, Telstra InfraCo in September 2025. The
cash rights are expected to be allocated in the first half of the
financial year 2026. The cash rights provided in lieu of restricted
shares are subject to the same time condition as restricted shares
and the cash rights provided in lieu of performance rights are
subject to the same performance hurdle as performance rights.

Provided they have not been forfeited earlier, the EVP and STI
restricted shares, as well as shares allocated on the vesting of EVP
performance rights, will be transferred to the relevant executive on
the first day of the first trading window occurring under Telstra’s
Securities Trading policy following the end of the relevant
restriction period or the vesting date, as applicable.

The definition of Relative Total Shareholder Return (RTSR) is set
out in the Remuneration Report Glossary (the Remuneration Report
forms part of the Directors’ Report).

5.2.1 Description of share-based payment arrangements
(a) Executive Variable Remuneration Plan (EVP)

Under the EVP, the amount earned by the CEO and eligible Group
Executives is determined at the end of an initial one year
performance period based on certain factors, including Telstra’s
performance against certain predetermined performance measures
and the executive’s individual performance (including their
performance relative to other executives), with the Board retaining
discretion to adjust the outcome to ensure it is appropriate. A
component of the amount earned under the EVP is provided in
restricted shares and a component in performance rights.

Refer to the Remuneration Report for further details on the FY25
EVP structure.
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Section 5. Our people (continued)

5.2 Employee share plans (continued)

5.2.1 Description of share-based payment arrangements
(continued)

(a) Executive Variable Remuneration Plan (continued)

The allocation of restricted shares and performance rights under
the FY25 EVP is expected to be made after the 2025 Annual General
Meeting. Shareholder approval will be sought at the 2025 Annual
General Meeting for the CEO’s FY25 EVP equity allocation.

If an executive leaves Telstra other than for a Permitted Reason
(the definition of which is set out in the Remuneration Report
Glossary) before the end of the relevant performance or restriction
period, their performance rights will lapse and restricted shares will
be forfeited. Performance rights and restricted shares may also
lapse, be forfeited or recovered if certain clawback (malus) events
occur.

(i) Restricted shares (equity-settled)

The table summarising the instruments granted under the equity-
settled employee share plans lists the restriction periods for each
EVP restricted share plan. No further performance hurdles will
apply once the restricted shares are allocated. During the
restriction period, executives are entitled to vote and earn dividends
on their restricted shares from the actual allocation date. However,
they are restricted from dealing with the shares during this period.

(ii) Performance rights (equity-settled)

Once allocated, the EVP performance rights are tested against a
RTSR measure over a five year period inclusive of the initial one year
performance period (refer to the table summarising the instruments
granted under the equity-settled employee share plans for testing
dates).

The FY25, FY24, FY23 and FY22 EVP performance rights will vest on
a straight-line scale, with 50 per cent of the performance rights

vesting if Telstra’s RTSR ranks at the 50th percentile against a
comparator group comprising the ASX100, excluding resource
companies (Comparator Group) over the performance period, up to
100 per cent of the performance rights vesting where Telstra’s

RTSR ranks at the 75t percentile of the Comparator Group or
above.

No performance rights will vest if Telstra’s RTSR ranks below the
50th percentile of the Comparator Group. Any performance rights
that do not vest following testing against the RTSR measure will
lapse.

Testing of the outstanding FY21 EVP performance rights as at 30
June 2025 resulted in 74 per cent of those performance rights to
vest due to the RTSR performance hurdle being met. Telstra ranked

at the 62nd percentile against the Comparator Group over the
performance period.

No dividends are paid on performance rights prior to vesting. For
performance rights that do vest, a cash payment equivalent to
dividends paid by Telstra during the period between allocation of
the performance rights and vesting will be made at or around the
time of vesting, subject to applicable taxation. This cash
entitlement is not included in the grant date fair values of the
performance rights as this is accounted for separately.
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(iii) Cash rights (cash-settled)

Under the EVP, the executives who cease employment for a
Permitted Reason before allocation of the restricted shares and
performance rights will receive cash rights in lieu of restricted
shares and performance rights.

As at 30 June 2025, we recorded a $10 million (2024: $5 million)
liability pertaining to the outstanding cash rights issued to certain
executives that cease employment for a Permitted Reason.

(b) STI restricted shares

Under the STl arrangements, 25 per cent of an eligible executive’s
actual STl payment is provided as restricted shares. The table
summarising the instruments granted under the equity-settled
employee share plans lists the restriction periods for each STI
restricted share plan.

Performance hurdles are applied in determining the number of
restricted shares allocated to executives, and therefore, restricted
shares are not subject to any other performance hurdles once they
have been allocated. During the restriction period, from the actual
grant date, executives are entitled to vote and earn dividends on
their restricted shares. However, they are restricted from dealing
with the shares during this period.

If an executive leaves Telstra other than for a Permitted Reason
before the end of the relevant restriction period, their restricted
shares are forfeited. Restricted shares may also be forfeited or
recovered if certain clawback (malus) events occur.

5.2.2 Fair value measurement
(a) EVP restricted shares

EVP restricted shares were measured based on the Board approved
dollar amount outcome for the financial year 2025, with a final
number of shares to be allocated after Telstra’s 2025 Annual
General Meeting. The estimated fair value per share granted in the
financial year 2025 was $4.95 (2024: $3.88).

(b) EVP performance rights

Table A provides a weighted average of the inputs used in
measuring the fair value of EVP performance rights at grant date.

Telstra Group

Share price %
Risk free rate 3.61% 4.03%
Dividend yield 4.80% 4.75%
Expected life in years 4.6 years 4.6 years ‘
Expected stock volatility 18% 21%
Fair value ($) $1.88 $2.00 ‘

The expected stock volatility is a measure of the amount by which
the price is expected to fluctuate during a period. This is based on
an annualised historical daily volatility of closing share prices over
a certain period to the measurement date.

5.2.3 Expense recognised in the income statement

Refer to note 2.3 for details about the related employee benefit
expenses.
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5.2 Employee share plans (continued)
5.2.4 Recognition and measurement

For each of our equity-settled employee share plans, we measure
the fair value of the equity instrument at grant date and recognise
in the income statement the expense over the relevant vesting
period with a corresponding increase in equity (i.e. share capital).
The expense is adjusted to reflect actual and expected levels of
vesting.

Grant date is the date when there is a shared understanding
between employees and Telstra of the terms and conditions of the
plan and the employees have accepted the offer. This often occurs
prior to the allocation of equity instruments to the employees.

The fair values of our equity instruments are calculated by taking
into account the terms and conditions of the individual plan and as
follows:

Equity instrument Fair value approach

Restricted shares By reference to the dollar
amount outcome approved

by the Board

Performance rights Black-Scholes methodology
and utilises Monte Carlo

simulations

A liability is recognised for the fair value of cash-settled
transactions. The fair value is measured initially and at each
reporting date up to and including the settlement date, with
changes in fair value recognised in employee benefits expense in
the income statement.
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5.3 Post-employment benefits

We participate in, or sponsor, defined benefit and defined
contribution schemes for our employees. This note provides
details of our Telstra Superannuation Scheme (Telstra Super)
defined benefit plan.

Our employer contributions to Telstra Super are based on the
recommendations from the actuary of Telstra Super in line
with any legislative requirements. The net defined benefit
asset/(liability) at balance date is also affected by the
valuation of Telstra Super’s investments and our obligations
to members of Telstra Super.

5.3.1 Net defined benefit plan asset/(liability)

Table A details our net defined benefit plan asset/(liability)
recognised in the statement of financial position.

Telstra Group
I )
gzlsre\tlzlue of defined benefit plan 1,421 1516
Ekr;laisgirgovnalue of the defined benefit 1,229 1293
Net defined benefit asset 192 223
Attributable to:
Telstra Super 201 237
Other (©) 14)
192 223

5.3.2 Telstra Superannuation Scheme (Telstra Super)

Telstra Group Limited participates in and is the sponsoring
employer in Telstra Super, a regulated fund in accordance with the
Superannuation Industry (Supervision) Act 1993 (Cth) governed by
the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority. Certain controlled
entities in the Telstra Group are associated employers participating
in Telstra Super.

Telstra Super’s board of directors operates and governs the plan,
including making investment decisions.

Telstra Super has both defined benefit and defined contribution
divisions. The defined benefit divisions, which are closed to new
members, provide benefits based on years of service and final
average salary paid as a lump sum. Post-employment benefits do
not include payments for medical costs.

On an annual basis, we engage qualified actuaries to calculate the
present value of the defined benefit obligations.

Contribution levels made to the defined benefit divisions are
determined by the Telstra Entity after obtaining the advice of the
actuary and in consultation with Telstra Super Pty Ltd (the
Trustee). These are designed to ensure that benefits accruing to
members and beneficiaries are fully funded as they fall due. The
benefits received by members of each defined benefit division take
into account factors such as each employee’s length of service,
final average salary, and employer and employee contributions.
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Section 5. Our people (continued)

5.3 Post-employment benefits (continued)

5.3.2 Telstra Superannuation Scheme (Telstra Super)
(continued)

Telstra Super is exposed to inflation, credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk. Market risk includes interest rate risk, equity price risk
and foreign currency risk. The strategic investment policy of the
fund is to build a diversified portfolio of assets to match the
projected liabilities of the defined benefit plan.

An internal funding policy is in place between the sponsoring
employer (i.e. the Telstra Entity) and the associated employers (i.e.
other legal entities under common control which participate in
Telstra Super). Refer to note 7.3.2 for further details.

(a) Fair value of defined benefit plan assets

Table B provides a reconciliation of fair value of defined benefit plan
assets from the opening to the closing balance.

Table B As at 30 June
Telstra Super 2025 2024
Fair value of defined benefit plan

assets at the beginning of the year el 1.529
Employer contributions 1 1
Member contributions 15 16
Benefits paid (including contributions (202) a16)
tax)

Plan expenses after tax 3) 4)
Interest income on plan assets 73 80
Actual asset gain 1 -
Fair value of defined benefit plan

assets at the end of the year e 1,516

(b) Present value of the wholly funded defined benefit
obligation

Table C provides a reconciliation of the present value of wholly
funded defined benefit obligation from the opening to the closing
balance.

Table C
Telstra Super

As at 30 June

2025

Present value of defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the 1,279 1,244
year
Current service cost 33 37
Interest cost 62 66
Member contributions 6 7
Past service cost 12 7
Benefits paid (202) (116)
Actuarial loss due to change in

X . . 41 10
financial assumptions
Actuarial loss due to change in

X . 3 12

demographic assumptions
Actua.rlal (gain)/loss due to a4) 12
experience
Present value of defined benefit
obligation at the end of the year g2t 1279
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The actual return on defined benefit plan assets was 6.2 per cent
(2024: 5.3 per cent) gain. Net actuarial loss recognised in other
comprehensive income for Telstra Super amounted to $19 million
(2024: $34 million).

(c) Categories of plan assets

Table D details the weighted average allocation as a percentage of
the fair value of total defined benefit plan assets by class based on
their nature and risks.

Table D

Telstra Super

Asset allocations

Equity instruments

Australian equity’ 10 10

International equity’ 1 12

Debt instruments

Fixed interest’ 63 63

Other

Property

Cash and cash equivalents 5 3

Other 2 3
100 100

1 These assets have quoted prices in active markets.
(i) Related party disclosures

The related party disclosures below relate to Telstra Super as a
whole, rather than just the defined benefit plan.

As at 30 June 2025, Telstra Super owned 20,886,140 shares (2024:
33,746,397) in the Telstra Entity at a cost of $76 million (2024: $144
million) and a market value of $101 million (2024: $122 million). All
these shares were fully paid at 30 June 2025. During the financial
year 2025, we paid a dividend to Telstra Super of $6 million (2024
$6 million). We own 100 per cent of the equity of Telstra Super Pty
Ltd, the Trustee of Telstra Super. We have significant influence
over Telstra Super Pty Ltd, which is accounted for as an associated
entity. Refer to note 6.5.2 for further details.

Telstra Super also holds fixed interest securities issued by the
Telstra Entity (2024: Telstra Entity and the Telstra Corporation
Limited). As at 30 June 2025, these securities had a cost of $1
million (2024: $2 million) and a market value of $2 million (2024: $2
million).

All purchases and sales of Telstra shares and fixed interest
securities by Telstra Super are on an arm’s length basis and are
determined by the Trustee and/or its investment managers on
behalf of the members of Telstra Super.
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Section 5. Our people (continued)

5.3 Post-employment benefits (continued)

5.3.2 Telstra Superannuation Scheme (Telstra Super)
(continued)

(d) Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis

Defined benefit plan

The following key assumptions were used in the calculation of
our defined benefit obligations:

* 3.3 per cent (2024: 3.3 per cent) average expected rate of
increase in future salaries
e 4.7 per cent (2024: 5.3 per cent) discount rate.

We have used a six year (2024: six year) high quality corporate
bond rate to determine the discount rate as the term matches
closest to the term of the defined benefit obligations.

Our assumption for the salary inflation rate for Telstra Super
reflects our long-term expectation for salary increases.

If the estimates prove to be different to actual experience, this
may materially affect balances in the next reporting period.

Table E summarises how the defined benefit obligation as at 30
June 2025 would have increased/(decreased) as a result of a
change in the respective assumptions by one percentage point

(1pp).
Defined benefit
obligation

Table E
Telstra Super

1pp 1pp
increase decrease
(63)

(40) ‘

Discount rate

Expected rate of increase in future
salaries

(e) Employer contributions

During the financial year 2025, we paid contributions totalling $11
million (2024: $11 million) at the average rate of five per cent (2024:
five per cent) to our defined benefit divisions, following
recommendations from the actuary of Telstra Super.

The current five per cent contribution rate wasrecommended by the
actuary of Telstra Superin the last triennial review effective 30 June
2024.

Table F shows the expected proportion of benefits paid from the
defined benefit obligation in future years.

Year ended 30 June
2025 2024
% %

Table F
Telstra Super

Within 1 year 8 16
Between 1 and 4 years 29 24 ‘
Between 5 and 9 years 31 27 ‘
Between 10 and 19 years 30 31 ‘
After 20 years 2 2 ‘
100 100 \
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The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan
obligations at the end of the reporting period was six years (2024
six years).

5.3.3 Other defined benefit schemes

Our controlled entities also participate in both funded and
unfunded defined benefit schemes, which are individually and in
aggregate immaterial.

5.3.4 Recognition and measurement
(a) Defined contribution plans

Our commitment to defined contribution plans is limited to making
contributions in accordance with our minimum statutory
requirements and other obligations. The contributions are recorded
as an expense in the income statement as they become payable. We
recognise a liability when we are required to make future payments
as a result of employee services provided.

(b) Defined benefit plans - Telstra Superannuation Scheme

We currently sponsor a post-employment defined benefit plan
under the Telstra Superannuation Scheme.

At a reporting date, where the fair value of the plan assets is less
than the present value of the defined benefit obligations, the net
deficit is recognised as a liability. In the reverse situation, the net
surplus is recognised as an asset. We recognise the asset to the
extent that we have the ability to control this surplus to generate
future funds that will be available to us in the form of reductions in
future contributions or as a cash refund.

The actuaries use the projected unit credit method to estimate the
present value of the defined benefit obligations of the plan. This
method determines each year of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of benefit entitlement. Each unit is measured
separately to calculate the final obligation. The present value is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using rates based on high quality corporate bonds.

We recognise all our defined benefit costs in the income statement,
with the exception of actuarial gains and losses that are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

Actuarial gains and losses are based on an actuarial valuation of
each defined benefit plan at a reporting date. Actuarial gains and
losses represent the differences between previous actuarial
assumptions of future outcomes and the actual outcome, in
addition to the effect of changes in actuarial assumptions.
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5.4 Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel (KMP) refer to those who have
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Telstra Group. KMP are
deemed to include the following:

* the non-executive Directors of the Telstra Entity
e certain executives in the Chief Executive Officer’'s (CEO’s)
senior leadership team, including the CEO.

5.4.1 KMP aggregate compensation

During the financial years 2025 and 2024, the aggregate
compensation of our KMP was:

Telstra Group Year ended 30 June
2025 2024

$000 $000

Short-term employee benefits 21,808 21,685
Post-employment benefits 426 413 ‘
Other long-term benefits 1,070 1,038 ‘
Termination benefits 852 1,051 ‘
Share-based payments 13,142 8,865 ‘
37,298 33,052 |
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Refer to the Remuneration Report, which forms part of the
Directors’ Report for further details regarding KMP remuneration.

5.4.2 Other transactions with our KMP and their related parties

During the financial years 2025 and 2024, apart from transactions
trivial and domestic in nature and on normal commercial terms and
conditions, there were no other transactions with our KMP and their
related parties.
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6.1 Changes in the group structure
6.1.1 Current year acquisitions

During the financial year 2025, we acquired a number of controlled
entities and incorporated others as detailed below:

¢ Telstra Sports and Media Streaming Pty Ltd (incorporated on 19
December 2024), of which we own 100 per cent

¢ Boost Tel Pty Limited and its controlled entities (acquired on 2
December 2024), of which we own 100 per cent.

Details of the significant acquisitions have been disclosed below.
(a) Boost Mobile

On 2 December 2024, we completed the acquisition of 100 per cent
of the shares in Boost Tel Pty Limited and its controlled entities
(Boost Mobile) for a total consideration of $129 million.

Boost Mobile licenses the Boost brand to us and provides marketing
for the pre-paid mobile services that we sell under that brand.

This acquisition gave rise to $69 million goodwill reflecting
expected opportunities to increase prepaid mobile revenue via the
Boost Mobile marketing strategies. Goodwill is not deductible for
income tax purposes.

Table A summarises the effects of the accounting for this

Yearended
30 June

acquisition.

Table A
Boost Mobile

2025

Consideration for acquisition

Cash consideration 132
Settlement of pre-existing liability in Telstra Group @)
I Total purchase consideration 129
Cash balances acquired 4)

Outflow of cash on acquisition 125

Assets/(liabilities) at acquisition date

Fair value

Cash and cash equivalents 4

Right-of-use assets 1

Intangible assets 85

Trade and other payables 5)
Deferred tax liabilities (25)
Net assets 60

Goodwill on acquisition 69

Total purchase consideration 129

Contributions to the Group's performance from

acquisition date to 30 June 2025

Income (excluding finance income) 2

Loss before income tax expense 5)

We have not incurred significant acquisition costs for this
acquisition.

(b) Telstra Group result if all acquisitions occurred on 1 July

2024

If all the acquisitions made during the financial year 2025 had
occurred on 1 July 2024, our adjusted consolidated income
(excluding finance income) and consolidated profit before income
tax expense for the financial year 2025 would have been $23,612
million and $3,282 million, respectively.

6.1.2 Current year deregistrations and disposals

During the financial year 2025, the following entities ceased being a
controlled entity:

PowerHealth Solutions Ltd (deregistered on 2 July 2024)

Pacnet Global Communications (India) Private Limited

(deregistered on 13 August 2024)

¢ Fred Health Pty Ltd (deregistered on 21 August 2024)

Fred Retail Pty Ltd (deregistered on 21 August 2024)

Pharmacy Research Network Pty. Ltd. (deregistered on 21 August

2024)

¢ Site & Towers (PNG) Limited (amalgamated into Digicel (PNG)

Limited on 30 September 2024)

Sapio Pty Ltd (disposed on 21 October 2024)

Diaspora Talktime (Australia) Pty Ltd (deregistered on 15 January

2025)

Digicel Australia Pty Ltd (deregistered on 15 January 2025)

¢ Hitron Limited (amalgamated into Digicel (PNG) Limited on 31
January 2025)

¢ Mobile Payment Gateway Pty Limited (deregistered on 10

February 2025).

These deregistrations and disposals had no significant financial

impact on our results.

6.2 Investments in controlled entities

6.2.1 Investments in controlled entities

Telstra Group has a direct or indirect interest in over 200 controlled

entities across approximately 30 countries. We have controlled
entities in Australia, Asia, the South Pacific, New Zealand, Europe,
Middle East, Canada and the United States of America. We conduct
most of our business through our controlled entities Telstra Limited
and Telstra Corporation Limited, which in total constituted 96 per
cent of the Group’s EBITDA.

Refer to the consolidated entity disclosure statement for a full list
of our controlled entities within the Telstra Group.

Telstra Group Limited and controlled entities | F75



For personal use only

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 6. Our investments (continued)

6.2 Investments in controlled entities (continued)
6.2.1 Investments in controlled entities (continued)
(a) Acquisition of the remaining interest in Power Health

On 9 November 2021, we acquired 70 per cent of the shares in Power
Solutions Holdings Pty Ltd and its controlled entities (Power
Health), however, on the acquisition date of Power Health we
applied judgement to determine that we controlled 100 per cent.
This was because we had a contractual obligation to purchase the
remaining 30 per cent interest from the founding shareholder by
2026. Therefore, the non-controlling interest was deemed to have
been acquired at the acquisition date. We accounted for our

obligation to purchase the remaining interest as a financial liability.

On 2 July 2024, we completed the acquisition of the remaining 30
per cent of the shares in Power Solutions Holdings Pty Ltd, the
parent entity of Power Health, for a total cash consideration of $28
million, taking our legal ownership interest to 100 per cent.

On acquisition, we derecognised the $28 million financial liability
associated with our contractual obligation to purchase this
remaining 30 per cent interest from the founding shareholder by
2026.

6.2.2 Deed of cross guarantee

Telstra Group Limited and each of the wholly-owned
subsidiaries set out below (together the ‘Closed Group’), are
party to a deed of cross guarantee (Deed), as defined in
Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC)
legislative instrument: ‘ASIC Corporations (Wholly-owned
Companies) Instrument 2016/785’ (ASIC Instrument).

The effect of the Deed is that each entity in the Closed Group
guarantees the payment in full of all debts of the other entities
in the Closed Group in the event of their winding up.

Pursuant to the ASIC Instrument, the wholly-owned
subsidiaries within the Closed Group that are eligible for the
benefit of the ASIC Instrument are relieved from the
requirement to prepare and lodge separate financial
statements, directors’ reports and auditors’ reports.

The statement of comprehensive income and statement of
financial position disclosed in this section present
consolidated results of the Closed Group.

The following entities are party to the Deed and part of the Closed
Group:

Telstra Group Limited (holding entity)
Alliance Automation Pty Ltd

Agura Technologies Pty Ltd

Clinical Technology Holdings Pty Limited
Clinical Technology Systems Pty Limited
DLM Automation Pty Ltd

Epicon IT Solutions Pty. Ltd.

Fone Zone Pty Ltd

Fred IT Group Pty Ltd

Health Communication Network Pty Limited
Merricks NewCo Pty Ltd

Mobile Tracking and Data Pty Ltd
MTData Holdings Pty Ltd

muru-D Pty Ltd

Pacnet Internet (A) Pty Ltd

Pacnet Services (A) Pty. Ltd.

Service Potential Pty Ltd

Telstra 3G Spectrum Holdings Pty Ltd
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Telstra Australia Networks Pty Limited
Telstra Broadcast Services Pty Limited
Telstra Communications Limited

Telstra Corporation Limited

Telstra Energy (Generation) Pty Ltd
Telstra Energy (Holdings) Pty Ltd

Telstra Energy (Retail) Pty Ltd

Telstra Health Pty Ltd

Telstra Health Services Pty Ltd

Telstra Holdings Pty Ltd

Telstra International (Aus) Limited

Telstra International Holdings Pty Ltd
Telstra International Networks Pty Limited
Telstra International Operations Pty Limited
Telstra Limited

Telstra Multimedia Pty Limited

Telstra OnAir Holdings Pty Ltd

Telstra Pay TV Pty Ltd

Telstra Plus Pty Ltd

Telstra Purple Pty Ltd

Telstra Reach Holdings Pty Ltd

Telstra Services Solutions Holdings Limited
Telstra Software Group Pty Ltd

Telstra Towerco No.2 Pty Ltd

Telstra Ventures Pty Limited

Versent Pty Ltd.

There were no new entities added as parties to the Deed for the
financial year 2025.

There are no other members of the Extended Closed Group (as
defined in the ASIC instrument). Telstra Finance Limited is trustee
under the Deed, however, it is not a member of the Closed Group or
the Extended Closed Group.
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Section 6. Our investments (continued)

6.2 Investment in controlled entities (continued)

6.2.2 Deed of cross guarantee (continued) Table A (continued)
Financial information of the members of the Closed Group Closed Group
presented in tables A to C excludes Telstra Finance Limited.
Transactions between the members have been eliminated. Current liabilities
Table A presents statement of financial position of the Closed Trade and other payables 3,669 3,998
Group. Employee benefits 648 694
Other provisions 128 350
Table A Lease liabilities 444 368
Closed Group Borrowings 5,484 5,269
Derivative financial liabilities 81 97
Current assets f:e%r;ti\r/zzt il:\a:ciil\i/:ﬁiznd otherrevenue 1,355 1,339
Cash and cash equivalents 495 585 [ -
Trade and other receivables and Liabilities classified as held for sale 60 -
contract assets 3,672 3,771 Total current liabilities 11,869 12,115
Deferred contract costs 108 140 Non-current liabilities
Inventories 463 485 Other payables 28 10
Derivative financial assets 211 206 Employee benefits 127 128
Current tax receivables 211 35 Other provisions 150 127
Assets classified as held for sale 389 - Lease liabilities 1,942 1,983
Prepayments 291 247 Borrowings 11,810 11,527
Total current assets 5,840 5,469 Derivative financial liabilities 86 176
Non-current assets Deferred tax liabilities 1,385 1,262
; Contract liabilities and other revenue
Igi??aac?:g:tesr receivables and 1,139 1,315 received in advance 243 886
Deferred contract costs 770 791 Total non-current liabilities 16,453 16,099
Inventories 100 162 Total liabilities 28,322 28,214
Investments — controlled entities 6,566 6,208 Net assets 16,469 16,906
Investments — accounted for using - . Equity _
the equity method Share capital 2,379 31
Investments — other 31 33 Reserves 29 77
Property, plant and equipment 19,090 19,342 Retained profits 14,061 13,718
Right-of-use assets 2,215 2,128 gquity available to the Closed 16,469 16,906
Intangible assets 8,238 8,649 roup
Derivative financial assets 403 164
Deferred tax assets - 9
Defined benefit asset 201 237
Total non-current assets 38,951 39,651
Total assets 44791 45,120
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 6. Our investments (continued)

6.2 Investment in controlled entities (continued)
6.2.2 Deed of cross guarantee (continued)

Table B presents statement of comprehensive income of the Closed
Group.

Table B
Closed Group

Year ended 30 June
2025 2024

Profit for the year for the Closed 2.406 1,653
Group

Total other comprehensive income 15 an
for the Closed Group

Total comprehensive income for

the year for the Closed Group gae 1636
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Table C provides a reconciliation of retained profits of the Closed
Group from the opening to the closing balance.

Table C
Closed Group

Year ended 30 June
2025 2024

13,718

Retained profits at the beginning
of the financial year available to
the Closed Group

Effect on retained profits from

addition of entities to the Closed - 1
Group

Total comprehensive income
recognised in retained profits

Cumulative gain from investmentsin
equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income 85 -
transferred to retained earnings on
disposal

Dividend

Retained profits at the end of the
financial year available to the
Closed Group

14,100

2,395 1,629

(2,137) (2,022)

14,061 13,718
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6.3 Non-controlling interests

Summarised financial information of the Telstra Group entities
which have material non-controlling interests is detailed below.

6.3.1 Amplitel business

Table A summarises financial information of the entities which have
material non-controlling interests, i.e. Towers Business Operating
Trust and Amplitel Pty Ltd (Amplitel business), amalgamated for
the year ended and as at 30 June 2025, with a non-controlling
interest of 49 per cent (2024: 49 per cent). It represents the
amounts before inter-company eliminations of transactions with
other entities within the Telstra Group, with the exception of the
transactions within the Amplitel business which have been
eliminated.

Table A
Amplitel business

Year ended/as at
30 June

2025

Statement of financial position

Current assets 288 291
Non-current assets 2,264 2,182
Total assets 2,552 2,473
Current liabilities 236 225
Non-current liabilities 1,031 938
Total liabilities 1,267 1,163
Net assets 1,285 1,310
Accumulated non-controlling 716 755
interests

Statement of comprehensive

income

Revenue 261 255
Profit/total comprehensive income 253 285
for the year

!:’I’Oflt allocated to non-controlling 97 123
interests

Dlstrlbu.tlon's paid/payable to non- 136 131
controlling interests

Statement of cash flows

Net. c.a.sh inflow from operating 186 198
activities

Net. c_a.sh inflow from investing 10 105
activities

Ne’g c.avsh outflow from financing (295) (289)
activities

Net cash inflow 1 14
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 6. Our investments (continued)

6.3 Non-controlling interests (continued)

6.3.2 Telstra PM Pty Ltd and its controlled entities (Telstra PM
Group)

In July 2022, we completed the acquisition of 100 per cent of the
shares in Digicel Pacific Limited and its controlled entities (Digicel
Pacific). This acquisition was partly funded by equity-like securities
issued by the Telstra PM Group to the Australian Government,
through Export Finance Australia.

Equity-like securities issued to the
Australian Government

Telstra PM Group holds 100 per cent of the shares in Digicel
Pacific Limited and its controlled entities (Digicel Pacific).
This investment was partly funded by equity-like securities
issued by the Telstra PM Group to the Australian Government,
through Export Finance Australia (EFA). As at 30 June 2025,
the non-controlling interests related to the equity-like
securities issued to the Australian Government were $951
million (2024: $951 million).

The securities are perpetual, subordinated, unsecured and
redeemable in certain circumstances. The securities do not
grant the Australian Government any recourse, voting rights,
or earnings in respect of the Telstra Group.

We applied judgement to classify the issued securities as
equity and present them as non-controlling interests in our
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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Table B summarises financial information for the year ended and as
at 30 June 2025 of Telstra PM Group which have material non-
controlling interests. The financial information represents the
amounts before inter-company eliminations of transactions with
other entities within the Telstra Group, with the exception of the
transactions within the Telstra PM Group which have been
eliminated.

Table B Year ended/as at
Telstra PM Group 30 June

2025 2024
Statement of financial position
Current assets 295 292
Non-current assets 2,919 3,354
Total assets 3,214 3,646
Current liabilities 277 341
Non-current liabilities 1,772 1,836
Total liabilities 2,049 2177
Net assets 1,165 1,469
Accumulated non-controlling 967 964
interests
Statement of comprehensive
income
Revenue 681 738
Profit for the year 59 50
Total comprehensive income for the (291) 45
year
Profit allocated to non-controlling 3 3
interests
Statement of cash flows
Net. cja.sh inflow from operating 207 257
activities
Net. c.a.sh outflow from investing (65) (292)
activities
I\_Iet ca.sh (out.ﬂ.o.w)/mﬂow from (120) 38
financing activities
Net cash inflow 22 3

6.3.3 The Exchange Trust

As at 30 June 2025, our controlled entity, The Exchange Trust, which
holds a portfolio of 36 Telstra exchanges in Australia, had a 49 per
cent (2024: 49 per cent) non-controlling interest balance of $701
million (2024: $702 million). The trustee of The Exchange Trust is
Merricks NewCo Pty Ltd, our wholly-owned controlled entity.
During the financial year 2025, we paid the minority unit holder of
the trust a $38 million (2024: $36 million) dividend.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 6. Our investments (continued)

6.4 Assets and liabilities held for sale

As at 30 June 2025, we have classified $390 million (2024: nil)
assets and $61 million (2024: nil) liabilities as held for sale and, in
accordance with AASB 5: ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations’ (AASB 5), measured them at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale related to our
controlled entities and properties, none of which met the criteria of
discontinued operations under AASB 5.

Details of the significant assets and liabilities classified as held for
sale have been disclosed below.

6.4.1 Versent disposal group

On 13 August 2025, we signed an agreement, subject to conditions
(including consulting with employees and unions), to sell a 75 per
cent interest in Telstra Purple Pty Ltd excluding its subsidiaries
Alliance Automation Pty Ltd, Aqura Technologies Pty Ltd and
Telstra Broadcast Services Pty Limited (Versent disposal group) for
a total consideration of $233 million, subject to completion
adjustments. We will retain 25 per cent ownership on completion of
the disposal and we will account for this retained equity interest as
an investment in associates.

In accordance with AASB 5, the carrying value of assets (including
$287 million goodwill) and liabilities of the Versent disposal group,
with the exception of cash balances which will be recovered via
completion adjustments, were classified as held for sale as at 30
June 2025 and measured at the lower of the carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell, with no impairment identified.

There was no material cumulative income or expense recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to the Versent disposal group
classified as held for sale.
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the Versent disposal group classified as held for sale.

Table A below presents the major classes of assets and liabilities of

Table A
Versent disposal group

As at
30 June

D

Current assets

Trade and other receivables and contract assets 20
Deferred contract costs 10
Prepayments 1
Total current assets 31
Non-current assets

Deferred contract costs 2
Property, plant and equipment 2
Intangible assets 331
Right-of-use assets 3
Total non-current assets 338
Total assets 369
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 17
Employee benefits 10
Other provisions 1
Lease liabilities 1
Contract liabilities and other revenue received in 15
advance

Total current liabilities 44
Non-current liabilities

Other payables &
Employee benefits 4
Lease liabilities 3
Deferred tax liabilities 6
Contract liabilities and other revenue received in 1
advance

Total non-current liabilities 17
Total liabilities 61
Net assets 308
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 6. Our investments (continued)

6.5 Investments in joint ventures and associated entities

We account for joint ventures and associated entities using
the equity method. Under this method, we recognise the
investment at cost and subsequently adjust it for our share of
profits or losses, which are recognised in the income
statement and our share of other comprehensive income,
which is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income. Generally, dividend received reduces the carrying
value of the investment.

The movements in the carrying amount of equity accounted
investments in our joint ventures and associated entities are
summarised in table A.
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Table A As at 30 June
Telstra Group Joint ventures
$m $m $m $m
Carrying amount of investments at beginning of year 90 159 546 527
Additions 2 4 50 43
Disposals (134) - (363) -
42) 163 233 570
Share of net loss M @ (16) 9)
Provision for diminution - - - (©))
Share of distributions (15) (55) (10) @)
Changes in fair value of equity instruments reserve 58 an 16 (©))
Share of reserves - - (O} )
Carrying amount of investments at end of year - 20 222 546

Additions of associated entities include $50 million (2024: $43
million) of new investments in Titanium Ventures Fund Ill, L.P.
(formerly Telstra Ventures Fund Ill, L.P.).

6.5.1 Significant disposals
(a) Disposal of our investment in Titanium Ventures Fund Il, L.P.

We applied judgement to determine that we had joint control of our
investment in Titanium Ventures Fund Il, L.P. (formerly Telstra
Ventures Fund Il, L.P.). While we held 62.5 per cent of the
partnership interest on a fully committed basis, key decisions for
the entity required the unanimous approval of the Advisory
Committee, on which we held one of the two seats, or a majority of
at least 75.0 per cent of the fully committed capital.

On 15 December 2024, we completed the disposal of all of our
investment in Titanium Ventures Fund Il, L.P. for a total
consideration of $137 million. As a result, we have transferred $166
million of cumulative gains held in fair value of equity instruments
reserve to retained profits.

(b) Disposal of our investment in NXE Group

As at 30 June 2024, our 35 per cent interest in NXE Australia Pty
Limited and its controlled entities (NXE Group) was accounted for
using the equity method. On 23 December 2024, Telstra entered
into a share sale and purchase agreement with DAZN Group Limited
(DAZN) to exchange our 35 per cent interest in NXE Group fora 3
per cent equity interest in DAZN valued at $366 million. The
transaction was completed on 2 April 2025. The carrying value of
our investment in NXE Group was $366 million immediately before
the exchange, hence no gain or loss was recognised in our income
statement. Our investment in DAZN is recorded in ‘Investments —
other’ in the statement of financial position and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Refer to note 4.5.6 for
further details about the fair value of this investment.

In February 2020, we entered into a subordinated shareholder loan
agreement with NXE Australia Pty Limited under which we made
available to NXE Australia Pty Limited a loan facility of up to $170
million atcommercial rates of interest. The facility was to mature on
22 December 2027 but contained the ability to prepay the
outstanding amount. On 2 April 2025, the $131 million loan and
accrued interest was repaid at completion of the share sale and
purchase agreement. As at 30 June 2024, the outstanding balance
drawn under this facility was $139 million.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 6. Our investments (continued)

6.5 Investments in joint ventures and associated entities

(continued)

6.5.2 List of our investments in joint ventures and associated

entities

Table B presents a list of our investments in joint ventures and
associated entities, their principal place of business/country of

incorporation and our ownership interest.

Table B
Telstra Group

Name of entity

Joint ventures
3GIS Pty Ltd

Reach Limited’

Titanium Ventures Fund Il, L.P. (formerly
Telstra Ventures Fund Il, L.P.)

Associated entities

Accenture Technology Services Private
Limited

Asia Netcom Philippines Corporation’
Australia-Japan Cable Holdings Limited’
Dacom Crossing Corporation’

NXE Australia Pty Limited

Pacific Carriage Holdings Limited Inc.’
Pivotal Labs Sydney Pty Ltd?

Samoa Submarine Cable Company
Limited®

Southern Cross Cables Holdings Limited’
Telstra Converge Inc.!

Telstra Super Pty Ltd

Ltd.!

Titanium Ventures Fund lll, L.P. (formerly
Telstra Ventures Fund Ill, L.P.)

TLSA Data & Al Function Pty Ltd
Tonga Cable Limited®

Tianjin TenLink Electronic Technology Co.,

Principal activities

Management of former 3GIS
Partnership (non-operating)

International connectivity services
Venture capital

Data and Al services provider

Ownership of physical property
Network cable provider
Network cable provider

Pay television

Network cable provider
Software development
Network cable provider

Network cable provider
Telecommunication services
Superannuation trustee

Control system of industrial internet
supplier

Venture capital

Data and Al services provider
Network cable provider

Principal place of
business/country of
incorporation

Australia

Bermuda

Guernsey

India

Philippines
Bermuda
Korea
Australia
United States
Australia
Samoa

Bermuda
Philippines
Australia

China

Guernsey

Australia
Tonga

%

50.0

50.0

40.0

40.0
46.9
49.0

25.0
20.0

16.7

25.0
48.0
100.0

4.8

50.0

40.0
16.6

Ownership interest
As at 30 June
2025 2024

50.0

50.0

62.5

40.0
46.9
49.0
35.0
25.0
20.0

16.7

25.0
48.0
100.0

4.8

50.0

16.6

1 Balance date is 31 December.
2 Balance date is 31 January.
3 Balance date is 31 March.

We apply judgement to determine if we have significantinfluence or
joint control over our investments as detailed below.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 6. Our investments (continued)

6.5 Investments in joint ventures and associated entities
(continued)

6.5.2 List of our investments in joint ventures and associated
entities (continued)

Significant influence over Telstra Super
Pty Ltd

We applied judgement to determine that we do not control
Telstra Super Pty Ltd even though we own 100.0 per cent of its
equity.

Telstra Super Pty Ltd is the trustee for the Telstra
Superannuation Scheme. We do not consolidate Telstra Super
Pty Ltd as we do not control the board of directors. The board
of directors consists of an equal number of employer and
member representatives and an independent chairman. Our
voting power over the relevant activities is 44.0 per cent,
which is equivalent to our representation on the board. The
entity is therefore classified as an associated entity as we have
significant influence over it.

Significant influence over Titanium
Ventures Fund lllI, L.P.

We applied judgement to determine that we have significant
influence of our investment in Titanium Ventures Fund IlI, L.P..
While we hold 50.0 per cent (2024: 50.0 per cent) on a
committed capital amount basis, we have a seat on the
Advisory Committee. This gives us the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investment.

6.5.3 Other joint ventures and associated entities

Table C presents our share of the aggregate financial information of
joint ventures and associated entities.

Year ended/As at 30 June

Joint ventures Associated
entities

Table C
Telstra Group

$m $m $m $m

Carrying amount of
investment
Group's share of:
Net loss m @ (16) ()]
Other

comprehensive 58 an 15 5)
income

Total

comprehensive 57 18) (O] 14)
income

- 90 222 546
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6.5.4 Suspension of equity accounting

Table D presents our unrecognised share of losses for the financial
year and cumulatively for our entities where equity accounting has
ceased and the investment is recorded at zero due to losses made
by these entities and/or reductions in the equity accounted carrying
amount.

Table D Year ended 30 June

Telstra Group Period | Cumula | Period | Cumula
-tive -tive

$m $m $m $m

Joint ventures
Reach Limited 4) (566) 4) (562)
Associated entities
Australia-Japan
Cable Holdings = (70) - (70)
Limited

4) (636) 4) (632)

6.5.5 Transactions with our joint ventures and associated
entities

Key transactions with our joint ventures and associated entities
recorded in the income statement and statement of financial
position related to transactions with NXE Group.

As detailed in note 6.5.1, on 2 April 2025 we disposed of our
investment in the NXE Group. Accordingly, the transactions
disclosed below are up to this date.

(a) Sale and purchase of goods and services

We sold and purchased goods and services, and earned interest
from our associated entities. These transactions were in the
ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms and
conditions.

Details of individually significant transactions were as follows:

¢ we purchased from NXE Group pay television services amounting
to $328 million (2024: $467 million). The purchases enabled
resale of Foxtel services, including Pay TV content, to our existing
customers.

we sold to NXE Group broadband system services, network
access services and other professional services totalling $30
million (2024: $44 million) and wholesale services totalling $46
million (2024: $63 million).
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 6. Our investments (continued)

6.5 Investments in joint ventures and associated entities
(continued)

6.5.6 Recognition and measurement
(a) Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Our interestsin joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting.

(b) Investments in associated entities

These are investments in entities over which we have the ability to
exercise significant influence but we do not control the decisions of
the entity. Our interests in associated entities are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting.

(c) Equity method of accounting

Investments in associated entities and joint ventures are carried in
the consolidated balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition
changes in our share of the investment’s net assets and net of
impairment loss. Goodwill relating to an investment in an
associated entity or joint venture is included in the carrying value of
the investment and is not amortised. When Telstra’s share of losses
exceeds our investment in an associated entity or joint venture, the
carrying amount of the investment is reduced to nil and no further
losses are recognised.

The equity accounted investments are assessed for impairment
annually or when there are impairment indicators.

F84 | Telstra Group Limited and controlled entities



For personal use only

7.1 Auditor’s remuneration

Our external auditor of the Group is Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (Deloitte) (2024: Ernst & Young). In addition to the
audit and review of our financial reports, Deloitte provides
other services throughout the year. This note details the total
fees to our external auditors.

Telstra Group

Year ended 30 June
2025 2024

Fees to Deloitte (Australia)/Ernst &

Young (Australia)

Category 1 7.608 10.598
Category 2 0.041 0.043
Category 3 2.002 1.969
Fees to other overseas member

firms of Deloitte (Australia)/Ernst &

Young (Australia)

Category 1 3.749 4.477
Category 2 0.005 -
Category 3 1139 0.059
Category 4 = 0.144
Totalfees tootheroverseas member

firms of Deloitte (Australia)/Ernst & 4.893 4.680
Young (Australia)

Total auditor’s remuneration 14.544 17.290

Audit and non-audit fees are disclosed in the following categories:

* Category 1: fees to the group auditor for auditing the statutory
financial report of the parent covering the group, and for auditing
the statutory financial report of any controlled entities
Category 2: fees for assurance services that are required by
legislation to be provided by the auditor

Category 3: fees for other assurance and agreed-upon
procedures services where there is discretion as to whether the
service is provided by the auditor or another firm

e Category 4: fees for other services (e.g. advisory services).

Services in Category 3 included IT security control assessments,
various assurance and agreed-upon procedures, and tax services.

Services in Category 4 included other advisory services.

We have processes in place to maintain the independence of our
external auditor, including the nature of expenditure on non-audit
services. Deloitte also has specific internal processes and policies
in place to ensure auditor independence.

7.2 Other provisions

The table below provides a summary of our current and non-current
other provisions.

Telstra Group

As at 30 June
2025 2024

$m $m
130 349
217 196 \

545 \

Current other provisions
Non-current other provisions
Total other provisions 347

As at 30 June 2025, other provisions included $9 million (2024: $199
million) redundancy provisions as detailed in note 5.1.1.

7.3 Parent entity disclosures

This note provides details of Telstra Entity’s financial
performance and financial position as a standalone entity. The
results include transactions with its controlled entities.

Tables A and B provide a summary of the financial information for
the Telstra Entity.

Table A
Telstra Entity

As at 30 June
2025 2024

Statement of financial position

Total current assets 2,358 1,693

Total non-current assets 45,253 44,471

Total assets 47,61 46,064

Total current liabilities 21,807 22,970

Total non-current liabilities 8,838 4197

Total liabilities 30,645 27,167
Share capital 2,345 3,095

Reorganisation reserve (53) (53)
Cash flow hedging reserve 13) 14

Cost of hedging reserve (26) (8)
Retained profits 14,713 15,849

Total equity 16,966 18,897

Telstra Group Limited and controlled entities | F85



For personal use only

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 7. Other information (continued)

7.3 Parent entity disclosures (continued)

Reorganisation reserve represents the amounts recognised as a
result of the establishment of the new parent entity and other steps
of the Telstra Group restructure completed on 1 January 2023.

Table B
Telstra Entity

Year ended 30 June

Statement of comprehensive
income

Profit for the year

1,034 49 \
Total comprehensive income 956 2 ‘

Total current assets include nil (2024: $34 million) of provision for
impairment losses recognised during the financial year relating to
impairment of intercompany receivables due from certain
subsidiaries within our Australian tax consolidated group under the
income tax funding agreement. This impairment has been
eliminated on consolidation of the Telstra Group.

On 30 April 2025, all unsecured notes and derivatives issued by
Telstra Corporation Limited were novated to Telstra Group Limited
and recognised at their respective market values totalling $4.2
billion.

As at 30 June 2025, the Telstra Entity did not have any capital
commitments. Refer to note 7.4.1 for details about the Group
capital commitments.

7.3.1 Contingent liabilities and guarantees

Following the completion of the Telstra Group restructure on 1
January 2023, the Telstra Entity became the parent entity in the
Telstra Group and the operating businesses are carried out by
separate legal entities controlled by it. As a result, the performance
obligations under a number of our existing contractual
arrangements now apply to these separate legal entities. Where
contractually required or otherwise agreed with counterparties, the
Telstra Entity has provided parent company guarantees, however
those guarantees did not change the overall economic exposure the
Telstra Group had under these arrangements prior to the Telstra
Group restructure.

(a) Intra-group debt guarantees

The Telstra Entity has entered into the following intra-group debt
guarantees:

¢ adebt guarantee in favour of holders of specified debt issued by
Telstra Group Limited under which each of Telstra Limited and
Telstra Corporation Limited guarantee all amounts due and
payable but unpaid by Telstra Group Limited in respect of the
guaranteed debt. Guaranteed debt entered into by Telstra Group
Limited comprises of unsecured notes, bank loans, commercial
paper, derivatives covering interest rate swaps and options, cross
currency swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts. The
guarantee will apply for the term of the guaranteed debt, subject
to early release in certain circumstances, including if the
guaranteed debt is repaid, redeemed, purchased, exchanged,
transferred or substituted (or similar) earlier, and, subject to
certain applicable limitations and conditions, may also be
released early in respect of the guarantee given by Telstra
Corporation Limited. Following the issuance of the debt
guarantee, it was measured at fair value and accounted for as an
adjustment to the guaranteed debt of Telstra Group Limited, with
a corresponding reduction in its investments in Telstra
Corporation Limited and Telstra Limited.
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¢ adebt guarantee in favour of holders of all unsecured notes and
derivatives issued by Telstra Corporation Limited which were
novated to Telstra Group Limited on 30 April 2025, under which
each of Telstra Limited and Telstra Corporation Limited
guarantee all amounts due and payable but unpaid by Telstra
Group Limited in respect of the guaranteed debt. The guarantee
will apply for the term of the guaranteed debt, subject to early
release in certain circumstances, including if the guaranteed debt
is repaid, redeemed, purchased, exchanged, transferred or
substituted (or similar) earlier. Following the issuance of the debt
guarantee, it was measured at fair value and accounted for as an
adjustment to the guaranteed debt of Telstra Group Limited, with
a corresponding reduction in its investments in Telstra
Corporation Limited and Telstra Limited.

The financial impact of the intra-group debt guarantees has been
eliminated at the Telstra Group level.

(b) Contingent liabilities and other guarantees

We have also provided the following indemnities, performance
guarantees and financial support through the Telstra Entity:

¢ guaranteestonbn coinrespect of payment obligations of Telstra
Limited or Telstra Corporation Limited to nbn coup toa maximum
of $2.5 billion in respect of the Subscriber Agreement, and $2.5
billion in respect of the Infrastructure Services Agreement. At the
reporting date, the likelihood of any claims under these
guarantees is considered remote.

e Telstra Group Limited, Telstra Limited, and Telstra Corporation
Limited have entered into (i) a multi entity bank account set off
facility; and (ii) banking services agreement, for their
transactional banking requirements. A cross guarantee and
indemnity have been provided by each of Telstra Group Limited,
Telstra Limited and Telstra Corporation Limited in respect of
amounts due and payable to the applicable bank counterparty
under each of these arrangements.

¢ parent guarantee under which the Telstra Entity has provided a
guarantee in favour of Amplitel Pty Ltd as trustee for the Towers
Business Operating Trust in respect of obligations from Telstra
Limited under the Master Services Agreement.

¢ guarantees in favour of counterparties in respect of specified
obligations of one of our controlled entities under contracts
executed under the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association agreement (ISDA) between the controlled entity and
the swap counterparty. As at 30 June 2025, there was no exposure
under those contracts.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 7. Other information (continued)

7.3 Parent entity disclosures (continued)
7.3.2 Recognition and measurement

The accounting policies for the Telstra Entity are consistent with
those of the Telstra Group, except for those noted below:

¢ under our income tax funding agreement, amounts receivable (or
payable) recognised by the Telstra Entity for the current tax
payable (or receivable) assumed from our Australian wholly-
owned entities are booked as current assets or liabilities. These
tax amounts are measured using a ‘stand-alone taxpayer’
approach. Refer to note 2.4.4 for details about amounts
receivable and payable by the Telstra Entity under the income tax
funding agreement.

¢ investments in controlled entities, included within non-current
assets, are recorded at cost less impairment of the investment
value

¢ under an internal funding policy between the sponsoring
employer of Telstra Super (i.e. the Telstra Entity) and the
associated employers (i.e. other legal entities under common
control which participate in Telstra Super) each entity recognises
the net defined benefit cost related to its employees who are
members of Telstra Super. Both the Telstra Entity and the
associated employers account for their share of the net deficit
(i.e. net defined benefit liability) where the fair value of the plan
assets allocated to that entity based on the defined benefit
obligations of the employees who are members of Telstra Super
is less than the present value of the defined benefit obligations of
those employees. The Telstra Entity also accounts for any surplus
(i.e. net defined benefit asset) where the fair value of the total
plan assets exceeds the total present value of the defined benefit
obligations of Telstra Super as a whole.

¢ where the Telstra Entity grants its equity instruments to
employees of a subsidiary, the subsidiary records an expense,
with a corresponding credit to equity, representing a capital
contribution from the Telstra Entity and the Telstra Entity records
an increase in its investment in the subsidiary equivalent to the
expense in the subsidiary, with a corresponding credit to equity.
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7.4 Commitments and contingencies

This note provides details of our commitments for capital
expenditure arising from our contractual agreements.

This note also includes information about contingent liabilities
for which no provisions have been recognised due to the
uncertainty regarding the outcome of future events and/or
inability to reliably measure such liabilities.

7.4.1 Capital expenditure commitments

Table A shows capital expenditure commitments contracted for at
balance date but not recorded in the financial statements.

Table A As at 30 June
Telstra Group 2025 2024

Property, plant and equipment
commitments

Intangible assets commitments 184

$m $m
1,330 885
923 \

As at 30 June 2025, the property, plant and equipment
commitments include a $573 million commitment for mobile
investment program, and the intangible assets commitments
include a $564 million commitment for software development from
the strategic partnership with Accenture.

7.4.2 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Details and estimated maximum amounts (where reasonable
estimates can be made) of contingent liabilities for the Telstra
Entity are disclosed in note 7.3.1.

(a) Investigations by regulators

The Telstra Group is subject to a range of laws and regulations in
Australia and overseas, including in the areas of
telecommunications, corporate law, consumer and competition law
and occupational health and safety. In Australia, the principal
regulators who enforce these laws and regulations and who Telstra
Group interacts with are the Australian Competition and Consumer
Commission (ACCC), the Australian Communications and Media
Authority (ACMA), the Office of the Australian Information
Commissioner (OAIC), the Australian Securities and Investments
Commission (ASIC), the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX), and
Comcare.

The Telstra Group is subject to investigations and reviews from time
to time by regulators, including certain current investigations into
whether the Telstra Group has complied with relevant laws and
regulations. These are taking place in an environment of heightened
scrutiny and regulator expectation and include where the Telstra
Group has self-reported issues where it has not complied with
relevant laws and regulations. In the ordinary course of our
business, we identify, and may continue to identify, issues that have
the potential to impact our customers and reputation, which do not
meet relevant laws or regulations. Where we identify these issues,
disclosures will be made as required by the accounting standards,
or our other legal disclosure obligations. Provisions will be made for
potential liabilities, if arising, in accordance with the accounting
standards.

Regulatory investigations and reviews may result in enforcement
action, litigation (including class action proceedings), and penalties
(both civil and in limited circumstances, criminal).
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Section 7. Other information (continued)

7.4 Commitments and contingencies (continued)
7.4.2 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)
(b) Common law claims

Certain common law claims by employees and third parties are yet
to be resolved. As at 30 June 2025, management believes that the
resolution of these contingencies will not have a significant effect
on the Telstra Group’s financial results.

(c) Indemnities, performance guarantees and financial
guarantees

In addition to the items disclosed in note 7.3.1, we have provided the
following indemnities, performance guarantees and financial
support through our controlled entities:

¢ indemnities to financial institutions to support bank guarantees
to the value of $237 million (2024: $234 million) in respect of the
performance of contracts
¢ indemnities and corporate guarantees to financial institutions
and other third parties in respect of performance and other
obligations of our controlled entities, with the maximum amount
of our contingent liabilities of $269 million (2024: $278 million).
After the balance date, guarantees totalling $3 million expired or
were cancelled.
letters of comfort to indicate support for certain controlled
entities to the amount necessary to enable those entities to meet
their obligations as and when they fall due, subject to certain
conditions (including that the entity remains our controlled
entity)
an internal indemnity arrangement in connection to bank
guarantees procured from, and indemnities granted to, financial
institutions to the value of $237 million (2024: $234 million) in
respect of the performance of contracts.

(d) Other contingent liabilities

Other contingent liabilities identified for the Telstra Group relate to
the ASIC deed of cross guarantee. A list of the companies that are
party to the deed and part of the Closed Group are included in note
6.2.2. Each of these companies that are part of the Closed Group
guarantees the payment in full of the debts of the other companies
in the Closed Group in the event of their winding up.

In addition to the above matters, entities within the Telstra Group
may be recipients of, or defendants in, certain claims, regulatory or
legal proceedings and/or complaints made, commenced or
threatened. As at 30 June 2025, management believes that the
resolution of these contingencies are not at a stage which supports
a reasonable evaluation of the likely outcome of the matter and
therefore, no provision has been made.

(e) Contingent assets

We had no significant contingent assets as at 30 June 2025.
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7.5 Events after reporting date

We are not aware of any matter or circumstance that has occurred
since 30 June 2025 that, in our opinion, has significantly affected or
may significantly affect in future years:

e our operations
¢ the results of those operations, or
¢ the state of our affairs

other than the following:
7.51 Final dividend

The details of the final dividend for the financial year 2025 are
disclosed in note 4.2.

7.5.2 Disposal of the Versent disposal group

On 13 August 2025, we entered into a legally binding agreement to
sell a 75 per cent interest in our controlled entities within the
Versent disposal group as detailed in note 6.4.1.

7.5.3 Share buy-back

On 14 August 2025, we announced an on-market share buy-back of
up to $1 billion to be conducted during the financial year 2026.
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Consolidated Entity
Disclosure Statement

As at 30 June 2025

The consolidated entity disclosure statement is required by
section 295(3A) of the Corporations Act. It includes
disclosures about entities consolidated within the Telstra
Group, including details about tax residency of each entity.

The consolidated entity disclosure statement sets out a complete
list of Telstra Group and its controlled entities as at 30 June 2025 as
detailed in the table below.

Joint ventures (as determined under the accounting standards) are
not consolidated as controlled entities in the Telstra Group.

Section 295(3A) of the Corporations Act requires disclosure of the
tax residency of each entity included in the consolidated entity
disclosure statement.

In certain cases, determining tax residency involves judgement as it
can be fact dependent and subject to interpretation, requiring
consideration of matters such as location of central management
and control or place of effective management. We applied the
following interpretations in determining tax residency:

¢ Australian tax residency has been assessed based on current
legislation and judicial precedent, including having regard to the
Commissioner of Taxation’s existing public guidance

¢ Foreign tax residency has been assessed based on applicable
foreign legislation, judicial precedent and regulator guidance.

Name of entity Country of
incorporation
Parent entity
Telstra Group Limited Australia
Controlled entities
Telstra Corporation Limited Australia
o DCA eHealth Solutions Pty Ltd Australia
¢ Argus Connecting Care Pty Ltd Australia
Communicare eHealth Solutions Pty .
* Ltd Australia
e Medinexus Pty Ltd Australia
e Merricks NewCo Pty Ltd (a) Australia
e Telstra Multimedia Pty Limited Australia
Telstra ESOP Trustee Pty Limited Australia
Telstra Finance Limited Australia
Telstra Foundation Ltd (a) Australia
Telstra Growthshare Pty Ltd (a) Australia
Telstra International Holdings Pty Ltd Australia
o Telstra Holdings Pty Ltd (a) Australia
. 'Il_'ierlnsi’fczadlnternational Operations Pty Australia
Telstra International Networks Pty .
* Limited Australia
o Telstra Australia Networks Pty Limited  Australia
o Telstra Global (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia
« Pacnet Limited Bermuda
« Pacnet Services Corporation Ltd Bermuda
Asia Netcom Pacnet (Ireland) reland

Limited
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The table below includes the following details:

* the name of each entity consolidated within the Telstra Group, its
country of incorporation or formation, and the ownership
percentage of equity held by the subsidiary’s immediate and
ultimate parent, respectively

whether the entity was an Australian tax resident and each
foreign jurisdiction (if any) the entity was a tax resident

entities which were a partnership or trust (with all other entities
being companies/body corporates) are referenced with (a) with
further details provided below the table

entities which were a trustee of a trust within the Telstra Group,
or a partner in a partnership within the Telstra Group are
referenced with (a) with further details provided below the table.

Further details about entities within the Telstra Group should be
read together with the table below and a related alphabetical
reference (if any) next to the entity’s name.

Equity held as at 30 June 2025

Tax residency

Australian Foreign By immediate By ultimate
resident jurisdiction(s) parent (%) parent (%)
Yes n/a

Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
Yes n/a n/a n/a
Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
No Malaysia 61.0 61.0
No n/a 100.0 100.0
No n/a 100.0 100.0
No Ireland 100.0 100.0
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Equity held as at 30 June 2025

By immediate
parent (%)

Name of entity Country of Tax residency

incorporation ['Aystralian Foreign

By ultimate

resident jurisdiction(s) parent (%)
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. Pacnet Global Corporation (S) Singapore No Singapore 100.0 100.0
Pte Ltd
. P.ac.net Services (Korea) Republic of No Republic of 100.0 100.0

Limited Korea Korea

Pacnet Services South Asia . .
* (Philippines) Inc. Philippines No Philippines 100.0 100.0
e Pacnet Services (UK) Limited United Kingdom No United Kingdom 100.0 100.0
e Telstra Services (USA) Inc. United States No United States 100.0 100.0
e Pacnet Services (Japan) Corp. Japan No Japan 39.6 100.0
Pacnet Services Holdings Taiwan No Taiwan 100.0 100.0
(Taiwan) Limited
o Telstra Services (Taiwan) Inc. Taiwan No Taiwan 1.0 100.0

o Telstra Internet (S) Pte Ltd Singapore No Singapore 100.0 100.0
« Pacnet Internet (HK) Limited Hong Kong No Hong Kong 100.0 100.0
. Pac!flc Business Solutions China No China 48.0 48.0
(China)
. Pacific Business Solutions ' ;.\, No China 100.0 48.0
(China) Xi'an
Pacific Business Solutions . .
* (China) Chongging China No China 100.0 48.0
. Pacific Business Solutions ' oy, No China 100.0 48.0
(China) Tianjin
Pacific Business Solutions . .
* (China) Shanghai China No China 100.0 48.0
o Telstra PBS Limited Hong Kong No Hong Kong 100.0 48.0
Pacific Business Solutions . .
* (China)CQ China No China 100.0 48.0
. Pacific Business Solutions -y, No China 100.0 48.0
(China) Beijing
P.ac.|f|c Internet India Private India No India 99.9 100.0
Limited
« Pacnet Network Limited Bermuda No n/a 100.0 100.0
« Pacnet Network (UK) Limited United Kingdom No United Kingdom 100.0 100.0
P'acpet Network (Korea) Republic of No Republic of 100.0 100.0
Limited Korea Korea
IF;""CC”et Network (Philippines)  pJio bines No Philippines 100.0 100.0
o Pacnet Services (Japan) Corp. Japan No Japan 57.8 100.0
« Pacnet Cable Limited Bermuda No n/a 100.0 100.0
« C2C Pacnet (Ireland) Limited Ireland No Ireland 100.0 100.0
o Pacnet Cable (Korea) Limited Republic of No Republic of 100.0 100.0
Korea Korea
Telstra Network & Business Republic of Republic of

®* Services Korea Co., Ltd Korea No Korea 49.0 100.0

o Pacnet Cable (Taiwan) Limited Taiwan No Taiwan 100.0 100.0

« Pacnet Cable (USA) Inc. United States No United States 100.0 100.0

o Pacnet Services (Japan) Corp. Japan No Japan 2.6 100.0

Asia Communications Investment . .

Holdings (Taiwan) Limited Taiwan No Taiwan 100.0 100.0
Asia Communications Investment | ;. No Taiwan 100.0 100.0
(Taiwan) Limited
« Telstra Services (Taiwan) Inc. Taiwan No Taiwan 40.0 100.0

« Telstra Services (Taiwan) Inc. Taiwan No Taiwan 49.0 100.0
Beijing Australia Telecommunications

« Technical Consulting Services Company China No China 100.0 100.0
Limited
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Equity held as at 30 June 2025

By immediate
parent (%)

Name of entity Country of Tax residency

incorporation ['Aystralian Foreign

By ultimate

resident jurisdiction(s) parent (%)
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Reach Network India Private Limited India No India 99.9 99.9
Telstra Asia Limited British Virgin n/a 100.0 100.0
Islands
« Telstra SE Asia Holdings Limited British Virgin n/a 100.0 100.0
Islands
PT Reach Network Services Indonesia No Indonesia 90.0 100.0
Indonesia
Tfels.tra Asia Regional Holdings British Virgin No n/a 100.0 100.0
Limited Islands
o Telstra Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia No Malaysia 51.0 51.0
e Telstra (Thailand) Co. Ltd Thailand No Thailand 49.0 49.0
. T.els.tra Philippines Holdings British Virgin No n/a 100.0 100.0
Limited Islands
o Incomgen Holdings Inc. Philippines No Philippines 40.0 40.0
« Telstra Web Holdings Inc. Philippines No Philippines 60.0 64.0
« Telstra Philippines Inc. Philippines No Philippines 60.0 78.4
« Telstra Philippines Inc. Philippines No Philippines 40.0 78.4
« Telstra Web Holdings Inc. Philippines No Philippines 40.0 64.0
Telstra Global Holdings Limited British Virgin No n/a 100.0 100.0
Islands
« Telstra International Limited Hong Kong No Hong Kong 100.0 100.0
o Telstra Global (HK) Limited Hong Kong No Hong Kong 100.0 100.0
o Telstra Cable (HK) Limited Hong Kong No Hong Kong 100.0 100.0
PT Reac.h Network Services Indonesia No Indonesia 10.0 100.0
Indonesia
Telstra Global Limited United Kingdom No United Kingdom 100.0 100.0
o PTTelstra Nusantara Indonesia No Indonesia 95.0 95.0
United
e Telstra UK Limited United Kingdom No Kingdom, UAE, 100.0 100.0
Sweden
« Company 85 Limited United Kingdom No United Kingdom 100.0 100.0
Telstra Holdings Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore No Singapore 100.0 100.0
Telstra Incorporated United States No United States, 100.0 100.0
Canada
Telstra India Private Limited India No India 99.9 100.0
« Pacific Internet India Private Limited India No India 0.1 100.0
Telstra International PNG Limited Papua New No Papua New 100.0 100.0
Guinea Guinea
Telstra Japan K. K. Japan No Japan 100.0 100.0
Telstra Network Services NZ Limited New Zealand No New Zealand 100.0 100.0
Telstra Services Korea Limited Republic of No Republic of 100.0 100.0
Korea Korea
Telstra Network & Business Services  Republic of No Republic of 510 100.0
Korea Co., Ltd. Korea Korea
Telstra Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore No Singapore 100.0 100.0
« Telstra India Private Limited India No India 0.1 100.0
P.ac.|f|c Internet India Private India No India 01 100.0
Limited
Te.lstra Tglefzommunlcatlons India No India 01 100.0
Private Limited
Tfels.tra Telecommunications Private India No India 99.9 100.0
Limited
(T:)lstra Global Business Services LLP India No India 50.0 100.0
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Name of entity Country of Tax residency Equity held as at 30 June 2025
incorporation ['Aystralian Foreign By immediate By ultimate
resident jurisdiction(s) parent (%) parent (%)
o Telstra GmbH Germany No Germany 100.0 100.0
« Telstra SARL France No France 100.0 100.0
e Telstra PM Holdings Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
o Telstra PM Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
« BidCo (S) Pte. Ltd Singapore No Singapore 100.0 100.0
« Digicel Pacific Limited Bermuda No n/a 100.0 100.0
« Digicel (Nauru) Corporation Nauru No Nauru 80.0 80.0
Digicel International
* Resources Ltd Cayman Islands No n/a 100.0 100.0
Digicel Carrier Services Hong Kon No Hong Kon 100.0 100.0
* (Pacific) Limited g ftong 9 Fong : :
Digicel (Singapore) Private . .
* Limited Singapore No Singapore 100.0 100.0
« Digicel (PNG) Limited Papua New No Papua New 100.0 100.0
Guinea Guinea
. D|g|c.el (PNG‘) Financial Papua New No Papua New 100.0 100.0
Services Limited Guinea Guinea
. Digicel PNG Foundation Papua New No Papua New W e
Inc. Guinea Guinea
« Digicel (Aus) Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
. Diaspora Tglk.tlme (New New Zealand No New Zealand 100.0 100.0
Zealand) Limited
Digicel Central Resources
. (Fiji) Pte Limited Fiji No Fiji 99.0 100.0
« Digicel Pacific Finance Limited Bermuda No n/a 100.0 100.0
. Digicel (Fijilslands) Pte ., No Fii 100.0 100.0
Limited
« Digicel (Fiji) Pte Limited  Fiji No Fiji 49.0 100.0
« Digicel (Fiji) Pte Limited Fiji No Fiji 51.0 100.0
Digicel Central
« Resources (Fiji) Pte Fiji No Fiji 1.0 100.0
Limited
« Digicel (Tonga) Limited Tonga No Tonga 100.0 100.0
Digicel Media Ventures
(Tonga) Limited Tonga No Tonga 100.0 100.0
Digicel (Tonga) Financial
Services Limited Tonga No Tonga 100.0 100.0
« Digicel (Vanuatu) Limited Vanuatu No n/a 100.0 100.0
o Highrise Properties Ltd Vanuatu No n/a 100.0 100.0
Digicel Properties Vanuatu No n/a 100.0 100.0

(Vanuatu) Limited
« Digicel (Samoa) Limited Samoa No Samoa 80.0 80.0
Digicel (Samoa)

Financial Services Ltd Samoa No Samoa 100.0 80.0

o Telstra Reach Holdings Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
Telstra Limited Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
« Bridge Point Communications Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
o CloudMed Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
« Heritage Telecommunications Ltd Australia Yes n/a n/a n/a
« MTData Holdings Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
« Mobile Tracking and Data Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
Hz“s‘pm Compliance Services Pty /|4 alia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

« MTData NZ Limited New Zealand No New Zealand 100.0 100.0
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Name of entity Country of Tax residency Equity held as at 30 June 2025
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incorporation

Australian
resident

Foreign
jurisdiction(s)

By immediate
parent (%)

By ultimate
parent (%)

« NDC Global Holdings Pty Limited Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
« NDC Global Services Pty Limited Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
o Pacnet Services (A) Pty. Ltd. Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
o Pacnet Internet (A) Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
« Hunterlink Pty Limited Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

e Quantium Telstra Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 50.1 50.1
¢ Telstra Communications Limited Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
o Telstra Energy (Holdings) Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
« Telstra Energy (Retail) Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

o Telstra Energy (Markets) Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

o Telstra Energy (Generation) Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

« Telstra Foundation (Philippines), Inc. Philippines No Philippines n/a n/a
o Telstra Health Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
o Telstra Health Services Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

. ﬁl;:‘iif:‘; Technology Holdings Pty Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
Eiﬂ;‘iitceaé Technology Systems Pty Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
;'f;ﬁ%ﬁ‘;’;‘m””icam” Network A stralia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

o E?;i?,:ﬁ'\ggdical Publishing Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

e MedicalDirector (NZ) Limited New Zealand No New Zealand 100.0 100.0

« MedicalDirector Limited United Kingdom No United Kingdom 100.0 100.0

« Power Solutions Holdings Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

« Powerhealth Solutions W.L.L. Bahrain No n/a 100.0 100.0

e Power Solutions DTD Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

. “P/I‘;anggﬂzz'tc’gz::j‘l::g Limiteg | S3UdiArabia  No Saudi Arabia 100.0 100.0

. :Tf’cwe'“ealth Solutions Canada ;144 No Canada 100.0 100.0

« Power Solutions DTD Limited Ireland No Ireland 100.0 100.0

« Power Health Solutions Limited New Zealand No New Zealand 100.0 100.0

o Power Health Solutions Limited Hong Kong Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

o Fred IT Group Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

« Medication Knowledge Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

« MedView Services Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

o Telstra Health UK (Holdings) Limited United Kingdom No United Kingdom 100.0 100.0

o Dr Foster Research Ltd United Kingdom No United Kingdom 100.0 100.0

o Telstra Health UK Ltd United Kingdom No United Kingdom 100.0 100.0

o Telstra International Philippines, Inc. Philippines No Philippines 100.0 100.0
« Telstra OnAir Holdings Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
o Telstra Pay TV Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
o Telstra Purple Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
« Alliance Automation Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

« DLM Automation Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

o Aqura Technologies Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

o Epicon IT Solutions Pty. Ltd. Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

« Service Potential Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

o Epicon Software Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
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Name of entity Country of Tax residency Equity held as at 30 June 2025
incorporation ['Aystralian Foreign By immediate By ultimate

resident jurisdiction(s) parent (%) parent (%)

« Telstra Broadcast Services Pty Limited  Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

« Versent Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

e Stax-WMS Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

o Versent SG Pte. Ltd. Singapore No Singapore 100.0 100.0

« Versent US Inc. United States No United States 100.0 100.0

o Versent Group ESS Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

. I?rfl;':‘ dse"’ices Solutions Holdings Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
o Telstra 3G Spectrum Holdings Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
e Telstra International (Aus) Limited (a) Australia Yes Philippines 100.0 100.0
(T:)lstra Global Business Services LLP India No India 50.0 100.0

o Telstra Plus Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
« Telstra Ventures Pty Limited Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
e Fone Zone Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
o Fone Zone People Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

« Sprout Corporation Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

o Kel 2000 Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

o Kel 2010 Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

« One Zero Communications Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

o One Xerro TLS (Bundaberg) Pty Ltd  Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

e Geek Squad Australia Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

e« Computer Geek Squad Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

e One Zero TCS (Warwick) Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

« Virtual Machine Technology Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
« Media Innovations Holdings Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 51.4 51.4
« Media Innovations IP Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 51.4

« Media Innovations Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 51.4

. mzdia Innovations Management Pty Australia Yes n/a 100.0 51.4

« Convergent Media Investments Pty Ltd  Australia Yes n/a 100.0 51.4

o FetchTV Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 51.4

o Fetch TV Retail Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 51.4

o FetchTV Content Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 51.4

o FetchTV Management Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 51.4

. g’lﬁ;ia Innovations Services Sdn. Malaysia No Malaysia 100.0 51.4

o Telstra Software Group Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
e muru-D Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

o Delta Networks Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
e Boost Tel Pty Limited Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
« Sound Surgeon Pty Limited Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

« Digital Turbine Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

« Belong Corporation Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

o Cell Phones Direct Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0

L3 Gormety ACN. 683 225 736 Pry Lty Australia  Yes va 19 198
Telstra Towerco No.2 Pty Ltd Australia Yes n/a 100.0 100.0
« Amplitel Pty Ltd (a) Australia Yes n/a 51.0 51.0
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Consolidated Entity Disclosure Statement (continued)

(a) Entities which were a partnership or trust, or a trustee of a
trust, or a partner in a partnership

Entities with reference ‘(a)’ were a partnership or trust, a trustee of
a trust within the Telstra Group, or a partner in a partnership within
the Telstra Group as at 30 June 2025.

The entities have been classified as partnerships or trusts following
the accounting requirements. Refer to note 6.5.6 for our accounting
policy regarding recognition and measurement of joint ventures and
associated entities.

The following entities were partners in Telstra Global Business
Services LLP, a partnership within the Telstra Group:

¢ Telstra Holdings Pty Ltd
e Telstra International (Aus) Limited.

The table below presents the entities which were a trustee of a trust
within the Telstra Group and the trusts that they were trustees of:

Trustee Trust

Amplitel Pty Ltd Towers Business Operating
Trust

Merricks NewCo Pty Ltd The Exchange Trust

Telstra Foundation Limited Telstra Foundation
Community Development
Fund

Telstra Growthshare Pty Ltd Telstra Growthshare Trust

Telstra Financial Report 2025
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Directors’
Declaration

This Directors’ Declaration is required by the Corporations Act 2001
of Australia.

The Directors of Telstra Group Limited have made a resolution that
declared:

(a) in the Directors’ opinion, the financial statements and
notes of the Telstra Group for the financial year ended 30
June 2025 as set out in the financial report are in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) complying with the Accounting Standards applicable
in Australia, International Financial Reporting
Standards and Interpretations (as disclosed in note
1.1 to the financial statements), and Corporations
Regulations 2001

(i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of
Telstra Group Limited and the Telstra Group as at 30
June 2025 and of the performance of Telstra Group
Limited and the Telstra Group, for the year ended 30
June 2025

(b) they have received declarations as required by section
295A of the Corporations Act 2001

(c) atthe date of this declaration, in the Directors’ opinion,
there are reasonable grounds to believe that Telstra
Group Limited will be able to pay its debts as and when
they become due and payable

(d) atthe date of this declaration there are reasonable
grounds to believe that the members of the extended
closed group identified in note 6.2.2 to the financial
statements, as parties to a Deed of Cross Guarantee, will
be able to meet any liabilities to which they are, or may
become, subject to because of the Deed of Cross
Guarantee described in note 6.2.2.

(e) in the Directors’ opinion, the consolidated entity
disclosure statement required by section 295(3A) of the
Corporations Act 2001 for the year ended 30 June 2025 is
true and correct.

For and on behalf of the board

Craig W Dunn Vicki Brady
Chair Chief Executive Officer and
Managing Director

14 August 2025
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Telstra Group Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Telstra Group Limited (the “Entity”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) which comprises the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2025, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then

ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information, the
directors’ declaration and the Consolidated Entity Disclosure Statement.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

¢ Giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2025 and of its financial performance for the year then ended;
and
¢ Complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional & Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the
Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the directors of the
Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor’s report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial report for
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

. How the scope of our audit responded to the
i L Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition

The Group exercises judgement in the application of AASB 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“AASB 15”) in accounting
for large and complex Telstra Enterprise Australia (“TEA”)
contracts with customers which are usually bespoke in nature as
they deliver tailored solutions and services.

The process for revenue recognition for all significant revenue
streams, including the accuracy and timing of revenue recorded
and related balance sheet amounts is dependent on a number of
legacy and new billing systems, interfaces, IT tools, IT systems,
automated and manual controls. There is complexity within the
billing systems due to technology transformation, multiple internal
and outsourced arrangements, the volume of data and revenue
recognition data rules.

Disclosures relating to revenue recognition can be found at Section
2.2 Income.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
Member of Deloitte Asia Pacific Limited and the Deloitte organisation.

For revenue recognised in relation to TEA contracts, we have
focused our audit effort on evaluating management’s application of
AASB 15 in accounting for contracts with customers. We selected a
sample of contracts with customers based on risk characteristics
and size and performed focused audit procedures on this sample
which included:
¢ Obtaining and reading relevant sections of selected contracts
and evaluating these in conjunction with management’s AASB
15 assessments. This included evaluation of identified
performance obligations, allocation of consideration to
performance obligations and the impact of timing of fulfilment
of performance obligations on recognition of revenue and
related fulfilment costs;
¢ For those contracts where performance obligations are met
over time, obtaining evidence to support the recording of
revenue against performance obligations; and
Assessing any changes to contractual arrangements and
whether they have been accounted for appropriately.
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Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition (continued)

Capitalisation of assets, transfer from assets under
construction and determination of useful lives

The determination of the carrying amount of assets, including
property, plant and equipment and software intangible assets,
requires judgement to be exercised by management, particularly in
the areas noted below:

¢ The decision to capitalise or expense costs;

e The assessment of useful lives; and

¢ The timeliness of the transfer from assets under construction

to commence depreciation/amortisation.

Changes in these judgements can have a significant impact on the
results of the Group.

Disclosures relating to the capitalisation of assets and useful lives
can be found at Section 3.1 Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets.

Other Information

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
ABN 74 490 121 060

477 Collins Street
Melbourne, VIC, 3000

Phone: +61 3 9671 7000
www.deloitte.com.au

How the scope of our audit responded to the

Key Audit Matter

For the remainder of contracts with customers in TEA, we have
evaluated the population and performed substantive audit
procedures on a sample basis.

In conjunction with our IT audit specialists, for all significant
revenue streams, we have assessed the Group’s manual and
automated controls (including interfaces and tools) and IT systems
that were relevant to the recognition of revenue. We evaluated the
design and operating effectiveness of the key manual and
automated controls over the capture and measurement of revenue
transactions across significant revenue streams. This included but
was not limited to assessing the processes and controls over
changes to products, pricing and plans.

We have assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of the
Group’s accounting policies and related disclosures in the notes to
the financial statements.

Our audit procedures to evaluate the determination of the carrying
value amount of assets, including property, plant and equipment
and software intangible assets included the following;

¢ Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s procedures around
capitalisation of assets, the transfer from assets under
construction and the annual assessment of useful lives;
Evaluating the design and implementation of key controls with
respect to the capitalisation of assets, transfer from assets
under construction and the annual assessment of useful lives,
and where practicable testing the operating effectiveness of
these key controls;
Verifying the appropriateness of costs capitalised during the
year based on a sample of additions;
Verifying on a sample basis, the appropriateness of the date
from which assets commenced depreciation and amortisation;
Performing substantive analytical procedures to audit the
depreciation and amortisation expense recognised during the
year;
Evaluating the Group’s useful life review during the year and
the judgements applied as part of the review, including any
changes made to useful lives, and any resulting changes in
depreciation and amortisation. As part of this evaluation, we
also consider significant changes that have taken place during
the year or are expected to take place in future periods that
would impact the useful life review; and
Evaluating the adequacy of the disclosures included in Section
3.1.

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Group’s annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2025, but does not include the financial report and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report
The directors of the Company are responsible:

* For the preparation of the financial report in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including giving a true and fair view of the
financial position and performance of the Group in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards; and

¢ For suchinternal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including giving a true and fair view of the financial position and performance of the Group, and is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report

to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease

to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and whether the financial

report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to

express an opinion on the financial report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group’s audit. We

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
report of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
Member of Deloitte Asia Pacific Limited and the Deloitte organisation. F99
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Report on the Remuneration Report

Opinion on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in the Directors’ Report for the year ended 30 June 2025.

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Telstra Group Limited, for the year ended 30 June 2025, complies with section 300A of the

Corporations Act 2001.

Responsibilities

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section
300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted

in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Matt Sheerin

Partner

Chartered Accountants
Melbourne, 14 August 2025
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